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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBHE

Results and financial performances EBENVERR 2023 2022
Results E¥

Revenue (HK$'000) WA (FAETT) 1,945,721 2,279,321
Profit for the year (HK$'000) F A (FHIT) 204,191 226,909
Basic earnings per share (HK$) FREREF (BIT) 0.25 0.27
Proposed final dividend per share (HK cents) @3 & MR EIAL S GEAL) 7.5 8.6
Proposed special dividend per share (HK cents) Zix & RIKRE GBM) 10.0 N/AZ 38
Gross profit margin VB 26.4% 23.7%
Net profit margin Py | P 10.5% 10.0%
Return on equity (Note 1) AR A Bl ¥ = (At 1) 12.1% 14.1%
Return on assets (Note 2) BEBRE(HE2) 8.3% 8.4%
Inventory turnover days (Note 3) GFEREXE(HE3) 102 98
Trade receivable turnover days (Note 4) B S I IEEE X (M iE4) 58 54
Trade payable turnover days (Note 5) B N SIARS R E(H7E5) 61 57
Financial position B H AR R

Net current assets (HK$'000) MBEEFE(TFAET) 1,193,086 1,090,873
Current ratio (Note 6) MBI R (f15E6) 276.0% 219.1%
Quick ratio (Note 7) RENEL R (ff7E7) 222.9% 176.3%
Gearing ratio (Note 8) BEBEHLE(KZS) 1.5% 21.6%

Notes: Bt -

(1) Return on equity ratio is calculated by dividing profit after tax by total equity and (1) BRA[EIHR b F 12 5 7 18 )i FUIBR LA #E 2 48 BB A T 12

multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

EFLA100%5E -

(2) Return on assets ratio is calculated by dividing profit after tax by total assets and (2) BEEBIIRI RIZGRF £ 5 FIR A EEA B H A3

multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

BEFIAT100% 515 -

(3) Inventory turnover days are calculated based on the average balance of (38) FEAEXEIIZFE 455G BFERNHE
inventories divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 B A BIELA365 Kil1H -

days.

(4) Trade receivable turnover days are calculated based on the average trade (4) & 5 EYGIEE K LT 1%-F 15 B 5 U B X
receivables divided by the revenue for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days. BETFERMA BFIA365 KitE -

(5) Trade payable turnover days are calculated based on the average trade payables (5) B BREMEEEXE 1% F 1 E 5 508 B X
divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days. BEFEH I E LR BTIAZ6EKE

(6) Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities and (6) TEIHFRETEEER L TE B E BT EE T

multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

100%&1 5 -

(7) Quick ratio is calculated by dividing current assets less inventory by current (7) BEHEEREEEREZTFERURE B EHFAT

liabilities and multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

EIEFLA100%51E -

(8) Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings by total equity and (8) EBEBEHXREEEHFRUIERZEEBSHEE

multiplying the resulting value by 100%.
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Financial Highlights (continued)
MBmE(E)

Five Year Revenue — by business segments

EFPRA—ZREKD

HK$'000
FHET
2,500,000
2,000,000
1,500,000
1,000,000
500,000
0
Year 2019 Year 2020 Year 2021 Year 2022 Year 2023
20194F 20205 20214 20224 2023%F
Mold fabrication Plastic components manufacturing Total
RERIME TR RS 4Bt
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHET FAT FET
Mold fabrication RERUE 590,786 700,198 706,025 606,235 619,626
Plastic components JETBAA M RIS
manufacturing 1,720,056 1,333,221 1,698,373 1,673,086 1,326,095
Total 1EET 2,310,842 2,033,419 2,404,398 2,279,321 1,945,721

SIEE (3F%) BRARE 202343
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

To All Shareholders

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of TK Group (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “TK" or the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year").

TK RISING TO THE OCCASION WITH STRENGTH
UNDER THE CHALLENGING MARKET ATMOSPHERE

The past five years have been extraordinary for the PRC's
manufacturing and export companies. Faced with a series of “black
swan” and “grey rhino” events around the world, companies
have been struggling to cope with sudden shocks. The Sino-US
trade war started in 2018, and the conflicts between the PRC
and the United States further intensified in 2019, resulting in the
continuous deterioration in the trade relations between the two
countries. In 2020 and 2021, the COVID-19 epidemic ravaged
the world. Governments across the country implemented social
distancing measures and entry and exit restrictions to combat
the epidemic, disrupting citizens’ lives, halting production and
logistics in various industries, and dragging down the global
economy. In 2022, while the epidemic situation in Europe and
the United States eased slightly, the Russia-Ukraine war broke
out in February. Together with imbalances in the global supply
chain and aftereffects of quantitative easing financial policies in
various countries, energy, commodity and food prices rose sharply,
leading to severe inflationary pressure. The U.S. Federal Reserve
System also started an interest rate hike cycle in mid-March, which
continued until the end of 2023, raising interest rates 11 times in
a row, with a cumulative increase of more than 550 basis points,
reaching the highest level in 22 years, which led to a slowdown in
the global economic recovery and a weak consumer market.

TRmESE(E)
S CAOE T

AANERRESZS((EZC)MARERT
EB(EZER)ERAR(ARF ) REMRBA
Al (3T Jek [ A% B ) EE2023F12H
INBUEFETFAND ZFERE -

mERFAERE FOLRENDHN

palt=!

BESE F WHEREERE OMERFHILD
R BEEIES [ RREIN [ RES]E
& DEBRENFD  REEEHEWMERN
HE - 2018FHEZ ZERIT © £2019FF
EFFEE—TARL  MARNEHEREE
BEEAL ;20208 20214 - HIBRIEEES
Bk - BB E B AL A PR B e S H AR IR
FIAE TR TR ARAEE « 17
EERYVITER - W5 2IREE 20224 -
BEMEZIEMAEME  BEBFEHE2A
B EREMEEEIAERSEELLER
CRBURMZE  BRER  ARTRMAE
Ba2H  TREBEEBREN - ZEBHEE
RBEMAIAPRBNERAY ¥ —ETE
F2023F K - EEMB11R - BETIREREB
BEOMEEEE » A22F R & ' EBEHEIRKE
BEIEFRIE - BEBMISRKES o
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FTREREE(E)

Under the fluctuating macro-economy, TK responded to challenges
with both offensive and defensive strategies. In addition to prudent
and rigorous risk and financial management, the Group, through
the implementation of cost reduction and efficiency improvement
reforms, continued to enhance its competitiveness, maintained
a good and stable financial position and strong cash flow, and
successfully forged ahead amidst the storms. In line with the
spirit of striving for excellence and never stopping, TK insisted on
investing in new deployments, diversifying its production layout,
exploring new direction for engaging in businesses with potential,
and seeking breakthroughs in production technology to open up
new business areas in various aspects and add new impetus to
the Group's long-term and sustainable growth. With the efforts of
all the staff of the Group, | am pleased to report to shareholders
that the net profit in 2023 amounted to HK$200 million, which
has remained at above HK$200 million for the eighth consecutive
year, and the net cash on hand reached HK$1.13 billion, which fully
reflects that the Group's operational and financial strategies have
been well executed and its core strength can effectively cope with
economic turbulence.

As inflation eased in the European and American markets, and the
global economy and life gradually returned to normalcy after the
epidemic, we believe that the most difficult days have passed,
new economic forms have been gradually taking shape, and new
opportunities will follow. The entire staff of TK will closely work
together to seize opportunities arising from the global economic
recovery, in order to return to the track of rapid growth, and move
towards a better future!

BUSINESS REVIEW 2023

Facing the continuous inflationary pressure in 2022, many
European and American countries maintained monetary
tightening policies. Under the interest rate hike cycle, European
and American people correspondingly tightened non-essential
consumer spending. Coupled with the overexpansion in consumer
electronics products during the epidemic, demand slowed down
rapidly after the epidemic, resulting in a shrinking European and
American consumer markets overall. TK has always assessed the
situation and actively adjusted itself in the economic downturn.
In the early stages of the epidemic, the Group has streamlined
its mold production structure by reducing costs and increasing
efficiency, and deepened Industry 4.0 to enhance production
efficiency and management efficiency, in order to enhance internal
competitiveness. Therefore, operating risks and fluctuations were
basically controllable. Although revenue during the Year fell by
14.6% to HK$1,945.7 million, gross profit margin and net profit
margin increased to 26.4% and 10.5% respectively, and net profit
was recorded at HK$200 million.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Facing one wave after another in the macro environment, we are
especially grateful to shareholders who have moved forward with
TK through difficult times. Based on a stable financial position and
abundant cash flow, the Board has recommended the payment of
a final dividend of HK7.5 cents per share and a special dividend
of HK10.0 cents per share for the Year. Together with the interim
dividend of HK2.8 cents per share, the total dividend payout for
the year ended 31 December 2023 was HK20.3 cents per share, in
return for the long-term support of shareholders.

PROSPECTS

The Group has been in the industry for more than 40 years and
understands that the balance between flexibility and prudence is
the key to sustainable growth. Facing the overall environment with
uncertainties, TK has not only adjusted its internal management
and structure, but also accurately invested resources in long-term
development to ensure sustainable business development.

Since the fourth quarter of 2023, the destocking strategy of
American retail brands has been gradually completed, the
inventory on sales channels has been significantly reduced, and
brand customers have gradually resumed normal orders placing. In
addition, the U.S. economy has shown resilience, and inflation has
continued to fall, but the job market has remained stable, resulting
in a sound consumption. Entering 2024, TK has actively cooperated
with a number of consumer electronics brand customers to
prepare for new product releases and promote new project
development.

TREHEE(E)

EAHERBRERR —EE —F  HOLHK
HEFTRRRAANRE - ERBREO B
MARFERNBEESR  EFCERAFE
i = Moy L DS SR - =35
10.0781l + FER A BB FHR2.88l - H=E
2023F 12 A3 A IEFEE2FIRE AFK20.3
Bl AE SRR RS

RE

AEBIZ XRBBO+E - RAEELR
FEZEBARSFE  FTRERFEER
BRI EHERBRRNERMNE - RIE
FAENTEERRBZR  BEERAER
hRREERBREGAIFERR -

H2023F EMNFMIG XETERENE
EFERBEEEETK HERBLWNEFEX
iR BEEFEERTSIMELETE - il
F XERERRIMNE - BRFEREZER
EMERERE  HERR L - BEA2024
FRICEBES—FHBEETmMER
SR mBMIESHEEFE -
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FTREREE(E)

TK has been striving for excellence in mold injection technology to
maintain its leading position in the industry. With the hard power of
high-precision plastic injection molds, innovative product solutions
have retained loyal customers in the long term and helped develop
new customer sources. Last year, TK has introduced a new
technology Printing Direct Structure (PDS), using pad printing
technology to directly print conductive lines on the casing. It is
a highly reliable, low-cost, and environmentally friendly value-
added service. In recent years, the Group has continued to invest
in silicone technology. Its unique skin-friendly property has great
advantages and greatly enhances the plasticity of customers’
products in terms of appearance design, comfort and function.
In the past two years, it has been highly popular among personal
consumer products customers. TK has continued to innovate
and seek change, and its technology and quality have made it
famous among international high-end consumer electronics brand
customers. Last year, TK has successfully co-operated with a
number of high-end audio equipment brands and has started to
create next-generation headphone products. In addition, TK has
been included in the list of approved manufacturers by leading
companies in the Metaverse industry, entering the virtual reality
(VR) and augmented reality (AR) product supply market, and is
expected to seize a share in this emerging field.

Diversification has been TK's key to success, allowing it to remain
flexible and agile in a changing market. As the PRC’'s economy
shifts towards high-quality and new technology development, the
mainland’s resources investment in innovation has continued to
increase over the past decade. The PRC government has actively
introduced preferential policies to support innovation, and a strong
innovation and technology atmosphere has successfully nurtured
diversified technology companies and unicorns. The Group will
focus on the medical technology and innovative technology
industries and more actively develop potential leading corporate
customers in the country, thereby diversifying the Group's
geographical market.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

The continuous diversified development of new direction for
engaging in businesses has allowed TK to support the growth and
expansion of brands in different industries, and also given us a
deep understanding of the various needs of brand customers in
the value chain. In line with the trend of regional decentralization
of global supply chains, TK Group will continue its external
expansion strategy. In addition to its production bases in the PRC
and Vietnam, TK Group is considering setting up plastic injection
molding production lines in North America to meet the needs of
North American customers. At the same time, in order to better
meet customer expectations, TK will seek to extend its industrial
chain and strive to provide more comprehensive one-stop services.
We are currently actively exploring various options to create
greater value for customers and increase customer stickiness. In
the future, we hope TK Group not only being the supplier to provide
high-precision plastic injection molds solutions, but also the most
trustworthy partner of customers with its diversified business and
professional knowledge.

Sailing through ups and downs, TK Group has always adhered to
the core concept of innovation and change, and held on to the faith
of continuous pursuit of progress. In the future, we will further
strengthen our leading position in the plastic injection molding
industry chain and bring together all we can get to strengthen
product innovation and technological breakthroughs to find infinite
possibilities in the blue ocean. At the same time, we will continue
to manage risks prudently and improve operational efficiency to
fully seize the unlimited opportunities arising from global market
and economic recovery. In this ever-changing market, we will stick
to our mission, reach new heights, bring more energetic elements
to our customers and the industry, and create greater value to the
society.

TREHEE(E)
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FTREREE(E)

CORPORATE CULTURE

With a corporate culture unanimously recognized and supported
by the public and all staff, every decision and every order of TK
Group are determined upon thorough consideration in terms of
customers, suppliers, staff, natural environment, the society and
TK Group itself to ensure all parties are treated in a fair and equal
manner, as well as profit maximization. Such culture is consistent
with TK Group's operating concept of “concerted development,
concerted growth"”. In addition, the Group places high emphasis
on integrity, and believes that the “Three Principles”, namely,
“Fairness, Equality and Transparency”, will facilitate our health
development and growth. Under the corporate culture of mutual
trust, all of our staff are able to concentrate on the creation of
corporate value and provision of better services to our customers,
thus protecting interests of the Group and the customers as a
whole.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, business
partners and customers for their steadfastness during the testing
time and their continuous support and trust in adversity. | would
also like to give special thanks to all our staff and management
team of the Company for their dedication and forging ahead. There
is always sunshine after the storm. With the concerted efforts
of the whole Group, the Group is full of confidence in the future
development of the industry and business performance. We will
strive to promote the development of the Group under your trust
and support, thereby creating better results and return for our
shareholders and the society.

Li Pui Leung
Chairman
Hong Kong, 22 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2023, the global epidemic restriction was lifted, but economic
growth still faced multiple challenges. The conflict between
Russia and Ukraine has not stopped, the Israeli-Palestinian war
has deepened political conflicts along the border, and the Red
Sea crisis has impacted the supply chain, making the overall
recovery momentum weak. At the same time, under the impact
of the uncertain geopolitical situation and shrinking energy
supply, prices and living expenses were still at a high level.
Major western economies continued to raise interest rates to
curb inflation, resulting in sluggish end consumer demand. As a
result, the consumer electronics industry faced high inventory
pressure, which affected the pace of orders from European and
American consumer electronics customers, thereby dragging
down the Group's performance. Since reopening in 2023, the
PRC government has timely launched economic stimulus policies
to create a more favorable business environment. For the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Group's total revenue amounted
to HK$1,945.7 million (2022: HK$2,279.3 million), representing a
year-on-year decrease of 14.6%. In particular, revenue from the
plastic components manufacturing business decreased by 20.7%
due to the cooling of overseas consumer demand, and revenue
from the mold fabrication business increased by 2.2% due to
the fact that the global supply chains have generally returned to

BEEN WKk
3 % 51

2023%F « RIREEMRE - BLEERDEER
ZEKE - BMEERAHK - UEHERH
MBURTE - ALEEHE R HEREKE
g (FREEVATERS - - B EHES
DTRRABAEEREEERNEET MER
EERSTTERESKE AT ELEE
BEIRFFEMEIIHIAE - SR mEES
SRR - HBE FITERAMERR=EFE
N HEREHEBETREFREME M
HEREENFEERE - B2023F %K E
R+ R (B A 2 R HE L R A B B DA Bl
BHEANEREIRE - #£2023F 128318 1
FE o REEBWRAZET45.7EEBT(2022
F:22793BE8EL) HETHR146% °
Hep - FBANREBEEBIEINEE TR KE
BEETH20.7%  HEARIEEKAEZX
SRR OE IE B MERIF2. 2% K ©

normal.
Industry 2023 2022 Change
g 28
HK$ million % HK$ million % HK$ million %
BEBRT BEET BEAT
Mobile phones and wearable FREAERRE
devices 549.5 28.2 648.2 28.4 -98.7 -15.2
Automobiles R 368.7 18.9 300.5 13.2 68.2 22.7
Medical and personal health care 2/ K il A& 349.7 18.0 426.5 18.7 -76.8 -18.0
Electronic atomizers BEfHlaE 205.1 105 125.5 5.5 79.6 63.4
Smart home BHKE 190.0 9.8 330.6 145 -140.6 -42.5
Commercial telecommunications — F %@ k&
equipment 123.8 6.4 293.1 12.9 -169.3 -57.8
Others Eih 158.9 8.2 154.9 6.8 4.0 2.6
1,945.7 100.0 2,279.3 100.0 -333.6 -14.6
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BEE N w LT ()

In the context of a weak economy and weakening demand,
customers continued to digest the inventory accumulated after
the epidemic, and new product production plans were delayed,
forcing the Group to adjust its production schedule, thereby
affecting production efficiency. In the past two years, despite
the fluctuations in external market conditions, the Group has
strengthened the comprehensive optimization and improvement
of the production process and strived to improve efficiency and
management effectiveness. The strategy for reducing costs and
improving efficiency has shown results. During the year under
review, the Group's gross profit only decreased by 5.3% to
HK$512.8 million (2022: HK$541.3 million), and the gross profit
margin increased by 2.7 percentage points to 26.4% (2022:
23.7%). The operations of the Group's silicone product production
bases in Vietnam and Huizhou involved additional expenses, which
temporarily affected profits. The Group recorded a profit for the
year of HK$204.2 million (2022: HK$226.9 million), decreasing by
10.0% over the same period last year. Net profit margin increased
by 0.5 percentage point to 10.5% (2022: 10.0%). Basic earnings
per share was HK$0.25 (2022: HK$0.27), decreasing by 7.4% over
the same period last year.

Logistics transportation has basically returned to normal operations
in the first half of 2023. Although the Red Sea crisis in the second
half of the year caused ships to take detours and lengthen sailing
days, it had no direct impact on the Group. In 2023, the Group's
inventory turnover days increased by 4 days to 102 days as
compared to the same period last year and the trade receivable
turnover days increased by 4 days to 58 days as compared to
the same period last year. Faced with the uncertainties arising
from geopolitical conflicts and macroeconomic turmoil, the Group
has become more rigorous in its capital management. As of 31
December 2023, the Group continued to maintain a high level of
net cash of HK$1,132.4 million (31 December 2022: HK$924.6
million), representing an increase of 22.5% as compared with that
at 31 December 2022. The prudent financial strategies and capital
reserves have enabled the Group to respond flexibly to changes
in the challenging market environment. As at 31 December 2023,
the Group had sales orders on hand amounting to HK$830.6
million, which represented an increase of 2.0% as compared with
HK$814.2 million as at 31 December 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BUSINESS SEGMENT ANALYSIS

During the year under review, the revenue from external
customers of the mold fabrication business amounted to
approximately HK$619.6 million, representing an increase of
approximately 2.2% as compared with approximately HK$606.2
million in the same period last year, and accounting for
approximately 31.8% of the Group's total revenue.

The Group has production lines for ultra-large standard molds
and high-precision molds. The major products of the Group's
ultra-large standard molds are automobiles components. The
customers mainly include first-tier component suppliers who
manufacture automobiles components for automobile brands in
Europe, such as Mercedes-Benz, BMW and Volkswagen. High-
precision molds production lines mainly produce high-precision
molds with multi-cavity and efficiency, with the markets covering
high-end consumer electronics, medical and personal health care
industries such as smart home, mobile phones and wearable
devices. The Group continues to focus on expert-level molding
technology research and is committed to providing customers
with high quality and cost-effective design solutions. In addition to
developing external customers, the Group also cooperates with the
downstream plastic components manufacturing business partners
to provide more premium one-stop services for the customers.

In the past two years, the epidemic prevention and control
measures and the shortage of semiconductors and spare parts
have resulted in restriction on the automobile production, leading
to an impact on the automobile mold industry. With the adjustment
of the supply chain, the supply shortage of key components such
as semiconductors has eased, and the automobile industry has
recovered gradually. According to data released by the European
Automobile Manufacturers’ Association, new car sales in Europe in
2023 amounted to approximately 12.85 million units, representing
a year-on-year increase of 13.7%. The Group’s mold orders have
also gradually recovered. Due to the long mold production cycle,
segment revenue growth will gradually appear. The Group's
implementation of Industry 4.0 in recent years has achieved
fruitful results, greatly improving production efficiency and market
competitiveness. The gross profit margin for the mold fabrication
segment in 2023 increased by 10.6 percentage points to 37.0%
(2022: 26.4%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BEE N w LT ()

In view of the increasingly severe market competition, the
Group has focused on the development of high-precision molds
with multi-cavity and efficiency which have stringent quality
requirements, striving to improve the precision of its products.
Also, the Group has actively explored new customer base and new
projects, especially in high-end customer fields such as medical,
consumer electronics and packaging. While the government
continues to promote the internal circular economy strategy to
expand domestic demand, the Group focuses on developing
domestic brand customers with international stronghold. The
quality and technology of the Group’s products have won a good
market reputation. The Group will continue to offer more high-
quality mold products and design solutions to help customers
improve their production efficiency and ensure their product
quality, so as to strengthen its leading position in the industry.

During the year under review, the revenue from the plastic
components manufacturing business segment amounted to
approximately HK$1,326.1 million (2022: HK$1,673.1 million),
representing a decrease of 20.7% as compared with the same
period last year, and accounting for approximately 68.2% of the
Group's total revenue.

The plastic injection molding business of the Group has served
many international leading consumer electronics brands. In 2023,
affected by various factors such as weak economy, high inflation,
and high interest rates, people in Europe and America were more
conservative in their consumption intentions. The consumer
electronics and smart product markets have not yet recovered
significantly after the overexpansion during the epidemic, and
product demand was significantly sluggish during the year. In
addition, brand customers, hampered by excessive channel
inventory, had been destocking, adjusting product production and
shipping plans, and suspending new product launches. The mobile
phones and wearable devices and the smart home segments
recorded a year-on-year decrease of 15.2% and 42.5% in revenue,
respectively. The commercial telecommunications equipment
segment recorded a year-on-year decrease of 57.8% in revenue
due to large-scale product recalling by brand customers during the
year, affecting overall product sales. The Group has endeavored
to develop new products made with silicon, offering customers
innovative product solutions, while stepped up its efforts to
develop domestic customers. The Group has successfully co-
operated with a leading domestic brand of bone conduction
headphones and an internationally renowned brand of wearable
cameras, and has successively delivered products, further
diversifying the customers’ portfolio.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

In past few years, the Group had successfully acquired customers
of renowned brands from domestic and overseas medical
segment, covering consumables such as in vitro diagnostic
devices, glucose monitors, and hemodialysis kits. Revenue from
medical customers recorded growth during the year. However,
under the dual pressure of high inflation and interest rates, the
global consumer sentiment was sluggish. The Group's personal
health care brand customers therefore reduced orders, which
directly led to a year-on-year decline of 18.0% in revenue from
the medical and personal health care segment. In the long run,
the medical industry has a rigid demand. Coupled with an aging
population and increasing awareness of personal health care,
the industry will be relatively less affected by cycles. The Group
will continue to develop customers in related industries and
seize development opportunities from the medical and health
care industry. In addition, the overseas e-cigarette market has
promising development prospects and demand continues to
increase. The Group’'s high-precision molds with multi-cavity and
high-efficiency plastic injection molding technology have been
recognised by overseas brand customers, and the revenue from
the electronic atomizers segment increased by 63.4% year-on-
year.

In 2023, the Group's plastic injection molding business order
volume has been dragged down by the shrinking consumer
market, and coupled with changes in product structure, the gross
profit margin of the plastic components manufacturing segment
decreased by 1.4 percentage points to 21.4% (2022: 22.8%). The
Group expects that the global inflation situation will continue to
improve in 2024, economic tightening policies will slow down,
spending power will increase, higher volume of orders will be
placed and the increase in the number of new projects will help
improve the capacity utilization rate, allowing further growth in
gross profit margin.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B E R MO ()
CUSTOMERS OF THE GROUP

As of 31 December 2023, sales of the Group were mainly export
sales and our customers were mainly prestigious corporations and
brands in Europe and America. Customers of the Group cover a
wide range of industries, from automobile to household electrical
appliances to mobile phones and wearable devices, smart home
as well as medical and personal health care. As a key supplier of
molds and plastics of high-end electronic products, the Group's
orders are widely impacted by the launch time, popularity and life
cycle of products of its downstream industry customers. However,
being engaged in the molds and plastic injection industry for
40 years, the Group always sticks to the strategy of customer
diversity in order to manage and minimize risks effectively.
Currently, the Group has been widely recognised as a trustworthy
business partner of various internationally known brands of
consumer goods, including numbers of leading brands in many
fast-growing industries such as smartphones, personal health care
and smart home brand.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023 was approximately
HK$1,945.7 million, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$333.6 million or 14.6% when compared with the revenue of
approximately HK$2,279.3 million in 2022.

In 2023, the revenue from external customers of the mold
fabrication segment was approximately HK$619.6 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK$13.4 million or 2.2%
when compared with the revenue of approximately HK$606.2
million in 2022. In the past two years, the epidemic prevention
and control measures and the shortage of semiconductors
and spare parts have resulted in restriction on the automobile
production, leading to an impact on the automobile mold industry.
With the adjustment of the supply chain, the supply shortage
of key components such as semiconductors has eased, and the
automobile industry has recovered gradually, and hence the mold
orders of the Group have also gradually recovered.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

In 2023, the revenue from external customers of the plastic
components manufacturing segment was approximately
HK$1,326.1 million, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$347.0 million or 20.7% when compared with the revenue
of approximately HK$1,673.1 million in 2022. Being affected
by various factors such as weak economy, high inflation, and
high interest rates, people in Europe and America were more
conservative in their consumption intentions. The consumer
electronics and smart product markets have not yet recovered
significantly after the overexpansion during the epidemic, and
product demand was significantly sluggish during the year.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
approximately HK$512.8 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$28.5 million or 5.3% as compared with the
gross profit of approximately HK$541.3 million in 2022. Gross
profit margin rose 2.7 percentage points to 26.4% (2022: 23.7%).

The gross profit margin for the mold fabrication segment rose
10.6 percentage points to 37.0% (2022: 26.4%) as compared to
the same period last year, mainly due to the fact that the Group's
implementation of Industry 4.0 in recent years has achieved
fruitful results, greatly improving production efficiency and market
competitiveness.

The gross profit margin for the plastic components manufacturing
segment dropped 1.4 percentage points to 21.4% (2022: 22.8%),
mainly due to the fact that the Group's plastic injection molding
business orders have been dragged down by the shrinking
consumer market, coupled with changes in product structure,
resulting in a decrease in the gross profit margin for the plastic
components manufacturing segment.

Other Income

Other income for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
approximately HK$45.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$0.6 million or 1.4% when compared with that of
approximately HK$44.6 million in 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BIEE T am ko (&)
Other gains — net

Other gains (net) for the year ended 31 December 2023 were
approximately HK$6.2 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$3.3 million or 34.6% when compared to the
other gains (net) of approximately HK$9.5 million in 2022. The
decrease was mainly the net result of the drop in the net exchange
gains by approximately HK$11.3 million and no impairment loss
of goodwill recorded during the year while an impairment loss of
goodwill of approximately HK$6.7 million was recognised in the
same period last year.

Selling Expenses

Selling expenses for the year ended 31 December 2023 were
approximately HK$57.4 million (2022: HK$67.0 million), accounting
for approximately 2.9% (2022: 2.9%) of the total revenue of the
Group, representing a decrease of approximately HK$9.6 million
or 14.4% as compared with 2022, which was mainly attributable
to the decrease in transportation expenses resulting from the
decrease in sales and the decrease in unit prices of sea and air
transportation.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2023
were approximately HK$275.2 million (2022: HK$284.0 million),
accounting for approximately 14.1% (2022: 12.5%) of the total
revenue of the Group, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$8.8 million or 3.1% as compared with 2022, which was mainly
attributable to the decrease in advisory service expenses and
recruitment fees.

Finance Income — Net

Net finance income for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
approximately HK$10.3 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$3.1 million or 22.8% when compared with
approximately HK$13.4 million in 2022, which was mainly due to
the increase in interest expenses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Share of Results of Associates

Share of loss of associates for the year ended 31 December 2023
was approximately HK$8.0 million (2022: HK$2.3 million). The
increase in share of loss of associates of approximately HK$5.7
million was mainly due to the recognition of the impairment loss of
an associate during the year.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
approximately HK$32.8 million (2022: HK$31.8 million) and the
effective tax rate was 13.8% (2022: 12.3%).

Profit for the Year

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2023 was approximately
HK$204.2 million, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$22.7 million or 10.0% when compared with approximately
HK$226.9 million in 2022.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND RATIOS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net current assets of
approximately HK$1,193.1 million (31 December 2022: HK$1,090.9
million). The Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$1,158.2 million (31 December 2022: HK$1,114.5 million).
The current ratio of the Group was approximately 276.0% (31
December 2022: 219.1%).

Total equity of the Group as at 31 December 2023 was
approximately HK$1,685.2 million (31 December 2022: HK$1,605.6
million). The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2023 was
approximately 1.5% (31 December 2022: 21.6%). The decrease in
the gearing ratio was mainly due to a decrease in bank borrowings.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B E R MO ()
DEBT MATURITY PROFILE

The maturity profile of the Group's borrowings is set out below:

BEEHAMRR

AEEBEIBARGT ¢

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Within 1 year 1F AR 25,078 286,472
Between 1 and 2 years 122K - 60,543
25,078 347,015

An analysis of the Group's key liquidity ratios as at 31 December
2023 is as follows:

M2023F12A318 » AEBNEEREHES
b= ST ¢

2023 2022
Inventory turnover days FEEAEBXE 102 98
Trade receivable turnover days B 5 el R IE FE K8 58 54
Trade payable turnover days B 5 e SRR SR E 61 57
Current ratio mENLL & 276.0% 219.1%

INVENTORY TURNOVER DAYS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's inventory
turnover days were 102 days, representing an increase of 4 days
when compared with that of 2022, which was mainly attributable
to the increase in mold orders of the Group with long production
cycles.

TRADE RECEIVABLE TURNOVER DAYS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's trade
receivable turnover days were 58 days, representing an increase
of 4 days when compared with that of 2022, which was mainly
attributable to the increased sales to domestic customers of the
Group with credit period ranging from 60 to 90 days.

TRADE PAYABLE TURNOVER DAYS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s trade payable
turnover days were 61 days, representing an increase of 4 days
when compared with that of 2022, which was mainly attributable
to the extension in credit period granted by certain suppliers to the
Group in view of its good reputation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

CURRENT RATIO

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's current ratio was 276.0%,
representing an increase of 56.9 percentage points when
compared with 219.1% as at 31 December 2022.

ASSETS PLEDGED

As at 31 December 2023, there were no assets pledged by
the Group (31 December 2022: bank borrowings amounting
to HK$116,060,000 were secured by the bank deposits of
HK$157,138,000).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and RMB and HK dollar are
the functional currencies of principal subsidiaries of the Group.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risks arising from various
currency exposures, mainly with respect to US dollar, Euro and
RMB. Exchange rate fluctuations and market trends have always
been a main concern of the Group. Foreign currency hedging of
the Group has been managed by the Group's financial controller,
and overseen by the Group’s chief executive officer. In accordance
with the Group's hedging needs and the then foreign exchange
situation, the Group’s financial controller would collect and
analyze information regarding various hedging instruments and
determine hedging ratio, and the Group’s chief executive officer
would then evaluate and make a decision as to whether to enter
into the relevant hedging agreement. The conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

The Group's cash and bank balances were primarily denominated
in RMB, US dollar, Euro and HK dollar. Its operating cash inflows
and outflows were primarily denominated in RMB, US dollar, Euro
and HK dollar. The Group is closely monitoring the exchange rate
movements and regularly reviewing its gearing structure so as to
mitigate the expected exchange rate risk.

RMB EXCHANGE RATE RISK

The Group’s major revenue is principally denominated in US dollar,
Euro, RMB and HK dollar, and the Group’s major expenses are
principally denominated in RMB. The Group has not entered into
any agreement for RMB hedging purpose.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BIEE T ()
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There was no change in the capital structure of the Company
during the year, and the Company’s capital included ordinary
shares and other reserves.

PLANS FOR MATERIAL CAPITAL INVESTMENTS

The Group will invest in capacity expansion and investment
projects to capitalize the potential growth of the Group's business
in the coming years in the manner set out in the section headed
“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus of the
Company. Future funding source is mainly from internal resources.

STAFF POLICY

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 3,225 full-time employees
(31 December 2022: 3,313) and 128 workers dispatched to us from
third party staffing companies (31 December 2022: 321).

The Group’'s remuneration policy aims to offer competitive
remuneration packages to recruit, retain and motivate competent
directors and employees. The Group believes the remuneration
packages are reasonable and competitive and in line with market
trends. The Group has put in place a share award scheme for
its directors and employees in a bid to provide a competitive
remuneration packages for the Group's long term growth and
development. The Group also provides appropriate training and
development programmes to its employees to enhance the staff's
work ability and personal performance.

The Group has implemented training programmes for the
employees to meet different job requirements. The Group believes
that these initiatives have contributed to increasing employees’
productivity.

As required by the PRC regulations, the Group makes contributions
to mandatory social security funds for the benefits of its PRC
employees which provide pension insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance, maternity
insurance and housing funds.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has made no
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries (2022: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2022: Nil).

PROSPECTS

Data such as the U.S. gross domestic product (GDP) in 2023
shows that the U.S. economic momentum is still resilient. Inflation
has fallen significantly, coupled with a solid job market and good
consumption conditions, supporting the market's confidence in a
soft landing of the U.S. economy. European countries have used
tax cuts, loans, subsidies and other financial means to support
companies and revive their economies. The PRC has also launched
a number of revitalization plans to rebuild market confidence
and stimulate consumer demand. The destocking of overseas
consumer electronics products at the retail level has basically
come to an end, and the life cycle of the products purchased by
consumers during the epidemic has also concluded. In addition,
the rapid development of artificial intelligence (Al) applications has
driven the upgrading of consumer electronics products. Consumer
electronics industry is expected to usher in a strong recovery. The
Group's domestic businesses have also been growing steadily. In
recent years, many PRC companies have successfully undergone
overseas business expansion with stricter product quality
requirements. The demand for high-precision plastic components
and molds continues to grow, providing the Group with many
opportunities. The Group is co-operating with brand owners
in actively preparing to launch new products, and is cautiously
optimistic about business development in 2024.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BIEE T ()

The Group strives for excellence and continues to promote the
continuous improvement of plastic injection molding technology.
The development of new products integrating silicone and
traditional plastic injection molding technology provides more
diversified product solutions and enriches the product portfolio.
Liquid silicone products have a variety of properties, including the
ability to remain flexible at low temperatures and withstand high
temperatures for short periods. They have a variety of hardnesses
and are suitable for the production of consumer electronics,
medical equipment, optical products, sealing parts, leisure
equipment and other products and can be used in various harsh
scenarios. At the same time, the Group has also introduced the
new technology Printing Direct Structure (PDS), a circuit printing
technology that can be used in medical equipment, electronic
products, sports equipment, clothing and other industries, with
a wide range of applications, providing customers with low-
cost, high compatibility and environmentally friendly production
solutions to support the production requirements of the new
generation of consumer products. Coupled with the original mature
IML process, multi-color material application technology, high-
precision molds with multi-cavity, high-efficiency plastic injection
molding and automation technology, the Group is able to provide
customers with a variety of high-quality products to help them gain
competitive advantages in the consumer market.

Encouraged by policies, innovation and technology have developed
rapidly in the PRC. Several industries have successfully cultivated
the world’'s top companies that provide global market popular
innovative products. These companies possess an international
vision and prioritize quality above all. Leveraging its experience
and strength, the Group collaborates with numerous innovative
technology leaders in Silicon Valley. In the past few years, it has
focused on developing leading customers in the domestic medical
technology and innovative technology industries, fully leveraging
its advantages in high-precision molds and successfully developing
many high-quality domestic customers. Among them, the Group
has successfully co-operated with a leading domestic brand of
bone conduction headphones and an internationally renowned
brand of wearable cameras, and has become their strategic
supplier. The Group’s silicone accessories enhance the comfort,
lightweight design, and hearing protection of bone conduction
headphones, making them highly favored in the market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Being affected by geopolitical risks and trade disputes, global
companies have been actively restructuring their supply chains.
In line with customer trends, the Group successfully established
an overseas production base in Vietnam. The Vietnam factory will
focus on serving consumer electronics brand customers, providing
customers with supply solutions outside of the PRC, and using this
advantage to expand its customer base in Southeast Asia, Europe
and America. The Group will gradually expand the production
capacity of the Vietnam factory in accordance with market
demand. The Group is exploring the layout of another production
base in North America and is considering quickly establishing
plastic injection molding production capacity through mergers
and acquisitions or investments to provide North American
customers with products and services with lower tariff costs, and
at the same time to support the Group to further develop North
American customers. In addition, in response to customer needs,
the management is examining various feasibility of extending the
product value chain to provide customers with one-stop service
and convenience on the one hand, while deeply cultivate industries
with advantages, expand business territory, and lay a more solid
scale for long-term development.

Looking forward to 2024, uncertainties in economic growth remain.
The monetary policies of major central banks in the America and
Europe, geopolitical risks such as the Russia-Ukraine war, the
Israeli-Palestinian conflict, and the Red Sea turmoil are all variables
that affect global recovery. Facing the unpredictable economic
situation, the Group will continue to implement its diversification
strategy and develop new high-quality businesses. At the same
time, it will optimize its internal organizational structure and adopt
Industry 4.0 to optimize its production and operation structure
to improve operating efficiency, further implement measures for
reducing costs and improving efficiency, and persistently create
value for customers and shareholders.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESkaREERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Pui Leung, aged 64, is the chairman of the Group. Mr.
Li is one of the founders of the Group and was appointed as an
executive director on 28 March 2013. He is also the chairman of
the Board and the chairman of the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Li is responsible for the overall management and
strategic planning of the Group. He has accumulated more than
40 years of professional experience in plastic mold fabrication
and plastic injection molding and also experience in business
management in manufacturing industry. Mr. Li together with Mr.
Lee Leung Yiu, a substantial shareholder and an executive director
of the Company, established Tung Kong Machinery Moulding FTY
in Hong Kong in 1983, and have since expanded the Group’s mold
fabrication business into the Mainland China in 1992 and relocated
the operations to Shenzhen.

Mr. Li was elected the “"Winner of Young Industrialist Awards
of Hong Kong” in 2003 and “QOutstanding Person of Shenzhen
Machinery Industry” in 2004, and awarded “Shenzhen Person of
the Year” by Southern Metropolitan Daily in 2013. Mr. Li holds
several social titles, including serving as a committee member and
the convenor of Hong Kong of Shenzhen Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, the President of Guang Ming General
Chamber of Commerce (Industry and Commerce), a committee
member and honorary president of Hong Kong Young Industrialists
Council Foundation, the Chairman of Kowloon City District Road
Safety Campaign Committee, the vice chairman of Federation
of Hong Kong Shenzhen Association Limited, the vice president
of Shenzhen Overseas Chinese International Association, the
executive director of Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce,
the vice chairman of charity committee of Shenzhen Guangming
District and the president of Rotary Club, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong
in 2000. In July 1974, Mr. Li graduated from Yuanzhou Gongshe
Lulan Primary School in Boluo, Guangdong in China, and obtained
a middle school graduation certificate. Mr. Li is also the controlling
shareholder and director of both Eastern Mix Company Limited
(a controlling shareholder of the Company) and Lead Smart
Development Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company),
and the elder brother of Mr. Lee Leung Yiu.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung, Michael, aged 62, is an executive director
and the chief executive officer of the Group. He is also a member
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Yung has
over 30 years of experience in plastic mold fabrication and plastic
injection molding. He was appointed as an executive director of the
Group on 28 March 2013. Mr. Yung is responsible for formulation
and implementation of the business plans of the Group. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Yung acted as a buyer in National
Semiconductor Hong Kong Ltd. from May 1985 to August 1987. He
was promoted to Component Engineer in May 1987. From August
1987 to February 1989, Mr. Yung served at AST Research (Far
East) Ltd. as a procurement engineer. Mr. Yung joined the Group
in 1989 as the general manager and was primarily responsible
for operation management for the injection molding business.
He has been serving as the managing director of the Group since
2000, and is mainly responsible for business development and
the daily operations of the Group’s business. Mr. Yung graduated
from the Department of Industrial Engineering of the University of
Hong Kong with a bachelor’'s degree in Engineering in November
1983. He also graduated from the Centre of Buddhist Studies of
the Faculty of Social Sciences of the University of Hong Kong
with a Master’'s Degree in Buddhist Studies in November 2008.
Mr. Yung is also the shareholder and the director of Eastern Mix
Company Limited (a controlling shareholder of the Company),
and the controlling shareholder and the director of Cheer Union
Development Ltd. (a substantial shareholder of the Company).
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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Mr. Lee Leung Yiu, aged 63, is an executive director of the Group.
He is one of the founders of the Group and was appointed as an
executive director of the Group on 28 March 2013. Mr. Lee has
approximately 40 years of experience in plastic mold fabrication
and plastic injection molding. Mr. Lee alongside Mr. Li Pui Leung
(a controlling shareholder, the Chairman and an executive director
of the Company) established Tung Kong Machinery Moulding
FTY in 1983. He has been serving as the manager whose major
responsibility is the procurement for the Group. From August 2009
to October 2010, Mr. Lee completed the EMBA training classes
of Graduate School of Tsinghua University, China, and obtained a
certificate of completion. In June 2013, Mr. Lee obtained a degree
of master of business administration from the University of Wales,
the United Kingdom. Mr. Lee is also the shareholder and the
director of Eastern Mix Company Limited (a controlling shareholder
of the Company), the controlling shareholder and the director of
Normal Times International Limited (a substantial shareholder of
the Company), and the younger brother of Mr. Li Pui Leung.

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, aged 61, was appointed as an executive
director and the chief financial officer of the Group on 27
November 2013. Mr. Cheung joined the Group in July 2002, as
a corporate financial controller and was mainly responsible for
the finance, taxation, audit and investment of the Group. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Cheung had served at Deloitte Ross
Tohmatsu (currently known as “Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu”) and
served as a financial controller for a FORTUNE 500 manufacturing
company, as well as those manufacturing companies listed in
Hong Kong and the U.S.. He has accumulated over 30 years of
experience in the field of auditing, accounting and corporate
finance. Mr. Cheung graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (the
predecessor of Hong Kong Polytechnic University) department
of accounting in November 1987. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since January 1996
and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since September 1990.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023

ZRB|KE 6358 AAEBRITES - &
BAEBAEIMHAZ—  WH2013F3A28H
BEERAEEBRITES - THERFBR
BRUWERGFBFERA NI0FHESR - =%
ER1983F B ANAMIERBRE - ETFEXR
WITEETMRE LRI BT R B ERR -
B—EEALKERLE  ZZB8EAEEHNKE
B8 - B2009%F 8 A E2010F108 » =hEHE
FEDEE X ZMEITIEEZEMBATHEN - B
BHEXEE - N2013F6 A - THERBRE
BERBEtAS2IHEEELTEN - TREX
EMRERBRAR (KRR ZERRKRE)Z
BRERES - BREBEBERIB(RNARZE
ERR)ZIERBRERES - MEHRALER
e o

RFEFEXRE 615 0 R2013F 11 A27H
BZAAAESERNTESZHREFUKE -
RAEER2002F7AMAREE - HAERQ
AR TZEEAKENNE - W
% B RIRE - MAREER - RAEE
£ 8% Deloitte Ross Tohmatsu (I & & [ 1=
e FAEMR A EEAIIT]) c REEEEM
(FORTUNE)50058 2435~ 7] Je & A1 2E Bl 4
FHRBER RN IERE - F REMI0FH
Bit - ST ROEMBLER - REAER1987
FENARENESRIER(FEEIAE
ATE)EEER - [HE1996F 1 AR AR EF
FARBEHAMAEERXEE KB 1990F9A
BABEETAMASEREE -



Directors and Senior Management (continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy, GBS BBS JP, aged 71, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 27
November 2013. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, and a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Dr. Chung obtained a PhD in Engineering from the University of
Warwick, the United Kingdom in May 2010. In September 2012 he
achieved a PhD of Business Administration from City University
of Macau. He was re-appointed as an Industrial Professor by the
University of Warwick, the United Kingdom in December 2020.
He was awarded a doctorate degree of business administration
honoris causa by the Hong Kong Metropolitan University and an
honorary doctorate degree of business administration by the City
University of Hong Kong in 2023, a doctorate degree of business
administration honoris causa by the University of Macau, and
an honorary doctorate degree of science by the University of
Warwick, the United Kingdom in 2019, an honorary doctorate
degree of business administration by the Lingnan University in
2015, an honorary doctorate degree of business administration
by the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2007 and an honorary
doctorate degree of the University of Newcastle, Australia in
2006 respectively. He was awarded by the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government ("HKSAR Government”) the
Gold Bauhinia Star (GBS) in 2017, the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS)
in 2011, and was appointed as Justice of Peace in 2005. Dr. Chung
was granted the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Award in 1997,
and was further awarded the Industrialist of the Year in 2014.

Dr. Chung was the Chairman of the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries from July 2011 to July 2013 and has been serving as the
Honorary President of the Federation since July 2013. Dr. Chung
was appointed as the Chairman of the Vocational Training Council
from 2018 to 2019. He is currently a Board Member of the West
Kowloon Cultural District Authority, and also the Founder and
Chairman of Bright Future Charitable Foundation.

Dr. Chung is a co-founder and currently a non-executive director
of Techtronic Industries Company Limited (stock code: 669), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, and an independent non-
executive director of Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 345), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, since 24 June
2017. He has also been an independent non-executive director of
Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (stock code: 927), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, since 1 April 2014 until 22 June
2021.

SEZENSREIEEE)

BMFHTES

ELEFEL  SEFAEE  WEFHEE - K
Fat o 715% 0 N2013F 11 A27BEER T
BARNTEBIIENITES - BAHARATE
MEEeXF BEXLZEGKNERIEERZE

KB -

EETR2010F A RHEFAZTIRE
BB RR2012F9 AR MAET
P EIBE T - HN20205 12 A REEE
BAREBBERXZTETIRER - #12023F 5
FIEESEHEREREAYTASBRREE
TEEREE L - 2019F 5D BRI K EME
REBTHEEBLIREERERASHER
LEWEFL  2015FEEMASHERELE
THEREEE LT 2007FESEE T KEH
REBTEERIEL R2006F R MNA T
MABERLEFLT - FRBBFNTHE
BT ([ BB R EAT ) 72017 FEIR S KH)
BT 201NFMREKMEFEE - 2006F % F
BRKFHE EETRI97FLERTEEF
TERE > WR2014FREHRETERSE -

EETR2011F7AE2013F7A S HES
BIXBEXE  TE2013F7TARAZE
HESR - EELTN2018FE2019F R T
BREIRBERE - BEAANLELEEE

ERE e

ERELABIAH EMAREIREEXERARF
(BRI - 669)MIHEEBIMA 2 — + BEZA
Al ZIENITES - INE2017F6A24HBIE
AR LM ARSMTEREEER AR
(BRDRER : 345) B IEMITE S © BN
20144 A1 82202196 5228 BT
R EM AR ETEEEZERERAR (KRS
R - 927) MBI IENITES o

ROIE® (=A%) BRAR] 2023F H

31



32

Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, aged 71, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 27
November 2013. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee, a
member of both the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Tsang is a former partner of
PricewaterhouseCoopers in Hong Kong and China who has over
30 years of experience in auditing and providing support for initial
public offerings and acquisition transactions. Mr. Tsang received
a bachelor’'s degree in business administration from Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of
the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants.

Currently, Mr. Tsang is an independent non-executive director of
the following companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange: China Merchants China Direct Investments Limited
(stock code: 133), Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
(stock code: 460) and Shirble Department Store Holdings (China)
Limited (stock code: 312). He is an independent director of HUYA
Inc. (a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange, stock
code: HUYA). Mr. Tsang was an independent non-executive
director of CA Cultural Technology Group Limited (stock code:
1566) from November 2014 to November 2022.

Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung, aged 43, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company on 20
December 2019. She is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company.

Ms. Leung has practiced as a Barrister in Hong Kong for over 15
years. Ms. Leung obtained her PCLL from the University of Hong
Kong in 2005. She was called to the Bar in Hong Kong in 2006.
Ms. Leung has a broad-based civil practice, undertaking work in
all aspects of contractual and commercial disputes, personal injury
and family law. From 2007 to 2013, Ms. Leung has been a part
time Lecturer of Company Law for the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountant (HKICPA) Practising Certificate Law
Examination and a part-time Lecturer of Corporate and Business
Law for the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, she
has been a non-clinical lecturer in the Department of Professional
Legal Education for PCLL at the Faculty of Law at the University of
Hong Kong since 2022, and is also contributing editor of Archbold
Hong Kong and Company Law of Hong Kong Insolvency. Ms.
Leung was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
FSE Lifestyle Services Limited since with effect from 1 February
2024, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 331).

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023

BEXKE - 7158 0 R20135F11 278 &
ZERRNRRABIUIFNTES - BTRAEAR
ABEZZESER REZESRFTMZE
GKE c BAREABBMPRBEEF KES
STENEBTHAIERA  REFARABBERA
REEEHWEZFIEMZEAEAE#HEI0
TR TAREMBEEPXAENTIRY
ERELTEBN - FRESEHIAGERE
8 hEGMEtamrge 8 RERSTA
REFTAIAEEREE o

BEARATIBMIAMER ETMARNBEL
FUNTES : HERTREESAR AR
MRS 133) - MIRBEIEREBAFRAA
(AR - 460) REBEBEER(FE)BR
ANEIRDSE : 312) o HIFEEHUYA Inc.
(—ERBABER S ETHAT - RHOK
% HUYA) 2 S E S o BEAR2014511
AZE2022F 1M AEAEEXERIZREBR AR
2RISR - 1566) MBI IFAITES o

REHH LT - 435% 0 N2019F 12 A208 &
EEAEERRRBIIIERITES - FMALAR
AIEZEZED  REZEShTHEESK

B o

RUTHEEBAFEARMELBIGF - BL
TR2005FEEFERBHEREXEE -
RN2006 FEBEBREMER - Bt
MPXHERESBEANREFRD  BER
Wl - BEFD - AFBTRERFR -
H2007 5220134 » R+ IR AR B A
BERERGAMASREBEEHAZLAFE
RENREFFARGAMAGHEAZL
AUENBIERE - RE2022FREEEE
REZREBRNEREREREZERES
JERG IR ZE R0 - 1% 71 & Archbold Hong Kong
N Company Law of Hong Kong Insolvency
NGRS  RutEZEREREIERY
BR QA (RO B P ER B (AR DK
5% 0 331)) B IFMITES - 52024%2H
TRRAER °



Directors and Senior Management (continued)

Ms. Leung is serving on various HKSAR Government advisory
committees and has actively participated in many social services
and public offices. She has served as a board member of the Hong
Kong Dance Company from October 2020, co-opted member of the
audit committee of the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority
from January 2021, member of the Committee on the Promotion
of Civic Education of the Home Affairs Bureau from April 2021,
member of the Advisory Committee on Postservice Employment of
Civil Servants and Member of the Communication and Innovation
Committee UNICEF from July 2021, member of the Agency for
Voluntary Services — Planning & Services Committee of the Hong
Kong Volunteer Recognition Scheme Organizing Committee from
December 2021, chairman of the Appeal Tribunal Panel (Buildings)
from December 2021 and council member of the Hong Kong
Committee for UNICEF from July 2022.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yue Yiu Chung, aged 57, joined the Group in July 2014
as corporate financial controller, and is responsible for the
management of finance, customs declaration and shipping,
information technology, human resources, administration, and
environment, health and safety (“EHS") of the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, he worked for a company listed in the U.S. and
was responsible for the entire Asia Pacific region finance affair.
He has over 30 years of experience in auditing and finance. He
obtained a bachelor’'s degree in accountancy from City University
of Hong Kong. He has also been a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since August 2000.

Mr. Lu Gong Shan, aged 44, is the general manager of the mold
fabrication segment of the Group. Mr. Lu joined the Group in May
2002, and was appointed as the deputy general manager of the
Group in January 2009, who is responsible for the development
of the mold fabrication business, project management and the
management of affairs in respect of technology, quality and
sourcing management. In October 2013, Mr. Lu was appointed as
the general manager of the standard mold business units of the
Group, and the responsibility is for the overall management of the
standard mold business units. Mr. Lu graduated from Zhengzhou
University of Light Industry in July 2000 with a diploma of high
molecular material machining specialised in mold design and
manufacturing. In May 2013, Mr. Lu obtained a degree of master of
Business Administration in Executive Management from the Royal
Roads University.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

E=kESREEEE)

Mr. Yim Cham Sum, aged 58, joined the Group and was
appointed as the Operations Director of the plastic components
manufacturing division of the Group in December 2017, whose
responsibility is for the operation management of the plastic
components manufacturing division. He was appointed as the
general manager of the plastic components manufacturing division
of the Group in January 2019 and responsible for the overall
management of the plastic components manufacturing division.
Mr. Yim obtained the Degree of Master of Business Administration
(MBA) from the University of Strathclyde in the U.K. in July 2002.
He had worked in the manufacturing operation management for
over 10 years and has worked of Nypro Plastics & Metal Products
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

Mr. Lok See Yuen Samuel, aged 47, is the chief marketing
director of the plastic components manufacturing division of the
Group. Mr. Lok joined the Group in August 2009 and was appointed
as the chief marketing director of the plastic components
manufacturing division of the Group. He was mainly responsible
for sales and marketing affairs of the plastics components
manufacturing division. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lok had
approximately 8 years of experience in Plastics industry. Mr. Lok
previously served as the application development manager of GE
Plastics Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lok graduated from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology with a bachelor’s
degree in mechanical engineering in November 1998.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, aged 61, is the company secretary of the
Company. Please refer to “Directors and Senior Management
— Executive Directors — Mr. Cheung Fong Wa" for further
information.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023

BEREE - 5858 - M2017F 12 A MAR
EEWEZFERASEE FBANHREER
EIERE  AEIUAMREERTLEE
B o HR2019F 1 ABEEAAERB 2%
BHMEBALE  BEREEETSBA
RS o BRI EMN2002F7 A EBEN AR
University of Strathclyde * E{S T & E1E
T8 - WABIOFU LR EXLEETIEN
Mgk ERENHEEZBRLS&2MOR
JINBERAF] °

BREBRELE 475 AASBEEBAMR
EETE AT M E o R EEP20094 8 A N
ALER  BEEAAEBZBAGREE
EMMBBE - FEZAERTVAGREE
BHHIEERTIGHEREES - TMAKEE
Al BREENERBITERMSFLR - B4
®{EGE Plastics Hong Kong Limitedt f&
FAEAEIE o BEEAEMN1998F 11 ARENE S
BHERE - BUSHM T2 T 24 o

REWE

REERLE 615 RAARNATMWE -
BRREENEMBENFLRE[EZREAE
BE—ATES—RIERE] -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company believes that good corporate governance practices
are very important for maintaining and promoting investors’
confidence and for the sustainable growth of the Group. The Board
sets appropriate policies and implements corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of the Group's
business. The Board is committed to strengthening the Group's
corporate governance practices and ensuring transparency and
accountability of the Company’s operations.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code") contained in Appendix C1
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules"”). The Company regularly reviews its
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG
Code.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with
all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the year
ended 31 December 2023. Key corporate governance principles
and practices of the Company are summarized below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “"Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ dealing in the Company’s securities.

Having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
rEERME(E)

COMPLIANCE WITH THE WRITTEN GUIDELINES
FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY THE
RELEVANT EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines"”), governing securities transactions by employees
including directors or employees of a subsidiary or holding
company of the Company) who are likely to possess inside
information of the Company and/or its securities. No incident
of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the
employees was noted by the Company.

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted period for
dealings in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify its
Directors and relevant employees in advance.

THE BOARD
Board Composition

The Board currently comprises 7 members, consisting of 4
executive Directors and 3 independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Pui Leung (Chairman)

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy

Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time
pursuant to the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive
Directors are expressly identified in all corporate communications
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out under
“Directors and Senior Management” section in this annual report.
Save that Mr. Li Pui Leung and Mr. Lee Leung Yiu are brothers,
none of the members of the Board are related to one another.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer
to ensure a balance of power and authority. The positions of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are currently held by Mr.
Li Pui Leung and Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael respectively.
Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in
writing.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the overall
management and strategic planning of the Group and the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate
governance practices, whereas the Chief Executive Officer
focuses on the day-to-day management of the Group’s business
and implementing objectives, policies, strategies and business
plan of the Group approved and delegated by the Board.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board has at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of
having three independent non-executive Directors (representing at
least one-third of the Board) with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide spectrum
of business and financial expertise, experience and independent
judgment to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
They are invited to serve on the Board Committees of the
Company. Through active participation at Board and Board
Committees meetings, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests, all independent non-
executive Directors have made various contributions to the
effective direction of the Company and provided adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of both the Group and the
shareholders.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in light of the independence guidelines set out in the
said Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
ERERmSE(E)

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All Directors are appointed for a specific term, subject to renewal
upon expiry of the existing term. Each executive Director is
engaged on a service agreement for a term of 3 years, which
may be terminated by either party by not less than 3 months’
written notice. Each of the independent non-executive Directors is
appointed for a term of 3 years.

The procedure and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are laid down in the Company’s Memorandum
and Articles of Association (the “Memorandum and Articles of
Association”). The Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing Board composition, monitoring the appointment of
directors and assessing the independent non-executive Directors.

According to the Memorandum and Articles of Association, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general
meeting provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at an annual general meeting at least once every three years. In
addition, any new Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy in the Board or as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the first annual general meeting after
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. The retiring Directors are eligible for re-election by the
shareholders at the respective general meetings.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The Board is also responsible for implementing
policies in relation to financial matters, which include risk
management and internal controls and compliance, if applicable.
In addition, the Board reviews the financial performance of the
Group, approves investment proposals, nomination of Directors
to the Board and appointment of key management personnel.
These functions are carried out either directly by the Board or
through Board committees such as Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

All Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the shareholders of the Company, the duties
to act honestly and in good faith, in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times and to avoid conflicts of interests.

All Directors have timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management, with a view to ensuring compliance with Board
procedures and all applicable laws and regulations. Any Director
may request for independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company's expenses, upon reasonable
request made to the Board.

Delegation of corporate governance duties

The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee the responsibility
for performing corporate governance functions set out in the code
provision A.2 of Part 2 of the CG Code.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee has reviewed
and monitored the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance with the Model Code and the Employees Written
Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
rEERWE(E)

Delegation of management functions

The Board gives clear directions as to the powers delegated to the
management for the management and administration functions of
the Group, in particular, with respect to the circumstances where
management should report back and obtain prior approval from the
Board before making decisions or entering into any commitments
on behalf of the Group. Matters which are specifically reserved to
the full Board for decision are those involving a conflict of interest
of a substantial shareholder or a Director, material acquisitions
and disposal of assets, corporate or financial restructuring, share
issuance and distribution of dividend, and approval of financial
results and corporate strategies. The Board will review those
issues on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to
the needs of the Group.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director shall receive induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment to ensure he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
he/she is fully aware of Director’'s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Pursuant to code provision C.1.4 of Part 2 of the CG Code,
all directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The existing directors are continually updated on changes
and developments to the Group's business and on the latest
developments in the laws, rules and regulations relating to
Directors’ duties and responsibilities. Directors’ training is an
ongoing process. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’'s expenses. Directors are
requested to provide their training records to the Company for
records.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
PRERmE(E)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Directors have BHE2023F12A3MHItFEE - EE—H&
complied with the code provision C.1.4 of Part 2 of the CG Code on TFTHEERTAE 2D ZTAEXEC.1.4
participation in continuous professional training as follows: & 2EPTHEREREY

M=

Mode of participation

relevant to the Group and on their responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

2EEN
Name of Director a b c d
BEEHR
Executive Directors: HITEE -
Mr. Li Pui Leung MR A v v/ v v
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael SEDLE v v/ v/ v/
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TRBEE v/ 4 4 4
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa Viotad v v v v/
Independent non-executive Directors: B IFHITESE :
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy EEFEL v v/ v v/
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung B+ v v v v
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong WA v v v v
Directors attended a training session conducted by the Company relating to a. EEZ2MTHEAQAMAENIFZIRE  REEHE
directors’ duties and responsibilities under Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, ERBEBR RGN - LR R R E A ERER KA
the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations. BRTHBREREL -
Directors received regular briefings and updates from the Company Secretary/ b. EEEITRAAME AFAAREEEEHEASEE
the Company’s management on the Group's business, operations and corporate B BEBERMEEAEENTHERLEHELR -
governance matters.
Directors attended seminars/forums, which are relevant to their duties and c. EBEEHFETHEEQR MEMENERGES B
responsibilities, organised by professional firms/institutions. ERETHEBNTTE, HE -
Directors read technical bulletins, periodicals and other publications on subjects d EFHETTEERASERESN EMARKRE

BERBATHEEMEBORMAR - BRME
AR o
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
rEERWE(E)

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS

The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board
committees meetings and the general meeting of the Company
held during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out below:

EEHERHE
REENHZE2023F12A31 B ILEERNETT

MAAREFTEREFTEZREEAULMK
RARZHFELEHEINDT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE/ERRE
Annual
Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Name of director Board  Committee = Committee ~ Committee Meeting
BEfE Ezg EREEE §MzE8 REZEE RRBEEAE
Executive Directors: HTEE !
Mr. Li Pui Leung FHREE 6/6 N/A TR N/A RER n 7
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael SRATE 66  NATER 202 NATER n
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TRBEE 6/6 N/A T N/A TER N/A 1A 1
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa REERE 6/6 N/A N @ N/A RER N/A N B 11
Independent non-executive Directors: BUFHTESE
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy ETTEL 6/6 33 202 171 7
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung 2EET+ 6/6 3/3 2/2 I 1
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong DERLE 6/6 33 202 171 N

In addition, the Chairman of the Board held one meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of the
other Directors during the year under review.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established three committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's website and are
available to shareholders upon request. All the Board committees
should report to the Board on their decisions or recommendations
made. All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises 4 members,
namely, Mr. Li Pui Leung (Chairman), Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy,
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, the
majority of which are independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee is responsible to review the structure,
size and composition (including skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board at least once in any financial year and to make
recommendation on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company's corporate strategy.

To ensure that changes to the Board composition can be managed
without undue disruption, the Company has adopted a Director
Nomination Policy. The Policy includes a formal, considered
and transparent procedure for selection, appointment and
reappointment of Directors, as well as plans in place for orderly
succession (if necessary), including periodical review of such
plans.

During the identification of suitable individuals, to ensure the
effective carrying out of the responsibilities by the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider criteria set out as below,
including but not limited to:

e the integrity, experience, skills and professional knowledge;

e a balance of skills, experience and diversity appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business;

e adequate amount of time and effort devoted to the Company;

e contribution to the diversity of the Board;

e participating in Board meetings to bring an independent
judgment on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of
conducts;

e taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;
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TEERRE(E)

e bringing a range of business and financial experience to
the Board, giving the Board and any Committees on which
he or she serves the benefit of his or her skills, expertise,
varied backgrounds and qualifications and diversity through
attendance and participation in the Board/Committee
meetings; and

e scrutinising the Company's performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance.

The Committee identifies suitable individual qualified to become
Board members and makes recommendation to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment of a new Director
(to be an additional Director or fill a casual vacancy as and when
it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors. External recruitment
professionals might be engaged to carry out selection process
when necessary.

The Board Diversity Policy

The Company believes that diversity underpins the successful
operation on an effective Board and embraces diversity as a
means of attaining its strategic objectives. According to the
diversity policy of the Board adopted by the Company, the
Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the policy,
developing and reviewing measurable objectives (including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service)
for implementing the policy, and monitoring the progress on
achieving the measurable objectives set to ensure the continued
effectiveness of the Board. The Board aims to appoint at least
one Director of different gender at any given time to join the
Board when selecting and making recommendation on suitable
candidates for Board appointments. Going forward, the Board will
continue its efforts in ensuring that appropriate balance of gender
diversity is achieved with reference to stakeholders’ expectation
and international and local recommended best practices, with the
ultimate goal of bringing additional female to the Board where
suitable opportunity arises.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has
achieved measurable objectives including (i) at least one-third of
the Board shall be independent non-executive Directors; (ii) at least
one Director is female; (iii) at least one Director shall have obtained
accounting or other professional qualifications; and (iv) at least
one Director shall have relevant experience in the mold fabrication
and plastic manufacturing industry. As at 31 December 2023, the
ratio of male and female in the Company’s workforce (including the
Directors and senior management) is 58% and 42%, respectively,
representing a male-to-female ratio of 1.4:1. As such, the Board
considers that the Company's workforce has achieved gender
diversity between males and females.

To ensure the effectiveness of this Policy, the Nomination
Committee will, as appropriate, review the Nomination Policy,
discuss any revisions that may be required and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval. The
Company believes that greater diversity of Directors is good
for corporate governance and is committed to attract and retain
candidate(s) for Board with a combination of competencies from
the widest possible pool of available talents; and to increase
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in maintaining
the Company’s competitive advantage. The Board will review the
implementation and effectiveness of the Nomination Policy on an
annual basis in accordance with code provision B.1.3. of Part 2 of
the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination
Committee has held 1 meeting (the attendance records of
each Committee member are set out in above section headed
“Directors’ Attendance Records”) and performed the following
major works:

— Review of the policy for the nomination of Directors;

— Review of the structure, size and composition of the Board to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements for the business of the Group;

— Recommendation of the re-election of the retiring Directors
standing for re-election at the 2023 annual general meeting;
and

— Assessment of the independence of all the Company's
independent non-executive Directors.
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rEERWE(E)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises 4 members,
namely, Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy (Chairman), Mr. Yung Kin Cheung
Michael, Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung and Mr. Tsang Wah
Kwong, the majority of which are independent non-executive
Directors.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. The
primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure and reviewing and approving remuneration
proposals of all Directors and the senior management. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance
of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Remuneration
Committee has held 2 meetings (the attendance records of
each Committee member are set out in above section headed
“Directors’ Attendance Records”) and performed the following
major works:

— Review of the remuneration policy and structure of the Group;
— Assessment of the performance of executive Directors;

— Review of the remuneration package of Directors and senior
management; and

— Consideration of the bonus payable to Directors and senior

management for the year 2022 and the proposed salary
increment for the year 2023.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The Remuneration Committee also reviewed matters relating
to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and
the grant of awards pursuant to the share award scheme of
the Company (the “Share Award Scheme”). Award shares are
granted to selected participants after having taken into account
the performance of the Group and the selected participant’'s
contribution for the relevant financial period, such that relevant
performance targets have already been met before any grant is
decided to be made. Accordingly, there is no performance target
stipulated as a condition to vesting of the awards granted to the
senior management of the Company. The purpose of the Share
Award Scheme is to enable the Company to grant awards to
selected participants as recognition of the contribution by the
Group's personnel and to provide them with incentives to retain
them for the continual operation and development of the Group.
The Remuneration Committee is of the view that the grant of the
awards will provide incentives to the senior management to make
contribution to the growth of the Group, and the vesting period
of the awarded shares can safeguard the interest of the Group
to allow the Group to retain contributing personnel and make the
grant of the award shares align with the purpose of the Share
Award Scheme.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the recommendation
model described in provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of Part 2 of the CG Code.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of Part 2 of the CG Code, the
annual remuneration of the members of the senior management,
including those members of senior management who are also
executive Directors, by band for the year ended 31 December 2023
is set out below:

Remuneration band (HK$)

RERRE(E)
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BECEESTE2HS 2 FRIKGE
E15f aRBEEENE (RIERREETRR
TEENRRERBENE) NEZE2023F12
AN BIEFEZFEHMNRAERSENOT -

Number of individual

BRI (BT) AE
2,000,001-2,500,000 1
2,500,001-3,000,000 1
3,000,001-3,500,000 2
3,500,001-4,000,000 2

4,000,001-4,500,000
4,500,001-5,000,000
5,000,001-5,500,000

—

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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rEERWE(E)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises 3 members, namely,
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (Chairman), Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy and
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung. All of them are independent non-
executive Directors.

The responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual matters raised by the external
auditor before submission to the Board.

To review the relationship with external auditor by reference
to the work performed by the auditor, their fees and terms of
engagement and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor.

To review and supervise the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit plan.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee
has held 3 meetings (the attendance records of each Committee
member are set out in above section headed “Directors’
Attendance Records”) and performed the following major works:

Review and discussion of the annual audited financial
statements, results announcement and report for the year
ended 31 December 2022, the related accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and the relevant audit
findings, the report from the management on the Company's
review of the risk management and internal control systems,
and recommendation of the re-appointment of the external
auditor;

Review of the Group's continuing connected transactions and
the compliance of the non-competition undertaking provided
by the Company’s controlling shareholders;

Review of and monitoring the Company's corporate
governance policies and practices, the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, the Company's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and the Employees Written
Guidelines, and the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

— Review and discussion of the interim financial statements,
results announcement and report for the six months ended 30
June 2023, and the related accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group;

— Review and discussion of valuation processes and results of
unlisted equity investments;

— Review of the annual audit plan of PricewaterhouseCoopers,
including the nature and scope of the audit, the fee payable to
them, their reporting obligations and their work plan; and

— Review of the effectiveness and performance of the
Company's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit plan.

The external auditor attended meetings to discuss with the Audit
Committee members on issues arising from the audit and financial
reporting matters.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the appointment of external auditor.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, who fulfils
the qualification requirements laid down in the Listing Rules.
Biographical details of Mr. Cheung are set out under “Directors and
Senior Management” section in this annual report. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, Mr. Cheung has taken not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out in the Independent
Auditor’'s Report on pages 162 to 168.

The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s
auditor, in respect of audit and non-audit services for the year

ended 31 December 2023 are analysed below:

Type of service provided by the external auditor

SN RRBIEM AR SV AR IS B AR

SMNEE R BLED R X BB M =

AARMIINEREBMBEEEUARBEE
2023F12A31B L FEHMBMENZ2HRE T
M BAENE 1625 168H KB LD
WHwER o

BZE2023F12A31BLEE - B BAE
R R BAN 2 ROk B g 5T AN B AT A iR &
RIEZEREEASITAT ¢

Fees paid/payable

gt/ ENER
HK$'000
FET

Audit services — audit fee for the year ended ZERTS — 2202312 H31H
31 December 2023 IEFENZEER 2,972
Type of service provided by related entities of SNEZHET R EE R Fees paid/payable
the external auditor RENREES et ENER
HK$’000
FH&xT

Environmental, Social and RIE - g RERBARE

Governance advisory services 222

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements for each financial year
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group and of the results and cash flows of
the Group for that year and in compliance with relevant law and
disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023, the Directors
have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable, and have prepared disclosure of the financial position
of the Group with reasonable accuracy at any time.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating

to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board believes that sound risk management and internal
control systems are essential to the achievement of the strategic
goals of the Group, and confirmed that the Board is responsible
to set up, maintain and review the effectiveness of such systems.
Management is responsible for the design and implementation
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems
to manage the risk. Good risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance.

The Group’s risk management framework

In order to improve the risk management and internal control
systems, as well as enhance the level of management and risk
prevention capabilities, the Group established its risk management
framework in 2016. The risk management framework includes
the Board and its Audit Committee, senior management and
subsidiary managements, in three levels (Please refer to the below
framework for further details).
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The Group has commissioned a professional risk advisory body
to help build risk management framework, develop the Risk
Assessment Manual, and conduct risk assessments to determine
the nature and extent of the risk. In the risk assessment process,
the management and the Internal Audit Department, have
identified the major risks faced by the Group and ranked these
risks according to the likelihood and the severity of the impact on
the Group, as well as further development of risk management
measures to maintain the risks at an acceptable level.

The Company also has an Internal Audit Department, which is
responsible for performing independent review of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems.

The management and the Internal Audit Department would
report to the Audit Committee and the Board on all findings and
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems,
and makes recommendations. The Audit Committee also ensures
that an overall review of the effectiveness of such systems is
conducted at least annually and put forward to the Board for
consideration.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives; and acknowledges
its responsibility for the risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing their effectiveness.

The Company has also developed its disclosure policy which
provides a general guide to the Company’s directors, officers,
senior management and relevant employees in handling
confidential information, monitoring information disclosure and
responding to enquiries.

The Board and its Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness
of the Company’s risk management and internal control systems
for the year 2023, as well as taking into account the resource,
adequacy of staff qualifications, training and experience of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting and internal audit
functions. Based on the reports submitted by the Internal Audit
Department and the management, the Board considered that the
Company's risk management and internal control systems are
effective and adequate.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The Group has its risk management and internal control policies
and procedures reviewed, to ensure compliance with the new
requirements, and explore opportunities for improvement.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Memorandum and Articles of
Association, any one or more members holding as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the total
voting rights (on a one vote per share basis) in the share capital
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition and for
additional resolutions to be added to the meeting agenda, and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

If a shareholder wishes to put forward proposals at a shareholders’
meeting, the shareholder, who has satisfied the shareholding
requirements set out in the above paragraph headed “Procedures
for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting”,
may follow the same procedures by sending a written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong. The shareholder should
state his/her proposals in the written requisition and submit the
written requisition as early as practicable to enable the Company
Secretary to make necessary arrangement.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
rEERMmE(E)

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
Director for election as a director of the Company at a general
meeting, pursuant to Article 85 of the Memorandum and Articles
of Association, the shareholder (other than the person to be
proposed) should prepare a written notice duly signed by him/
her of his/her intention to propose a person for the election and
a notice duly signed by the person to be proposed of his/her
willingness to be elected. These notices should be lodged at the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong or its share
registrar at least 7 days prior to the date of the general meeting.
Where the notices are submitted after the dispatch of the notice
of the general meeting, the period for the lodgment of the notices
should commence on the day after the dispatch of the notice of the
general meeting and end not later than 7 days prior to the date of
the general meeting.

Shareholders are welcome to send enquiries to the Board to the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Workshop
No. 19, 9th Floor, Block B, Hi-Tech Industrial Centre, No. 491-501
Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

The annual general meetings and twice-yearly business
performance conferences of the Company provide a platform for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen of the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or
in their absence, other members of the respective committees,
and, where applicable, the chairman of the independent Board
committee are available to answer questions at shareholders’
meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report (c

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.tkmold.com where up-to-date information and
updates on the Company’'s business operations and development,
financial information and information are made available for the
shareholders and public access in a timely manner. In addition,
corporate communications such as annual reports, interim reports
and circulars are published in plain language and in both English
and Chinese versions of the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website to facilitate shareholders’ understanding and
shareholders have the right to choose the language (either English
or Chinese) or means of receipt of the corporate communicate
communications (in hard copy or through electronic means).

Following the annual review on the implementation and
effectiveness of the measures relating to shareholders’
communication as set out above, which enables the Company to
carry out effective two-way communication with its shareholders
by way of regular meetings and timely updates of the Company's
financial results and operational developments, the Company
considered that multiple communication channels were in place
and was satisfied that the implementation and effectiveness of the
measures relating to shareholders’ communication was effective.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, the Company has amended
its Memorandum and Articles of Association, details of the
amendments are set out in the circular of the Company dated 28
April 2023. An up-to-date version of the Memorandum and Articles
of Association is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

(continued)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRiIR  HEREBRS

ABOUT THE REPORT

This is the eighth Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(the “Report”) issued by the Group. It will continue to facilitate
the understanding of stakeholders towards the environmental,
social and governance (ESG) performance of the Group by updating
them on the Group's performance in aspects of ESG. The Report
is in Chinese and English. In the event of any discrepancy in text
understanding, the Chinese text shall prevail. The Report has been
published on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the Group (www.tkmold.com).

The reporting scope of the Report covers the ESG performance
of the Group’'s production bases in its Shenzhen headquarters,
Suzhou and Huizhou for the year from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2023 (the “year”).

The Report is prepared in accordance with the four reporting
principles of Materiality, Quantitative, Balance and Consistency
set out in the “"ESG Reporting Guide"” (the “Guide") contained in
Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

e "Materiality”: During the preparation process of the Report,
important stakeholders have been identified, and stakeholder
communication and materiality assessment have been
included as a basis for determining the material ESG issues
taking into consideration of the development strategy, industry
and business conditions of the Group.

e "Quantitative”: The Report sets forth the measurable key
environmental and social performance in the past three years,
and provides comparative descriptions for individual important
and key guantitative information. The Report discloses the
measurable objectives in relation to the environment and
society, so as to assess and validate the effectiveness of the
Group’s work on the environment and society.

e "Balance"”: The Report follows the principle of balance and
objectively displays the current status of ESG of the Group.

e "Consistency”: In the Report, the Group has adopted the same
statistical methods as in previous years, and compared certain
ESG data of the year with the data of previous years. For
details, please refer to the section headed “Overview of Key
Performance Indicators”.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The Group has undertaken to make every endeavour to guarantee
the accuracy and reliability of the materials and information
presented in the Report and strengthened management by
establishing the internal monitoring and formal review procedures.

The Report has been recognised and approved by the Board on 22
March 2024.

Comments or recommendations of stakeholders in aspects of the
Group's ESG performance are greatly valued by the Group. Please
feel free to contact us by the following means:

Group Headquarters 7<% B2
ok FERYmAAEREHFERERLERINEIXER

RIR - e keadms (E)

AEBABZNBEARSTZENER R
S B ERET S - WREM T ASPEEIE X IE
ABERFMNAERE -

AR EDN2024F3 228 EEE=SHER
BEAE o

AEEEOCEITEOSMUHNER TSR
REE - #HEeRERTENKRRRLEMAE
R - FEBA T HABEARE :

Address: TK Technology Park, Tangjia Community, Fenghuang Sub-district, Guangming District,

Shenzhen, the PRC
Tel: ZE 55 | +86-755-23690328

Hong Kong Office &&=
ik BB AL EEILEA91-501555% 0 TEROBEIE195

Address: Workshop No.19, 9th Floor, Block B, Hi-Tech Industrial Centre, 491-501 Castle Peak Road,

Tsuen Wan, N.T., Hong Kong
Tel: EFE  +852-24113628
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

HIGHLIGHTS IN ESG PRACTICE OF TK GROUP

Honours and
Recognition

REERAT

Promoting sustainable
development

EBRHERR

Promoting compliant
operation

BESREE

Creating quality
products

TEREER

Developing a solid
defense line

EEZ2HR

Implementing green
concepts
BTReER

Creating a sustainable
supply chain
TE TR E s

Achievement on talent
value

B AT EE

Engaging in
philanthropic work
B hnmEHE

e NVN
BA

()

FRISEESGRMER

Won the title of Shenzhen Harmonious Labour Relations Enterprise and Industrial Park
R DRV S B AEB R E R T EE R |5

Won the title of Shenzhen Workers Pioneer

T DRI A S8R IRk

Won the 9th Shenzhen Growth Enterprise “Best Employer Nomination Award”
KESENERIKRICE [REREIREHE]

Establishing the ESG Management Committee under the Board of Directors
EEYRESGEHZLZET

Identifying ESG risks and formulating countermeasures

HBRIESGRBR - HIE L

Fulfilling Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) of the United Nations
HIZM S A FHEERBE (SDGs)

Incorporating business ethics training into annual compulsory training courses for all
employees

1R BRI AFE 2 B MEETIRE

Anti-corruption training covered 1,517 people, with an average training time of 1.7 hours per
person

REBEIEE1,517A - AFIIER1.7/)E

All employees have signed the “Employee Confidentiality Agreement”
FEEI#Z(EIRE HZE)
Possessing 357 valid patents

AR EREM3571F

The EHS Committee held 4 meetings in total
EHSZEgHAR4IR S =

Held 2 fire safety emergency drills for all employees
BI25 2 BHEN TR EEER

Conducted 4 quarterly EHS audits of the Group
FE4REEEHSEEEE

Selecting low-carbon and environmentally friendly raw materials and promoting lightweight
design of products

EREMIRREE  HTEREE(LEE

Shenzhen injection molding factory completed technical renovation of printing exhaust gas
and passed the zero waste to landfill certification

RYE LR R TR EN I BE R e - RBEEYTHERE

The Shenzhen factory plans to raise the purchase of green electricity to 1% in 2024

RYIRREET 2024 FBEZEENELESN %

Conducting ESG assessments on 40 suppliers
HA0R L/ 3 F R ESGRT i

Supplier satisfaction rate reached 99%
HIERE M B XEI9%

Training coverage reached 90.3%

BIIEEXZEI0.3%

The average training time for employees was 21.9 hours
8 T FHEIRR21.9/)\6

Employees participated in charity activities for 210 hours
BT 2HENEEE210/NFF

Charitable donations of HK$694,000

Nz B HE694,00078 7T
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The Group integrates the concept of green environmental
protection into all stages of the product life cycle, aiming to reduce
negative impacts on the environment while meeting social needs
and creating sustainable value for the enterprise. In terms of
material selection and design of product, we focus on resource
conservation and environmental protection. We try our best to
reduce the pressure of our business on natural resources and
energy through using low-carbon and environmentally friendly raw
materials and implementing product light-weighting measures.
At the same time, in terms of product material management, we
follow the “3R principle”
continuously improve the efficient use of resources to help the

, hamely Reduce, Reuse and Recycle, and

green and low-carbon transformation of the industry and promote
circular economy and sustainable social development.

Selection of Low-Carbon Materials

The use of low-carbon materials helps reduce the reliance on non-
renewable resources, hereby reducing the negative impact on
climate change during production. We actively use low-carbon
materials in product design and during the production process, and
continue to strengthen the exploration, verification and application
of low-carbon materials. In 2023, among the plastic materials
purchased by Shenzhen injection molding factory, the purchase
amount of environmentally friendly PCR materials accounted for
7%.

Bio-based plastic mobile phones casing

We use bio-based raw materials to replace traditional plastics
while producing mobile phone casing, that is, using natural
and renewable resources such as straw (component: cellulose
+ polyethylene glycol), and mixing it with polycarbonate in a
ratio of 1:1.5. Since straw can absorb carbon dioxide during its
growth, it helps mitigate climate change. By mixing straw with
polycarbonate, the usage of polycarbonate can be significantly
reduced, which reduce the reliance on non-renewable fossil
resources, thereby reducing carbon emissions.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

R - tgkenmE(E)
Product Light-Weighting

Product light-weighting helps reduce raw material consumption,
energy consumption and carbon emissions during the production
process. Through strengthening R&D and innovation, we optimize
product design and reduce unnecessary materials and components
from the source, thereby streamlining the production process and
achieving savings in both environmental resources and production
costs.

Upgrade of protective cover products through light-weighting

We transform and upgrade the protective cover products from
the first-generation Coral 7"TUB to the second-generation Crush
7"TUB. By optimizing product design, improving glue feeding
methods and other measures, we reduce the consumption of raw
materials and achieve the lightweight production of protective
covers.

v Optimizing product design and effectiveness of light-
weighting: We upgrade product appearance and structural
design to reduce the product weight from 65.9g in the first
generation to 54.6g in the second generation. Each single
product saves 11.3g of material, and the weight reduction ratio
reaches 17%.

v Improving the glue feeding method and the effectiveness
of material reduction: We use the method of 2-point needle
valve to feed glue in hot runner and remove materials in
the secondary processing to replace the fine nozzle feeding
method in the first generation, hereby significantly reducing
the weight of the first nozzle from 13.8g in the first generation
to 0.5g in the second generation. Each single product saves
a total of 13.3g of material, and the weight reduction ratio
reaches 96%. As for the second nozzle, we use the method
of 2-point needle valve to feed glue from hot runner to cold
runner to replace the fine nozzle feeding method, hereby
reducing the weight of the nozzle from 19.7g in the first
generation to 15.2g in the second generation. Each single
product saves a total of 4.5g of material, and the weight
reduction ratio reaches 22%.
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Upgrade of protective cover through light-weighting
REEXS(AR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Material Reuse

Material reuse aims to extend the lifespan of materials, thereby
reducing the use of raw materials, energy consumption and waste
generation. We establish a strict material management system to
classify, label and track various materials, with an aim to ensure
the traceability and manageability of materials and provide data
support for subsequent reuse. We actively explore the reuse of
materials. For example, some materials can be reused in different
production processes or products, or transformed into other
valuable materials after appropriate processing. Through practical
innovation, we continue to explore the potential reuse value of
materials, achieve efficient utilization of materials, and alleviate the
pressure on natural resources in our business.

Reuse of production materials

v Cloths: In terms of rags for wiping chemicals during
production, we require the use of both sides of rags for
multiple times, and use repeatedly to extend the lifespan
of the rags. In addition, we also collect waste cloths from
washing light-colored screens or relatively clean waste
cloths to clean dark-colored screens while reducing cloth
consumption and waste generation.

v Packaging: We recycle and reuse the crate for product
shipment many times, achieving efficient usage of materials.

Waste Recycling

Waste recycling refers to the recycle and reuse of discarded
materials, which can reduce the demand for raw materials, reduce
production costs and mitigate the impact on the environment.
We apply scientific and efficient recycling technology and
equipment to establish an efficient recycling process within the
Group, ensuring the full classification, collection and treatment
of waste materials. We also utilize the recycling system outside
the Group to further enhance the recycling and reuse rates of
waste materials, promoting the maximum utilization of resources
and contributing corporate strength towards the development of
circular economy.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR - e RERRSE(E)

Recycling and reuse of production scrap/recyclable waste from
injection molding business

We classify and recycle the scraps and recyclable waste generated
during the injection molding production process (substandard
products, cutting residue and other scraps generated during
the production process) according to the corresponding plastic
properties, product structure and functional requirements.

The person in charge of the injection molding business collects and
crushes different plastic types separately while outsourcing the
pelletizing. Quality inspections are conducted after the pelletized
materials returned to the factory. The pelletized scrap materials
are then matched with new materials, and the quality is tested
according to the plastic properties. Lastly, the pelletized scrap
materials are added into the product at a ratio of 20%. After the
product quality requirements are met, trial production is carried
out and the scrap materials are recycled and added for production
according to the customer'’s requirements.

Recycling of scrap steel resource

We collect, classify, and sell scrap steel and scrap metal, and
transfer the collected scrap steel and scrap metal to corresponding
third-party resource recyclers. Recyclers would reprocess steel
based on actual conditions to restore its utilization value, which can
then be reused in production, thereby reducing the consumption of
disposable materials, reducing production costs, and improving the
utilization efficiency of metal resources.

PROMOTING SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

The Group is committed to developing a sustainable enterprise
by actively integrating ESG issues into the daily operations and
business decision-making processes of the enterprise, and
formulating ESG-related management and control measures,
with an aim to respond to major ESG risks, fulfill corporate social
responsibilities, and achieve internal and external sustainable
development of the Group.

TK Group is committed to improving sustainable development
practices, establishing a sound ESG mechanism and actively
undertaking environmental and social responsibilities, with an aim
to create long-term and stable corporate value for its customers,
brand owners and partners.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Pursuant to the relevant provisions set out in Appendix C2 to
the Listing Rules, the Board has issued a statement on the
following matters. The Board of the Group has attached great
importance to the significant impact that ESG risks may have on
the Company. The Board receives reports from the management
on economic, environmental and social issues every year. The
Board is responsible for supervising and ensuring the effective
implementation of the Group’s ESG-related work, and considers
ESG-related issues when setting the Group’s future business
direction and goals.

The Group continues to optimize its governance structure based
on its own development, establishes a complete risk management
system, defines staged strategic goals and action directions while
continuously improving ESG governance levels, and optimizing
corporate operations.

ESG Governance Structure

The Group attaches great importance to ESG governance. Through
continuously improving the ESG governance system, an effective
and standardized ESG governance structure is established. The
ESG Management Committee under the Board of the Group is
responsible for reviewing and making decisions on major ESG
issues under the authority of the Board. The ESG Management
Committee is chaired by the chairman of the Group. Its members
are selected among relevant employees of the Group based on
the consideration of the Board, and are regularly reviewed by the
Board to ensure that the members have different expertise and
experience, thereby enhancing the diversity and balance of the
committee and ensuring the full implementation of ESG work.

As the highest responsible organization for ESG issues, the
Board of the Group assumes the ultimate responsibility for the
Group’s ESG strategies and reports, and regularly listens to the
work reports of the ESG Management Committee. The ESG
Management Committee holds regular meetings to discuss
ESG-related issues while identifying, evaluating and sequencing
the priority of ESG-related issues. The Committee is also
responsible for supervising and reviewing the ESG strategies,
goals and management systems of the Group, providing guiding
recommendations on ESG risk appetite, risk exposure and risk
management measures, reviewing and guiding the preparation
of ESG reports, and regularly reporting ESG work progress and
results to the Board.

RIR - e keadms (E)

BIEC ETR A sk C2 A8k /9B B & -
EEERUTEEELER AEEEEE
SEERESGRRBRAIGEH ARELENEAF
2 SFSENMTRERMLE BEML
ERECER AEEBRBRASEN
ESGHEMIEBUAENEIT WERIAE
BERREBKFRAKE RN HESGHUBAER
IAEE o

AEERESAREREEBLEARE 2
URENARERER  PRERMEEE
BRTBTE - TERFAESGREAT - B
(LR -

ESGERLRE

AEEREERESGHRE - HETHESGA
BRE BYTAM REHOESGEARR
B AEBEFSTRESGERZES &
EEERETAAHESGEASFHETER
FOREK - ESCERZEEMASHEEERIE
TZRER KERBEZENEEGEAKE
WEARETZRME YHEZTSEHESR -
BARKERETRANEREER - NREE
ENZTERTENE - REEESGIIENEE

i}

o

\

AEEEESIERESGEENRS REH
B MEBESGEE MM EAERREME -
WEMBRESGEEZE SN TFER -
ESGEEZESEHAMEHE - SESGHR
EEHETRS  HHESGHBEEETR
B - A REBEYRF - BEEEMNRBESGE
B - BRRNERGIE  BRESGRRIFRL - &
RO - A REREIEEHER LIRS E
& BERIEZESGHRENRE - Y EHM
EEX2EBRESGIIEEERKR -

RIE® (=A%) BRAR] 2023F

63



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR g kERWmE(E)

Framework of the ESG Management Committee

ESGEEZEEXRE

TKM
Member
General Manager
HAREIE

|

Mold Purchasing
Department

THEEREE B

Mold Quality Department
ITHEmE

Mold Technology
Department

TR R i =B

Mold Machine
Maintenance Department
THE#EER

General Manager (Mold)
Office (EHS)
TRARLH(EHS)
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TKA
Member

Financial Controller of the Group

SEPEE
|

EHS Department of the
Group

SEEHSED

Facility Planning
Department

B

Human Resources
Department

AN EIREB
Administration and
Logistics Department
T2 2D

External Affairs
Management Department
& Labour Union
INEEBBRITE
Chairman Office
EERPENE

Internal Audit Department
of the Group

EERNEEL

Finance Department of the
Group

e lopsid

TKP
Member
General Manager
P cSEd

|

Injection Molding
Materials Department

T EBHRLER

Injection Molding Quality
Department

2B AR

Injection Molding
Technology Department
B R AT ER

Suzhou Administration
Department (EHS)
#HMITBES (EHS)
Huizhou Business Office
(EHS)
BMEZEBINE(EHS)



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

ESG Risk Management

In order to ensure the Board and the ESG Management
Committee identify and assess the ESG risks (including climate
risk) in accordance with the Group's strategic objectives, the
Group establishes an effective ESG governance structure and
ESG reporting policy. The Group establishes a three-layer risk
management structure, comprising the Board, senior management
and management of its subsidiaries. The Group's Internal Audit
Department regularly assesses the adequacy and effectiveness of
the risk management structure.

The Group has adopted the following specific countermeasures for
key ESG risk issues, in order to reduce relevant risks.

Category of ESG Risk
ESGR k3 7l

Countermeasures

P e

Climate change

Rz

Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)

SZETCFD (RIRMEREM 7 & BB NMEIEZR BRI R

Business ethics

BRER

Safe production
ZREE

R FERIFINAFE R B HEFIIRE

production safety accidents

BYZ2EESHRBFEE RIS

Energy management

BEREE FHEBESORA S FERE R hE T2

Exhaust emissions

R SR BE R 4 RE RBR IR R A TT AR BE

ESG Goals and Action Direction

The Group regularly reviews its ESG goals and performance,
covering important ESG issues such as safety management,
human resources, pollutant management, resource consumption,
pollutant discharge, business ethics and compliance management.
The Group has set ESG management targets for pollutant
management and use of resources. The EHS working group
of the Group conducts an annual performance appraisal every
year, and has incorporated ESG performance indicators such as
production safety, energy conservation, environmental protection
and compliant operation into the Company’s appraisal system for
key management personnel and members, so as to facilitate the
achievement of the Company’'s ESG goals.

The Group actively responds to the Sustainable Development
Goals (SDGs) of the United Nations while actively exploring
practical paths for sustainable development through coordination
and cooperation, with an aim to support and contribute to social
sustainable development. The table below sets out our specific
goals and practices:

RIE - L RERWEE)
ESGRMRER

REREESNESGERZEQRARAS
BrREE B 1R - BRI RHAESGRR (BHER
RER) - $’$l§$47ﬁxﬁlﬁ’7ESGf§/é§5%
&ESGEi&Hﬁ AEERIHEFTE  ®
EEE WEARERE=-"ENRARER
% I AR BN EEE SRR E R
RENRDERBRIE -

AEESHHEHESGRRFHRIUAT AL
B RE St - AR EARR AR

Identify climate risks and opportunities with reference to the framework of Task Force on

R B A

Incorporate business ethics training into annual compulsory training courses for all employees

Establish a long-term mechanism for the investigation and management of hidden risks in

Upgrade and reform or eliminate energy-intensive facilities and processes

Upgrade and reform exhaust gas treatment facilities

ESGEBRTESME

$'¥lmﬁ%n ﬁESGETT&Z MK BE

Eﬁ‘Aﬁﬁﬁ % LN éhﬁ
%% SRR Fﬁ%Lﬁ CEREREESE
ZESGHE - AREHUTLAYEENMER
FARXRETESGERBRE - SEEHSI{E/N
HBFRREFERRER  BREEE
BEIRIR é%ﬁ%%%SESG%&MET?%W\“ﬂ
TEEBEABRKEZERBRD  HPQ
BIRESGEHE °

$%l$zﬁ@fﬂ‘éi‘\l—]ﬁ%§*€éET@

(SDGs) ' BERRAFHAEXRERRKE -
SRE - ETFALE - F%ZiATT—ir,f?fJ:?ETA

MEFEER - ARERREKETE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR g kERWmE(E)

Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) of the United Nations Our action
BEETRHER R B Z(SDGs) BRMNTE

SDG 1: NO POVERTY
BiE—: EE8E
End poverty in all its forms everywhere

ERtEFER O ANER

SDG 3: GOOD HEALTH AND WELL-BEING
BiR= : RIF{EERERAL

Ensure healthy lives and promote well-being for
all at all ages

EREENEETR @ RESFHREAFORIL

SDG 4: QUALITY EDUCATION
BiEm : BEHE

Ensure inclusive and equitable quality education
and promote lifelong learning opportunities for
all
BRBAMAFNELEHRE
BHe

SDG 5: GENDER EQUALITY

BiEER : WRITFE

Gender equality is not only a basic human
right, but also a cornerstone of a peaceful,
prosperous and sustainable world
MRFETER—BEEAAE MARMT - &
AT AT RANER

SDG 7: AFFORDABLE AND CLEAN ENERGY
BiEt : EEERARERER

Ensure access to affordable, reliable,
sustainable and modern energy for all
BRAABESBESEYN M FENEREA

BETR

SDG 8:DECENT WORK AND ECONOMIC
GROWTH

BiZEN\ : BB TEMLEER

Promote sustained, inclusive and sustainable

economic growth, full and productive

employment and decent work for all

REFA  BAMAFELEER  REZTHH

EEMREMAABSRE IE

SDG 12: RESPONSIBLE CONSUMPTION AND
PRODUCTION

BiE+=: BETHEEMEE

Ensure sustainable consumption and

production patterns

AT RS B EEER

EEREHGERE

SDG 13: CLIMATE ACTION

BiE+=: RIx1T8

Take urgent action to combat climate change
and its impacts
REREZTHRAREE(CRAZE

SDG 16: PEACE, JUSTICE AND STRONG
INSTITUTIONS

BiRE+75 : FIF - IERBRAKE

Promote peaceful and inclusive societies for

sustainable development, provide access to

justice for all and build effective, accountable

and inclusive institutions at all levels

BEMT  BAMUEEURENBERRE - B

BAHEFHRE  EZRBELEN  AENE

A E R
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Actively participate in charity activities and
promote the joint construction of harmonious
communities

MESERNHEE  (REXFHERE

Ensure the physical and mental health
of employees and improve the working
environment

REETHOERE  HEIIERE

Organize and carry out caring activities on
education to provide children with quality
education

HEFARBODHEEY  ARERHEEHE

Pursue equal employment and diversity
policies, implement equal pay for equal work,
and care for female employees
FTTERERESZ TEBER -
BEREET

ETRI IR -

Plan to purchase and use green electricity to
increase the proportion of clean energy

ESMNBUERAREES - REBRERIGL

Safeguard the legitimate rights and interests
of employees, and optimize the system for
remuneration and benefits

HEB T AEER - BIEFMENHE

Choose to use low-carbon materials and
lightweight design, set goals for environmental
protection and resource efficiency, and
implement action for energy conservation and
emission reduction

BEAEBRMERE SRS
mEE BB TE

 HIERR R ERR

|dentify climate-related risks and opportunities,
and formulate response measures

EIEN 9SG ¥ el gy

Operate in compliance with laws, practice
business ethics, and build a strong foundation
for anti-corruption and advocacy of integrity
FEAREE  BITREERE  £ERBER



The Company actively expands the communication channel
with stakeholders and establishes comprehensive and regular
communication mechanisms to collect and respond to the

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
R g kEREHE(E)

demands of various stakeholders. The table below sets out our

specific work:
Key stakeholders

TERNE

The government

1245}

Concerns and expectations

BrEME

Compliant operation
BRKE

Transparent information
disclosure

ERREESR

Response to climate change

FES mARE (L

Means of communication

BEARX

Work meeting
IEa#

Material submission
MR 3R
Information disclosure

ERRE

Special report

HEER

=
5 jz °

AERNhRERNENBERRE B2
RAL/EEHS - RO EER{DED

ARTEHATE

Our response

EMHEE

Comply with laws and regulations

BPRRER

Increase information disclosure
channels and means
EEEEEBERERERX

Assess the risks brought by
climate change

BREEN Y PN

Investors and
shareholders

REHERER

Sustainable development of the
Group
SEARHEER

Risk management

Je e T 32

Shareholders’ rights and
interests

General meeting

BERAE

Investor communication
conference

REEQRAR

Site visit

BIGER

Improve the ESG governance
structure
TEEESGE AR

Strengthen risk management
hnag b i 18

Customers

5P

Greenhouse gas emissions

BER BB

Customer privacy and
information security

BEFRLEGEERE

Product quality
mEE

Regular communication

EHER

Satisfaction survey

MEEREE

Disclose carbon emissions data

BT EE

Set goals for carbon reduction
il TE Rk B 1%

Optimise customer services

BILEF R

Set production yield targets
RUEEREXBR

Employees
8T

Employees’ career
development

BTRRHRE

Employees’ occupational health
and safety
BTRERREEZS

Guarantee of employees’ rights
and interests
REBE TR

Labour union
I

Suggestion box

BRAE

Employee activity

8 TEE

Broaden career development paths
for employees

hRETREZRRE

Improve the working environment
of employees
MEE T T{ERIRE

Enhance communication channels
with employees
TEETLERRE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR g kERWmE(E)

Key stakeholders Concerns and expectations Means of communication Our response
FTERGE BEEGE BRAFRX M@ e
Suppliers Responsible supply chain Open tender Establish a fair and transparent
e BEFEHERE NGRS supplier assessment process
R - BEROEERRERE
Green procurement Supplier conference
S EIRE HERRE Procure green and
environmentally-friendly materials
R EIRRM A
The public and Community development Community activity Participate in community charity
communities HEEE HEES) projects
N9 2 R A mIEE
Improvement of community Charitable donation
environment HERE Improve the system for
MEIRE R E community investment
Volunteer service TEMEEAGE
EFEE RIS

During the year, in order to ensure the fully consideration of REE  AEERBERADZREFRMNDE D
the expectations and requirements of stakeholders, the Group EMEK - FERAESGEEKE » AT
continued to improve its ESG management level. We identified HIREBEE - RRBERRFHOEBTHEAN

sustainable development topics related to business operations, AFERRZE  KEEHEEREDED
future development and stakeholder concerns, conducted an VEREETTEEEREN G TEsT
assessment of materiality issues based on the topics' impact on EEMEEBRE -

the Group and stakeholders, and drew a materiality issues matrix.

Step 1 - Identification
SR —

Based on industrial comparative analysis, national policies, stakeholder communications and others, 24 material
issues in three categories namely environmental, social, and governance were finally identified.
BERTEHE BRBEK - FHEERERSE  HERHMNLRE 18 BRAZSARHEB24EBEEAES

Step 2 - Evaluation
2 —

A guestionnaire survey on substantive issues was sent to stakeholders to obtain the importance priority of each
issue while sorting out and compiling statistics on the ranking of materiality issues among peers.

HAFHEZEAEEUZERAES  EREEEENEZMELIRT MBS RTEZUHZEZTIER
Step 3 - Confirmation and review
SR -BFAEER

Based on the results of the questionnaire survey and industrial comparative analysis, a matrix of substantive
issues was drawn up, which was reviewed and confirmed by the ESG Management Committee.

REFSHAMGEREFAITHER  @UBENHEEM - HESGEEZ S SHEMLHER -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

=i | e R EARL (4)
R -t RERHE (B
5
= iz
@ Environmental
g RIEEE
oa
O §lt
éﬁ% Social
o HEER
o Hu
5
5k
8% @ Governance
g’ EREE
Low Impact on business High
{li§ HEBHZE =
Core issue

R

Energy management
BEIREE

Business ethics
EESELG

Greenhouse gas
emissions

BEREEHE

Environmental
compliance
BHEEH

Occupational health and
safety
(e Jielsdbres

Anti-corruption

B

Employee development
and training
8 T 3R a3

Prevention of child
labour and forced labour

BriEE T Roaklss T

Information security and
privacy protection
ERREHBIRE

Emission management

B E R

Corporate governance
NG

Climate risks and
opportunities

RIRER R 8

Employees' rights and
interests
BT

Diversity and equal
opportunities

Zlt R VFERE

Product responsibility
EmEE

Responsible supplier
management

BREOHRERER

Customer service and
communication

BRRGMER
Intellectual property
FEKEERE

Product technology
innovation

EE S BRI

@ Water resources

management

KEREE

Responsible
marketing
BEEH

Environment and
natural resources
RERRAER

@ Use of packaging
material

BEMHER

Public welfare and

charity
NEoe
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIE - g hERRE (&)
PROMOTING COMPLIANT OPERATION

SDGs addressed in this chapter
AEFERERNSDGs

16 PEACE, JUSTICE HF.EXS
AND STRONG mAH

INSTITUTIONS
a2

The Group adheres to the operational philosophy of “honesty,
trustworthiness, openness and transparency”, operates in
compliance with laws, practices business ethics, builds a strong
foundation for anti-corruption and advocacy of integrity and
improves the complaint and report handling procedures, with
an aim to jointly develop the corporate integrity and honest
development.

The Group strictly complies with relevant laws and regulations
such as the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China
((hEAREMEARQGE)), the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of
the People's Republic of China ({(FZEAREMBE R T~ EE HF
’% ) ) and the Interim Provisions on Prohibition of Commercial
Bribery ((BARZE I F*HRITAMNEITRE)), and continuously
strengthens the construction of corporate business ethics and
eliminates corruption, bribery, harassment, discrimination and
other commercial violations. In order to correctly guide employees
of the Company and relevant interest groups (such as customers
and suppliers) to comply with laws, regulations and company
guidelines, the Group has formulated the Regulations on Code of
Business Ethics and Management ({2 EERE L EIRETE))
based on its values and applicable laws for business to refine and
clarify business practices and applicable situations. In addition,
the Group has required all subsidiaries to ensure all areas of the
Company's operations have complied with laws, regulations and
ethical standard through self-inspection, special audits, internal
independent audits and other methods, with an aim to establish a
good corporate image.

Business Ethics Training

During the year, in order to strengthen the construction of
business ethics culture, the Group incorporated the Regulations
on Corporate Social Responsibility & Code of Business Ethics
and Management ((EMH T ETIBEEERBLEENRT))
into annual compulsory training courses for all employees, which
covered standards for various aspects including anti-corruption,
fair competition, health and safety, privacy protection and
environmental protection. Employees were required to abide by
regulations, uphold correct ethical concepts, and enhance their
sense of social responsibility.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The Group formulates the Anti-Corruption Policy ({/&BEE)),
the Administrative Measures for Gifts ({ §% & & I %l £ ) ) and
the Administrative Measures for Code of Ethics and Business
Conduct (CGEEREME T AEIESIE)) to clarify requirements
on anti-corruption, anti-fraud, and anti-bribery while establishing
a three-tier anti-corruption monitoring framework to strengthen
risk prevention through assessment and monitoring, training and
communication, and review, with an aim to ensure the effective
implementation of integrity construction. The Group conducts a
comprehensive review on the Anti-Corruption Policy at least once
every two years. The review is reviewed and approved by the
Board of Directors to ensure that the system documents always
reflect the Group's requirements on integrity construction.

Anti-Corruption Management

The Group's Internal Audit Department is responsible for the
review of Organizational internal control system, identification of
operational risks and loopholes, and regularly reporting to senior
management so as to provide guarantee for integrity operations.
The Group fully considers the risks of corruption in its annual
audit plan and conducts risk assessments on financial status and
business processes in key areas while conducting regular anti-
corruption special assessments, with an aim to improve risk
control and risk management capabilities on anti-corruption.

In addition, the Group has taken prompt action for management
gaps and risk issues found, and included such conduct in the
Measures for Handling Disciplinary Negligence and Malpractice
(ELBRIETNRIERBEESIE)) of the Company to prevent
the reoccurrence of similar incidents. During the year, no
corruption litigation cases were found in the Group.

Integrity Culture Construction

The Group advocates a corporate culture of honesty and integrity
and carries out various forms of publicity and educational activities
to improve employees’ awareness of business integrity and self-
discipline. At the same time, the Group continues to deepen the
cooperation with suppliers on integrity through conducting supplier
annual conference every year to conduct education on anti-
corruption, advocacy of integrity and warning for suppliers while
fully implementing the signing of the Supplier Integrity Agreement
(CHEFER B2 2 )) to prevent corruption of suppliers from the
source. During the year, 100% of suppliers in the Group’s mold
business signed the integrity agreement while 88% of suppliers in
the injection molding business signed the integrity agreement.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

QRS NG v AP
RIR g kERWmE(E)
Join hands with suppliers to build an integrity ecosystem

The Group invites suppliers to participate in the annual conference
every year to share experiences and exchange ideas and convey
the Group’'s cultural philosophy of integrity, with an aim to
resolutely distance ourselves from all forms of corruption and
jointly create a clean and honest business ecosystem. In 2023, a
total of 167 suppliers participated in the annual conference and
received publicity and education on integrity awareness.

T IER
TeHBLEINGS
i naxazman
202350 ) RS
TK Holdings Supp! &l Meeting In 2023
EERA+ R Ee =

0 4

Supplier annual conference

HEBFERE

The Group formulates the Administrative Measures for Complaints
(CIEFEEFIE D) to clarify that complaint management follows
the principles of confidentiality, fairness and timeliness, and
continued to improve the report handling mechanism by optimizing
the complaint management process. The Group establishes a
Complaint Handling Committee composed of four Directors to
oversee the complaint handling procedure so as to ensure the
fairness and effectiveness of complaint handling and protect the
rights and interests of stakeholders.

Complaint Channels

The Group provides smooth and diverse complaint channels while
establishing a WeChat complaint platform and the chairman’s
mailbox to provide online and offline complaint channels for
whistle-blowers. The WeChat complaint platform accepts
anonymous complaints to protect the privacy and security of
whistleblowers. Meanwhile, the chairman’s mailbox collects paper
reports and are placed in surveillance blind spot such as canteens,
shipping counters and restrooms, so as to prevent the risk of
leakage.

Complaint Handling Procedure

The Group divides complaints into three types, namely valid
complaints, complaints with unclear information and invalid
complaints. Employees who have no conflicts of interest with the
complaints are responsible for investigating the complaints strictly
in accordance with regulations. Meanwhile, the Group will engage
external independent personnel for investigations (if necessary).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Protection of Whistle-Blowers

In order to protect the legitimate rights and interests of
whistleblowers, the Group strictly implements whistleblower
protection in accordance with the Administrative Measures for
Complaints (& FFEIE 4l )). The Group strictly prohibits any
blackmail, threats and retaliation against whistleblowers. If the
complainant is questioned or retaliated against, he/she may
report to the Internal Audit Department, which shall be dealt with
seriously in accordance with relevant systems.

CREATING QUALITY PRODUCTS

SDGs addressed in this chapter
REFTEENSDGs

DECENT WORK AND WEIEN
ECONOMIC GROWTH =K

o

o

The Group adheres to the concept of quality creates brand,
ensures excellent product quality, focuses on continuous
innovation and strives to improve customer experience so as to
create more value for customers.

The Group adheres to strict quality control standards, continues
to improve product quality and production levels while building an
excellent quality assurance system, with an aim to continuously
improve and surpass itself.

Quality Management System

The Group continues to refine its quality management system
while formulating measures and documents such as the
Management Process for Substandard Products ({( & & @& 27
F2)) and the Quality Control Process for Supplied Materials (7%}

mEHRF2)) in accordance with the international standards and
industry norms, which provide clear direction and action guide for
quality management work.
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During the reporting period, the Group has obtained the following

quality management system certifications:

Quality management system certification

EEEERARRE

ISO 9001 quality management systems
certification
ISO 9001 EEEERAAE

IATF 16949 automotive quality management
systems

IATF 169499 ET X EEEHEE R

HERAN AEEEERTIEEEERR
Ej\J\ an

TK Mold (Shenzhen) Limited
RIRECRIDBRAR]

TK Precision Plastics (Huizhou) Limited
RIBaNEZ CEM)BRAA

TK Techco Silicone Rubber (Huizhou) Limited
RIE=ERBEMNAERAR

TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen) Limited
ROTREENEE ORI BR AR

TK Plastics (Suzhou) Limited
RIBRBRG(EMN)BRAA

TK Techco Silicone Rubber (Huizhou) Limited
RIE=BZRBEMNARAR

TK Plastics (Suzhou) Limited
RIZBRE(EMN)ERAF

ISO 13485 medical devices quality
management systems

SO 12485 B FEMA LB HEE RTRAEE(R

Comprehensive Quality Control

The Group adopts a comprehensive quality control measure by
implementing quality control throughout the entire process of
inspecting supplied materials, manufacturing, and monitoring
of shipments. The Group conducts preliminary on-site guidance
and acceptance before receiving supplied materials to avoid
returns due to substandard quality. In the product manufacturing
process, the Group adopts four steps, i.e. first article sampling,
first article confirmation, patrol inspection and pre-warehousing
inspection, and focuses on promoting precise control to prevent
substandard products from entering into the workshop. Prior to the
delivery of products, the Group conducts testing through scientific
experiment to ensure the product quality by simulating customer’s
production conditions.

Functional testing laboratory

The Group develops and launches the functional testing laboratory,
covering tests for opening force, sealing, drop, constant temperature
and humidity, freezing and others, to significantly improve quality
inspection levels and product testing efficiency, ensure product
quality and reliability, and provide customers with detailed product
performance data and product optimization suggestions.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Fully automatic liquid silicone testing equipment

The Group successfully develops a self-developed fully automatic
liquid silicone testing equipment, which eliminates errors
caused by human operation, greatly improves the efficiency and
qualification rate of micro product testing, and meets the growing
demand for production capacity.

Quality Culture Construction

The Group establishes strict quality standards and management
processes to ensure product and service quality while conducting
regular quality training and exchange activities, improving
employees’ quality awareness and skill levels, and jointly
promoting continuous improvement of product quality.

Lean Six Sigma Training and Practice Project

In 2023, the Group organized and launched the training named
Lean Six Sigma Training and Practice Project ( € & z 7~ 78 1% 35
EERKRERIEHR)) which covered all of its key teams such as
design team, engineering team, quality department and project
department. Through the combination of theoretical learning and
project practice, 5 project practices were successfully completed.
The completion rate of all projects reached 90% or above,
while two of them even achieved 100%, effectively improving
production efficiency and product quality levels.

K FILEAR
TK HOLDINGS
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Lean Six Sigma Training and Practice Project was successfully completed
FEm AR ISR R EBIEE BR T
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The Group continues to adhere to its belief in innovative
research and development, increases investment in research and
development, strengthens protection on intellectual property right,
ensures our technological advantages and market position while
committing to become an industry benchmark.

Innovative Research and Development

The Group actively embraces future challenges and opportunities,
continuously promotes product innovation and development, and
injects new vitality into product innovation. During the year, the
Group focused on product functional innovation and explored
new materials and technologies. Through In Molding Label (IML)
injection molding process, a fully cured hardened sheet was
formed on the product surface to effectively protect the base
material from the impact of external environment and wear, which
enhances the wear-resistant properties of the product, and meets
customer expectations and requirements.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group strictly complies with laws and regulations such as
the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China ((FFZE A RILH
B EF7%£)) and the Enterprise Intellectual Property Management
Specifications ({1 % 4138 & # & 2 ) ) while using legal means
to protect own innovation achievements and respecting the
intellectual rights and interests of others through preventing
infringements. The Group establishes a special award fund
for intellectual property to commend employees who have
made outstanding contributions in the creation, protection and
application of intellectual property and to stimulate the innovative
spirit of employees. As of the end of the reporting period, the
Group owned 357 valid patents'. During the year, the Group
applied for 46 new patents and obtained 56 newly authorized
patents.

The Group is committed to providing excellent after-sales service
while strengthening communication and exchange, focusing on the
protection of customer privacy, improving the after-sales service
system, and establishing a good reputation and credibility.

i Patents include invention patents, utility model patents and design patents
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Customer Communication

The Group establishes a comprehensive customer service
system to ensure the provision of appropriate solutions to
customers while formulating the Management Procedures for
Customer Communication and Feedback ((FEFEBREEER
F2)) to standardize the process of customer feedback, customer
complaint, customer claim and customer satisfaction surveys. In
order to ensure the timely and accurate resolution of customer
problems, on the premise that customer’'s production and
operation are not affected, the Group has stipulated to respond
within 8 hours, take control measures within 24 hours and deal
with relevant issues within 7 days upon receiving customers’
feedback, and will follow up three batches of the same product in
a row to develop improvement measures. In addition, the Group
conducts customer satisfaction surveys several times a year,
performs gap analysis on areas where satisfaction is lower than
expected, so as to continuously optimize products and services.

During the year, the Group conducted 2 satisfaction surveys for its
injection molding business, with an average survey result of 94.2,
and 4 satisfaction surveys for its mold business, with an average
survey result of 87.3.

Product Recall

The Group adheres to the purpose of being responsible to
consumers and specifies that product recall measures would be
immediately taken when customers discover product deficiencies.
The Group would conduct effective cause analysis towards
substandard products and take timely corrective measures to
prevent the reoccurrence of similar incidents. Meanwhiles, the
Group monitors product delivery quality by compiling data on
product recalls and complaints every month. During the year, no
products of the Group were recalled due to safety and health
reasons.

Responsible Marketing

The Group has strictly complied with laws and regulations
related to publicity and marketing such as the Advertising Law
of the People’s Republic of China ({(FIE AR X MEESE)).
The Group pursues the principle of fair and honest trade, avoids
misleading relevant parties, and avoid the adoption of vicious
competition approaches such as price wars to ensure that the
sales and advertising approaches and contents conform to
recognized competition standards. The marketing director of the
Group organizes marketing meetings to evaluate the planning
and implementation of marketing advertisements and review the
legality of sales planning approaches and advertising content, so as
to ensure that the Group's external publicity is true and accurate.
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Information Security and Privacy Protection

In order to ensure the fully protection of customer information,
the Group formulates strict measures and documents such as
the Commercial Information Security Policy ({ & % 2 B & &
77 & ) ), Management Procedures for Commercial Information
Asset Classification KEHEEEEETZREIEEF)), Measures
for Confidentiality Management (({RZEEIEHIE )), Measures for
Information Security Management ({8 Z2EEHIE)), which
strictly regulates processes that involve commercial secret or
customers’ privacy information, such as production and operation,
maintenance of information security of IT system, scientific
research and technology exchanges.

Information security governance

The Group establishes a Commercial Information Security
Committee composed of senior management, which is responsible
for guiding information security construction, regularly reviewing
the effectiveness of information security strategies, and
strengthening information security management and control.
During the year, the Commercial Information Security Committee
of the Group conducted communication meetings on the
inventory requirements, classification, management principles and
improvement of management system for commercial information.

Information security management

The Group implements the Owner responsibility system
for commercial information management, clarifies the main
responsibilities for privacy protection, ensures the proper
implementation of confidentiality on each piece of information,
ensures the confidentiality, authenticity, integrity and security
of information, and improves the Group's information security
management level. The Employee Confidentiality Agreement ({ &
TRZ W) of the Group clearly stipulates the confidentiality
obligations and responsibilities that employees should abide
by when handling customer information and emphasizes the
importance of customer privacy and security. All employees are
required to sign the agreement.

The Group divides commercial information into three confidential
levels based on the direct and indirect impact of the commercial
information, stipulates access permissions and usage restrictions
for different levels of information, and implements strict technical
authorization management to reduce the risk of information
leakage. At the technical level, encryption technology is used
to conduct technical authorization management for operations
such as viewing and copying of commercial information. At the
management level, commercial information management and
permission approval principles are formulated to stipulate access
permissions and usage restrictions for different information,
providing a solid double protection for commercial information
security.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Information security training

In order to strengthen employees’ information and information
security protection awareness and capabilities, the Group
regularly invites external professional consultants to the
Company to conduct commercial information security training
for information management personnel, covering topics such as
practical operations of commercial secret protection, commercial
information security risk assessment, information security
basics and information security system as well as network
security awareness and involving contents of basic knowledge of
information security risks, risk assessment and identification, as
well as handling and prevention of information security risk. During
the year, the Group conducted information security training for 128
employees in important positions.

DEVELOPING A SOLID DEFENSE LINE

SDGs addressed in this chapter
REFrEFEHSDGs

600D HEALTH
5 ﬂl%ﬁlit

s

The Group continues to improve the health and safety
management system, strengthens safety capability building,
comprehensively implements safe production, and creates a safe

e

working environment for employees.

The Group continues to optimize the health and safety
management system, establishes an effective supervision and
inspection mechanism, implements risk assessment management,
strengthens the safety culture construction, and steadily improves
the level of safety management to provide strong support for the
realization of safe production.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR g kERWmE(E)
Safe Production Management System

The Group continues to improve the safe production governance
system, clarifies the main responsibilities of safe production,
and improves the safety management mechanism. The Group
establishes the Environment, Health and Safety (EHS) Committee
at the Board level. The committee is chaired by the chief
executive officer, under which positions such as vice chairman,
person-in-charge of EHS supervision and management and
standing committee members are established. The committee
is responsible for formulating relevant policies and standards,
supervising their implementation, comprehensively guiding and
promoting the safety management of the Group, and holding
regular meetings to review major EHS matters. During the year,
the EHS Committee of the Group held a total of four meetings to
discuss issues such as occupational health and safety supervision.

The Group strictly follows the requirements of laws, regulations
and industry standards. The Group formulates relevant
administrative measures such as the Safety Policy ( { & & 77
#t)) and the Safe Production Responsibility System ({ &2 4 &E
HE4HIE)) to standardize safety operations of employees while
formulating safe production standards to ensure that the enterprise
move forward steadily on a safe and compliant track.

During the reporting period, the Group has obtained the following
occupational health and safety management system certifications:

Occupational health and safety management system certification
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TK Mold (Shenzhen) Limited

RIEACRINER AR

TK Precision Plastics (Huizhou) Limited

RTHERNEZ (BN BR AR

ISO 45001 occupational health and safety
management systems certification

ISO 45001 X RELZ 2 EERRARE

TK Techco Silicone Rubber (Huizhou) Limited
RIE=szRBEMNERAR

TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen) Limited

ROTHENEZ CRID AR AR

TK Plastics (Suzhou) Limited
RIZBRE(EM)ERAF
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Environmental, Social and Governance Repom(conﬂnued)

Safe Production Targets

The Group improves the level of occupational safety and health
management by clarifying business characteristics and risk
identification and formulating corresponding safe production
targets. The following are the safety targets and certain
management plans formulated by the Group during the year:

RIR - HekER®RE (E)
Z24EER

RNEBEBBRABESSFUEMER R - FIE
HENZE2EEBZE  WIRABREL 2 EE
REEKE -UTAAEFEAKERIENE
EEARKMBAERAR :

Safe production targets
RELEERRE

Reducing the
occurrence of
work-related injuries

BRETESIHE

Eliminating fire
incidents

HBE 0B A

Ensuring “six zeroes”
in safe production 2

BRZZEE[AEZR

Management plans
EEHR

e  Conduct routine and quarterly EHS inspections, immediately rectify the issues identified, and
achieve a 100% improvement and response rate to the issues
EHSHERZFERSL - #AMBERFEN - MENE - BEEX100%

e The Business Department conducts a comprehensive EHS self-inspection on the production
site every two weeks
EENOMEBEERSET REHS2HESER

e  Maintain all equipment and facilities according to the maintenance programme

R - RIEZERTTEN00% 81T

e Conduct special inspections on electrical safety every six months
B¥FHEERL2HEREZ

e Conduct annual safety inspections on electric equipment (including power lines, electric
devices and electric heating devices)
BN(RB)FERE2RAUEENEYE - AERRE - ENERE)

e  Conduct regular inspections and regular maintenance on special equipment

g R E e KOoE i E iRl

e Monitor the health of employees in positions with occupational hazards (induction, on-the-job
and resign physical examinations for occupational diseases)
BEEEEHUNEREERER LHE £ - B

e  Fully implement the three levels of safety education
=RR2HERITI00%

e The emergency team participates in EHS inspections, training and drills
EEBMBEEHSIRE « FIIER

e Distribute personal protective equipment to all employees and ensure that all employees
wear their protective equipment correctly
& T Aic 2 K IE #3018 A B 78 A an 100 %

e Achieve a 100% coverage rate of EHS training for all employees

2 EEHSIEIIEEX100%

e  Maintain all equipment and facilities according to the maintenance programme

R RIIEHEARETEI100% AT

Representing no work-related fatal incidents, no serious injury incidents 2 BETTSW  EF5EEWNERALERESHK)
(disability of level 8 or above (including level 8)), no general and serious HE—RRA EREER EANLER ERERE
equipment incidents, no fire incidents, no occupational diseases, and no general E R EIRIBISRER -

and serious environmental pollution incidents.
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The Group takes multiple measures to strengthen the construction
of the safety management system, improve the level of safety
prevention, and enhance the corporate’s safety protection
capabilities and risk response levels.

Safety Risk Assessment

Based on the existing business and processes, the Group sorted
out the risk exposures of each department of the Group, timely and
effectively identified potential risks, and added new risk control
nodes and key points in accordance with the results of special
assessments in key areas to improve its own risk network system.

Safety Hazard Investigation

The Group establishes a long-term mechanism for the investigation
and management of hidden risks in production safety accidents,
which strengthened the main responsibilities of safe production,
established a daily inspection work system, and required the
EHS Management Department to carry out 24-hour on-duty
inspections and regularly conduct special safety inspections, so
as to comprehensively investigate and deal with various safety
hazard and realizing “check erroneous ideas at the outset”. The
Group formulates work plans for different time slots, such as daily
inspections, quarterly inspections and pre-holiday inspections, and
carries out special equipment and facility inspections for electrical
equipment and spreader. If any safety hazards are discovered, a
rectification notice will be issued immediately and the case would
be followed up with corrective measures.

Chemical Management

With reference to the European Union Restriction of Hazardous
Substances Directive (“RoHs"”) and Registration, Evaluation,
Authorisation and Restriction of Chemicals ("REACH") regulation,
the Group formulates the internal Environmental Substance
Control Standards ({IR35 ¥ E 1= Hl15 28 )) to strictly control the
hazardous environmental substances in raw materials, auxiliary
materials and products, and has required suppliers to comply with
relevant standards. The Group has set the maximum concentration
limits for chemical substances such as heavy metals, refractory
organic substances and halogens that are more harmful to the
environment in different materials. Meanwhiles, the Group
formulates measures and documents such as the Administrative
Regulations on Chemical Storage ({{L 2 m B & E # £ )), the
Administrative Regulations on Hazardous Waste Storage ({f2RE&
EIBMTE ) and the Measures for Dust Control (i) EEFE HIFEHE))
and clear working guidelines for employees to ensure the safe use
of chemicals and effectively protect the occupational health rights
of workers.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Incident Response Procedures

The Group focuses on the formulation and implementation
of precautionary measures while formulating the Operational
Guidelines for Emergency Preparedness and Response ({ &=
I 2 EIR{EFE 3] )) to ensure that actions can be taken quickly
and accurately in emergencies. The Group conducts a special
emergency response drill once a year to ensure that employees
are proficient in emergency response methods and improve their
ability to respond to emergencies.

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)

The Group is committed to protecting employees’ occupational
health and has protected the occupational health and safety
of every employee through measures such as providing labour
protection equipment, organizing regular occupational health
examinations and checking the frequency of employees’ use
of protective equipment. At the same time, the Group engages
a third-party to conduct annual occupational health and safety
inspections and issue corresponding reports.

The Group records the quantity of PPE distributed based on the
document named Protective Equipment Distribution Standards
(CPF# A B B & 2 % ) ). Through regularly checking whether
employees have properly utilized PPE such as earplugs, rubber
gloves and protective glasses, the Group has provided adequate
and suitable PPE to reduce the risk of occupational diseases. In
addition, the Group installed pressure reducing valves and noise
reduction air guns in the working area of the production line, which
effectively reduced the noise level, provided a comfortable working
environment, and ensured the safety and stability of the production
process.

Work-Related Injury Management

The Group formulates the Procedures for Treatment and Handling
of Work-related Injury and Occupational Disease ({ T{5R&EB¥5R
BEROREIETRRF)), which clearly pointed out that when a work-
related injury occurs, on-site personnel must ensure that the
injured receive initial treatment and immediately report the case
to the department head or on-site supervisor who would report
to the EHS Management Committee immediately in accordance
with procedural requirements. The Committee will then initiate
the accident investigation process, implement corresponding
corrective measures, and conduct a comprehensive investigation
and address potential risks.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIE - g hERRE (&)
Safety Training

In order to comprehensively strengthen safety literacy, the Group
organized and carried out various types of professional safety
training activities in addition to regular internal safety training
courses to ensure that employees can flexibly respond to various
safety risks.

Occupational Health Protection Action

On 28 November 2023, the Group launched the “Occupational
Health Protection Action” to provide employees with occupational
health training courses, covering prevention and control measures
for dust, noise, and hazardous chemicals, as well as the method
of using personal protective equipment such as anti-sound
earplugs and earmuffs. The action aimed to strengthen employees’
awareness on occupational disease hazards and self-protection
capabilities, and further improve employees’ safety management
levels.

Z2EI

AEBREZEBRELEERE  KTAMLER
MR 2EIIRES - BEBFRZERILN
BEXZERIIED  BRETRBEARHS
BzzEAR -

BRI RETTE

202311280 ' AEEHR [BERRR
EITE) ] - MBLTETEEGEEIRE &
EME - BT - Sh{EROIERRE - XA
EBEE BEEEANERROERA
%t B THEXREENREMERKR
Ee  E—PREEILEEEAKT -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Fire safety emergency drills

The Group regularly conducts fire safety emergency drills,
which simulate real fire scenarios while arranging and organizing
employees to evacuate to safe areas quickly and orderly through
escape passages, with an aim to strengthen employees’
understanding on escape routes and their ability to respond to
emergencies. Through conducting evaluation and summary on
drills, the Group further optimized the escape plan and emergency
measures, effectively implemented fire safety work, and jointly
protected the safe production of the corporate. In 2023, the
Group carried out two fire safety drills. Professional firefighters
introduced the precautions and emergency evacuation procedures
to employees in the event of a fire, and demonstrated the correct
use of fire extinguishers to enhance employees’ ability to escape,
self-rescue in emergencies.

RIR - e keadms (E)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

oo 427 P, v A NE = =
R - e keamE(E)
Traffic safety publicity and training activities

On 13 June 2023, in order to enhance employees’ awareness
on traffic safety, the Group and the traffic police department
jointly launched a traffic safety training activity to demonstrate
the serious consequences of violating traffic rules to employees
through traffic accident cases, allowing employees to deeply
aware of the importance of abiding by traffic rules. Through on-site
demonstrations and practical drills, the correct method of wearing
a helmet is taught, which effectively ensure the safety of oneself
and others.

.

RBLEEREIEE

20236 H13H ' RREEINRALZEE
B AEEHERETMBREARHIALS
BES  BEXBERRFIMEIRTE
RZBHRANBEEER - 8 TRZEHD
BTRBRANEZ N - WRBHESREMN
BERRIEER  EREBRMBEZEN L
ERREEFFMAZE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Emergency medical knowledge training

On 30 March 2023, the Group organized an emergency medical
knowledge training, inviting professional lecturers to explain the
basic knowledge and skills of first aid, such as making emergency
calls, cardiac resuscitation, Heimlich maneuver for foreign body
entrapment, and general methods for hemostasis of trauma and
first aid for burns. The training combines theoretical explanations
with practical drills to allow employees to experience the actual
operation of cardiopulmonary resuscitation, master correct
techniques and precautions, improve their ability to respond to
emergencies, and gain valuable treatment time for the injured.

RIR - B RERWRE (B)
A B

20233 A30R  "EBEMAH T —IH2RE
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# - BEYNREEYRSRE - —REIG
m- BESMTE - BB AERERNE
BREERBZEEHNAN  BEIHFER
OFEENERRE  ZERFBERTDAEE
FIH ReaEHRBEANES  REEF
BEENRUARMAE -

‘ I' “ﬁﬁ%t !

RTSRE () BRAE 2023F%H

87



88

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIE - g hERRE (&)
IMPLEMENTING GREEN CONCEPTS

SDGs addressed in this chapter
AEFERERNSDGs

13 ol

&

The Group firmly practices green production. We establish
a refined environmental management system to clarify the
responsibilities of management personnel at all levels in green
development, conduct comprehensive review on the production
process, and identify sections that involve substantial energy
consumption and pollution discharge. On the basis of meeting
regulatory emission requirements, we take a series of energy-
saving and emission-reduction measures in a targeted manner,
such as optimizing production processes, reducing energy
consumption and reducing waste generated, with an aim to
reduce the impact of our business on the environment. We are
committed to implementing green concepts in all aspects including
production, operations and supply chain management while
continuously launching environmental protection improvement
projects to reduce the waste of environmental resources, improve
environmental performance and create a sustainable production
model. In addition, we have identified climate-related risks and
opportunities with reference to the framework of the Task Force
on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (TCFD), and formulated
response measures for climate change, with an aim to create
a green and low-carbon operation model to promote green and
low-carbon development. Our goal is to actively fulfill social
responsibilities and contribute to environmental protection and
sustainable development while achieving business development.
With our continuous efforts and innovation, we strive to be the
green standard in the industry and lead the industry towards a
more sustainable future.
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The Group takes internal EHS policy as its guidance and continues
to deepen green and environmental protection as well as carbon

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR - e keasmE (@)

NEBARZEHS H # A& R » #HE R4k
BIREMBIREE  HFIA2022F BHE%E

reduction management. We have set the following quantitative F 0 2025F BEEF  FIT T E2LMIREE

environmental targets with 2022 as the base year and 2025 as the =

target year:

Pollutants

VEE ]

Water resources

KXEIR

Energy
BEIR

Greenhouse gases
BERE

BERnR :

Total intensity of air pollutant emissions to decrease by 2%
KRB R BERABEE T 2%

Total intensity of waste generated to decrease by 2%

R HE B EE N2 %

Zero discharge of industrial wastewater

REE TREKTHR

Total intensity of water consumption to decrease by 2%
KB R EFEEE R 2%

Total intensity of energy consumption (such as fuel and electricity) to decrease by 1%
R R E N EERBREBEE TR1%

Total intensity of greenhouse gas emissions to decrease by 1%"
BEREHEEE TE1%"

During the reporting period, the Group has obtained the following
environmental management system certifications:

Environmental management system certification

#H

SHIR AEECDERTIREEERR

R0

REEERARRE

ISO 14001 environmental management

systems certification
ISO 14001 RIEEERARE

*

Includes Scope 1 and Scope 2 greenhouse gas emissions. *

TK Mold (Shenzhen) Limited
RIRECRIDERAT]

TK Precision Plastics (Huizhou) Limited
RIBalEZ (M) BR AR

TK Techco Silicone Rubber (Huizhou) Limited
RIHSZRBEMNBRAF

TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen) Limited
RILBaNEZ ORI BRA A

TK Plastics (Suzhou) Limited
ROTBBRM(EMN)BRAR

BIEEE—FEE AR ERETN -

RIE® (=A%) BRAR] 2023F
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR - e RERRSE(E)

Effective pollutant management is an indispensable part of the
pursuit of sustainable development. The Group establishes a
refined environmental management system and obtained and
continuously updated the ISO 14001 environmental management
system certification to ensure that our production and operation
strictly meet the government’'s environmental protection
requirements. In the early stage of project production, we
assess the environmental impact for all reconstruction and
expansion projects to ensure that the impact of the project on
the environment is within acceptable limits. During the operation
of projects, we invest in the introduction of advanced pollutant
treatment facilities, such as exhaust gas treatment devices and
wastewater treatment systems. These facilities can effectively
reduce the emission of exhaust gas and wastewater while
reducing the concentration of harmful substances. We receive
government supervision and obtain pollutant discharge permits.
The treated exhaust gas and wastewater must undergo strict
testing to ensure that emission standards are met before final
emission. During the year, the Group discharged all pollutants in
compliance with regulations and there was no violation incident of
major pollution to the environment.

The Group strictly abided by relevant laws and regulations such
as the Law of the People’'s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Atmospheric Pollution ({ A% A R X FM B K &5
#5875 )), the Law of the People’'s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environment Pollution Caused by Solid
Wastes (R ZE AR B E 88 RE Y5 RRENIEE)), the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Soil
Contamination (A ZE A R HAFMEL + 1875 227)8)5)), and the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution ({1 ZE A RHFEK)F5HF776875)) and formulates a series
of environmental management measures including the Procedures
for Identification and Assessment of Environmental Factors ((3R3%
= RIFFHEFRFF)), the Procedures for Control of Air Pollution,
Noise and Waste ((ZER )54 « BE - BEEWMEGHEF)), the
Procedures for Operation of Wastewater Treatment Device ({fZ
IKIRIBFEERIEIRTR)), the Operational Guidelines for Emergency
Preparedness and Response ({fEZ%EHMEEIRIEIRS|) and the
Emergency Plan for Environmental Emergencies ({222 IRE E1F
JEZFEZ)). We systematically sort out the pollution discharge of
each process, adopt standardized and effective pollutant treatment
processes and strictly abide by national laws and regulations to
achieve emission standards and minimize the losses caused by
unexpected environmental incidents. We take targeted measures
to systematically identify, prevent and deal with unexpected
environmental incidents that may occur in the factory, such as
air pollution, soil pollution, water pollution or ecological damage.
We will continue to monitor and evaluate the implementation
of the above measures and make necessary adjustments and
improvements based on the actual situation. The Group continues
to improve and strictly implement its environmental management
measures to better fulfill its environmental responsibilities and
make positive contributions to creating a greener and more
sustainable future.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Air Pollutants

The Group has always adhered to the bottom line of environmental
protection while taking effective measures to deal with the
emission of air pollutants. Through upgrading and transforming
exhaust gas treatment processes, we reduce the content of
harmful substances in exhaust gas and reduce the emission of air
pollutants, thereby contributing to protecting blue skies and white
clouds and building a clean home.

(1) Exhaust gas target

RIR - e keadms (E)

S
|

TR

ARBEREBRTRERER - ROE HEEE
HBHRRISRMEEREE - A BB E R E
TERFMEE  BREBRTFNEEVES
B RLRRGERMHENR  BTEHEXRS
- HEBREXEERANE -

(1) EERB®E

Target Total intensity of air pollutant emissions to decrease by 2% (with 2022 as the base year and 2025
BZ as the target year)

IA20225F REEESF » 2026F BB RF - ARFARMHBENRTE T 2%
Initiative in 2023 e collect and treat exhaust gases generated from production workshops in a centralized
202317 Eh manner to achieve 100% compliant in exhaust gas emissions

SRR RIBEESERER

BIHEER100% & AR HFH

e reduce air pollutant emissions through optimizing the exhaust gas treatment process and
improving the secondary exhaust gas treatment process
BLEREERRE REEIERE-—RITE  BIOARSLMBENR

e regularly maintain exhaust gas treatment devices and quarterly engage a third-party to

monitor the concentration of exhaust gases

EHERREERE  BFRERIF=TETRERREER

(2) Exhaust gas treatment

The Group identifies and assesses the sources of emissions for
exhaust gases within the list. The sources and types of exhaust
gas emissions of the Group mainly include organic exhaust gases
and general exhaust gases:

General exhaust gases mainly are exhaust gases generated from
the burning of fossil fuels in stationary and mobile sources, the
main components of which are nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulphur
oxides (SOx) and particulate matter (PM). We take a series of
measures to control the emissions of these exhaust gases,
including improving the combustion process and using low-sulphur
fuel to reduce the generation of sulphur oxides and nitrogen
oxides. At the same time, we regularly inspect and maintain
equipment to ensure its normal operation and reduce particulate
matter emissions.

Q)EREE

AR B S5 5 i a BE R 5 R BEDUR 5l 2
AHE TAE - AN SR B A BE SR B DU A R SRR 38
TZREEHBERMERER

HRERER - EBXEETRNBEREMN
BIEAMBELENER  EXTERIR/A
S (NOx) ~ &AL (SOx) MBH Y
(PM) » IR PIERER— RIFEIEAIE B S LBER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR - e RERRSE(E)

Organic exhaust gases mainly are exhaust gases and dust
generated from spraying, printing and injection molding in the
injection molding workshops, the main components of which are
benzene, toluene, xylene, volatile organic compounds (VOCs),
non-methane hydrocarbons (NMHC) and particulate matter (PM).
In order to effectively treat these exhaust gases, we adopted
compliant collection, treatment and monitoring measures. Exhaust
gases are collected by the gas collection hood, treated by means of
bipolar activated carbon, and finally discharged through chimneys
to high up in the air. Every quarter, we engage a third-party
institution to monitor the concentration of exhaust gases from non-
fugitive and fugitive emissions, so as to ensure that the emissions
meet the local air pollutant emission standards. We regularly
replace the activated carbon used to adsorb organic matters in the
exhaust gas treatment process, and the waste activated carbon is
properly treated as hazardous waste.

Printing exhaust gas renovation in the Shenzhen injection molding
factory

In respond to the request of the government’'s environmental
protection department, the Shenzhen injection molding factory
renovated its existing printing exhaust gas by eliminating the
previous UV treatment method and replacing it with a bipolar
activated carbon method. In other words, the exhaust gas is
collected by the gas collection hood and then treated by the first-
level activated carbon box and the second-level activated carbon
box to meet emission standards. The renovation has effectively
improved the efficiency of waste treatment and further reduced
the emission of harmful substances. A total of 4 systems were
renovated, with a total air treatment volume of 64,000 CMH,
which met the government emission standards and passed the
acceptance inspection.

HREMER T2REILEMEENE
ZEER - HIRIER - TRERAMKME - HX
ERDA/E - BEX - ZBK  BEMEAR/L
&% (VOCs) ~ FEF LA (NMHC) R FEHL
W(PM) » BT BRI ELEER - F IR
ERMEE  REMERNER  BBERE
ETWE BT TEREERD A IRE - &
BEBBEESIBSESN - B8FE - HMHZ
FE2E =00 M BE ORI B AR AN B AR A B T E R
RRE - BERENSEHARSRYBENR
EoHBEREETE RS THEHRR
MR R - BEENBERBIERR
BREMZERE

R 2B B I3 15 R A 2

FEBMRERTFIER - FYELB R EEHIEE
ENm BE R TTEGE - AKUBTHUVERE S
ARAEBREHRAR - EREERSBK
£k KB —REMRER _LEERERER
B OBREZHENR NABEBRRER T
BENRENE E—FRITEEVED
R e AXHBEAERF - BREREE
64,000 CMH + & B BT HE BUS 2 30 B & 18
B

Before the renovation of the
printing treatment exhaust gas system

EN R 52 32 & SRR AR 2 AT
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR - e keasmE (@)

The emissions and emission intensity of the aforementioned tiiSEERENEEERENZREN TR

exhaust gases are shown in the table below: FiR -

Exhaust gas emissions Unit
BER B By 2023 2022 2021
Stationary sources
&l 7 TR BE SR BE B
Benzene kg
S +7 150.3 120.1 36.9
Toluene kg
R T 312.1 253.1 116.4
Xylene kg
—FRX T 308.9 262.8 122.7
Volatile organic compounds (VOCs) kg
mEE Mt E®itam(VoCs) F5 4,359.0 4,008.9 1,742.7
Non-methane hydrocarbons (NMHC) kg
FER KT 48 (NMHC) F5e 3,823.7 3,343.4 667.8
Particulate matter (PM) kg
AR ASRFRF (PM) Fie 1,005.1 1,000.5 346.1
Mobile sources
BEIRBERIEK
Nitrogen oxides emissions kg
REULYHRE T 24.8 11.0 3.7
Sulphur dioxide emissions kg
& bFEEsE = 0.6 0.2 1.3
Particulate matter (PM) kg
AR ABRFRF (PM) = 1.8 0.8 0.5
Total emissions
e
Total exhaust gas emissions kg
BEREEMES F5e 9,986.3 9,000.8 3,038.1
Exhaust gas emission intensity kg/million
BERBEE S HKD revenue

Fr/E8

B 5.1 3.9 1.3

RTHEE (=) BRAOA 2023%:®k 93
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIE g RERHE(E)
Waste

In terms of waste treatment, the Group has always adhered to the
concept of sustainable development while continuously improving
the waste treatment system. We are committed to reducing waste
generation. Through measures such as optimizing production
processes, improving resource utilization efficiency and reducing
waste, waste generation is reduced. In addition, we actively
promote the Zero Waste to Landfill (ZWTL) certification while
always adhering to the principle of sustainable development, and
striving to create a better future.

BERY)

EEEVRETE  AEBEIRERFARE
BRNES  THE=ERVEEER - &
MBEARBLBERMNESL - BBBLEE
MR~ REERNAREMR D REFHE
i REEEMHNELE o 1IN - RAIER
HEBRRYTHIERTIRE - BREBERAF
BERRRA - REIE—EEINEFH R KM

%5 -

(1) Waste target (1) BEEYEZ
Target Total intensity of waste generated to decrease by 2% (with 2022 as the base year and 2025 as
BE the target year)
IA2022F REAESF - 2026F R ARF - BEEVOFREEE TMHE2%
Initiative in 2023 e Collect and dispose of waste in a classified and compliance manner, and optimize production
20231TE processes to achieve waste reduction

DEWEVERRBREREY  BLEEIBUEREZYRE
e |nvestigate waste disposal methods, and implement and obtain the Zero Waste to Landfill

(ZWTL) certification

RAEERERMEESFN - HITEENTHEIEEB WEERE
e Provide waste classification training to employees to raise employees’ awareness of waste

reduction

(2) Waste treatment

The Group has identified processes that generate waste, and
formulated the List of Waste ({EE¥1)5E&)) to clarify the business
lines that generate hazardous and non-hazardous waste and the
specific substances.

The hazardous waste of the Group mainly includes waste ink,
waste paint residue, waste gloves and rags, waste packaging
barrels, waste activated carbon and wastewater from spray paint
generated from the injection molding business, as well as oily
iron filings, waste resin, waste filter, waste cutting fluid and
waste mineral oil from the mold business. The Group collects and
disposes hazardous waste in a classified and centralised manner
according to the regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

v Hazardous wastes are collected in a classified manner
according to the waste treatment procedures and stores them
in the hazardous waste storage rooms;

v Hazardous waste storage rooms have taken anti-leakage
measures, posted corresponding warning sign and installed
air concentration alarms and fire protection and ventilation
facilities to ensure safety;

v We cooperate with qualified professional recycling institutions.
The hazardous waste are regularly handed over to the
institution for recycling and disposal in a compliance manner,
and are recorded in the hazardous waste record book for
management.

The non-hazardous waste of the Group mainly includes daily
garbage and food waste generated from canteens and dormitories,
recyclables such as paper, packaging and scrap steel generated
from offices and factories, and general industrial solid waste
generated in factories such as scraps and defective products. The
Group formulates a series of strict quality management and control
documents, including the Procedures for Control of Waste ((EEZ
YI¥EHIF2 R )) and the Administrative Measures for Procurement

(¥R B8 B 12 # £ )) and conducted regular waste management
training. We sort out the types of waste and collect them in a
classified manner, and take targeted treatment and disposal
measures based on the characteristics of the waste.

v For daily garbage, food waste and other waste, we hand it
all over to the local environmental sanitation department for
disposal;

v For recyclables such as paper, packaging and steel, we firstly
consider internal reuse, and then sell to third-party recyclers
for resource processing;

v For general industrial solid waste, we strive to reduce the
generation of non-hazardous waste from the source and
achieve the reduction in amount and emission of non-
hazardous waste by improving production processes,
increasing qualification rates and reusing resources.

RIR - e keadms (E)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR g kERWmE(E)

The total amount and intensity of the hazardous and non-hazardous AREEEANAEENEEZEREEZYREHTE

waste generated by the Group are shown in the table below: WMREREAR :
Waste generated Unit
BEEYIHERK By 2023 2022 2021
Emission data
B BB
Hazardous waste tonne
BEEEY N 312.3 402.6 494.6
Non-hazardous waste tonne
mERERY) N 1,752.8 1,896.9 2,257.3
Emission intensity
HEREE
Hazardous waste tonne/million HKD
BEREEY revenue
NP
ok 3 0.2 0.2 0.2
Non-hazardous waste tonne/million HKD
mEREEY) revenue
UNUPE=R-
PRS2 0.9 0.8 0.9
(3) Zero Waste To Landfill (3) EEYEEE

The Group actively promotes the Zero Waste to Landfill (ZWTL) RNEEBIRHEITRE R T IHIE (Zero Waste
certification programme. The core mechanism to achieve ZWTL To Landfill + &8 “ZWTL" ) RFEIHEE - EK
is to achieve the “zero” landfill goal through “reduction”, which IWTLEIZ O 2 @8 [RE JEK [ Z 8
means achieving “zero” waste to landfill through taking a series of HEZ - BBBHEN— RV - BOEE
measures to reduce the generation of waste, optimizing the waste MHWES  BILEEVMERRE  BERESF
treatment process, and ensuring disposal of waste in a reasonable AR AHNEE  UWEREEWIZTE
and compliance manner. In 2023, leveraging on its effort in waste 1 0 2023F - AEBRIEL MR R B @
reduction, the Group’s Shenzhen injection molding factory passed RURREEES ) - A T EEEYTIRIERE o

the Zero Waste to Landfill certification.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR @ kEamE (@)

Reuse
B5EFHA
Recycle
BIR{EA e Generation of power from waste
BEEYES
Convert waste e Anaerobic digestion
to energy R HE
REY)REIREE( L e Biofuels
Landfil . iﬁfgﬁ -
pi=}
1=hii) 5 R

ZWTL Performance of Shenzhen Injection Molding Factory in 2023 RN F B R 2023F ZWTLIE B 4834

Classification Data(kg) Proportion(%)
oE HE(TR) 1 E (%)
Recycle

BIRER 1,130,871.2 63.4
Composting

AR 92,275.3 5.2
Reuse (internal)

BEER(REL) 475,647 .4 26.6
Convert waste to energy

EEEMELIRE L 86,150.3 4.8
Total waste

BEEMEE 1,784,944.2 100.0

In terms of waste reduction, we regularly count the amount EEEYHEFE B TEHGEEEN
of domestic garbage, food waste and production waste, and i BRI IR A ENIBNELS WA

are committed to implementing waste reduction measures BTEERERE N BEBRILAEERER
from the source. Through optimizing production and operation 2 sy EEERESRIESERFIE
processes and standardizing material usage requirements and R SROBEEYNEL -

other measures, raw material utilization is improved and waste
generation is reduced.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

m g v T AR NAY =
R - e keamE(E)
Waste liquid treatment optimization training

We provide comprehensive training on material usage
requirements and practical operating specifications for technicians
at the production site, including the accurate measurement
of emulsion concentration and reasonable proportion of using
emulsion to reduce the generation of waste liquid. Through the
optimization, the waste liquid treatment volume during the year
reduced by 10 tons compared with last year.

In terms of waste reuse and recycling, recyclable cardboard,
plastic frames, plastic flat cards, PE bags, blister boxes and other
packaging materials, paper and steel are recycled, reused or
treated as resource, effectively reducing the amount of waste sent
to landfill, and developing a virtuous resource cycle of “production
— consumption — regeneration”.

In terms of convert waste to energy, we proactively investigate the
final disposal method of waste. The final energy conversion form of
waste generated by the injection molding business is mainly waste
incineration to generate electricity, which is of great significance
to promoting waste resource utilization and sustainable energy
development.

Wastewater

The Group adopts a rainwater and sewage separation drainage
system while independently collecting industrial wastewater,
domestic wastewater and rainwater. We classify and treat
different wastewater according to their characteristics and
strictly monitor wastewater discharge to ensure that wastewater
discharge meets relevant environmental protection standards, with
an aim to minimize the negative impact on the environment, and
promote the conservation and recycling of water resources.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

(1) Wastewater target

RIR - e keadms (E)

(1) BEXRBE

Target Zero discharge of industrial wastewater

BiE RFETERBEXRTHER

Initiative in 2023 e  Adopt a rainwater and sewage separation drainage system
2023178 HARIT DMK ERS

e Collect all industrial wastewater and reuse them in production to achieve zero discharge of

industrial wastewater

TREKTHR - 2EKELEBREE

e Strengthen daily maintenance and inspection of wastewater pipes and water treatment

facilities

ISR EEKE 8 RKBEHE R M) B H 4R

(2) Wastewater treatment

Factory wastewater is mainly divided into two categories namely
industrial wastewater and domestic wastewater. We identify the
sources of wastewater discharge and take targeted collection and
treatment measures.

v Industrial wastewater: mainly are wastewater generated from
ultrasonic cleaning and spray tower. Industrial wastewater is
comprehensive collected through the industrial wastewater
pipe network, treated by means of “MBR + reverse osmosis
(RO)" process or integrated spray-painting water circulation
facilities and reused after meeting the industrial washing
water standard, so as to achieve zero discharge of industrial
wastewater;

v Domestic wastewater: generated from offices and living areas,
are discharged into the municipal pipe network in a centralized
manner and handed over to urban sewage treatment plant for
systematic treatment.

We regularly inspect, repair and monitor the operating status of
the wastewater system. The Equipment Department inspects
wastewater collection and treatment facilities on a daily basis and
conducts regular inspection and maintenance on wastewater pipes
and the treatment devices, so as to ensure that the wastewater
pipes are leak-free and the treatment devices operate normally.
The EHS Department strictly monitors wastewater quality and
engages a third-party testing institution every quarter to test
and analyze the compliance of recycled water. The wastewater
treatment system is timely optimized and adjusted based on the
inspection.

(2) BKEE

BEEKEED R T EBEKMEEEKMN
1B ROIAREKOTERR - Bt E R
HRU 5 B R BR 7 ©

v THEEK: TZRBERBREKKE
MIEEKE - BB TERKEM2E W
& FHAIMBR+RE2%E | L&KL —8
{EERKEIRBIEEE @ FERTER
GRAXKEEZEZ2HLEA - BIRTHEEK
THERN

voOERBRREK: RERARETRE - F—
BATRER - AW HI5KEERE
TEGRE -

BMEBRRE#E REREKRGETH
W R EE A BR B KU SR B R IR R K
R EHHEKEE  REREZTHIRE
M BREKEEEMEREBEELE
WiE1T  EHSEPPIRBEBEKKE - R
E=FRARESTERAM DT E A KE
ZER - BEBERAIER R EAREKE
BEGE o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

oo | Y Paras \\Z_\i =
R - e keamE(E)
Renovation in wastewater purification process

In February 2023, the Group changed the environmental protection
process from “UV+ dynamic ionization+ low-temperature plasma”
to “sewage purification+ atomized spray+ secondary adsorption”,
which significantly reduced the generation of wastewater, met
the environmental protection requirement, significantly reduced
energy consumption and saved costs.

BEANOFE e 28

2023%2R  AEEHRRIE [UV+BIBE+
RBERFIEE A [V5KF b+ BLEM+ =
WU - BEEMR A TREKNEE - WET
IRIRESK - W B KIBFEIKEERE  ERAUBKAN o

The changed wastewater treatment system flow

B H IR BEKEIE R ARAZ

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group is committed to achieving the goal of saving resources
in the production process. We have adopted a series of measures
to reduce unnecessary resource consumption, so as to reduce
the pressure on the environment and natural resources while
lowering production costs. We continuously optimized the
operation efficiency of production equipment and enhanced
the utilization efficiency of resource and energy through using
production equipment with low water consumption and energy
consumption, carrying out renovation on water-saving and energy-
saving process, and timely conducting facility inspection and
maintenance. We rely on our energy management system to
regularly monitor and evaluate energy consumption, and promptly
identify and solve energy waste problems.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Water Resources Management

The Group carries out standardized management on water
consumption. During the year, the Group set clear water
consumption targets for the injection molding business, and
implemented a series of water-saving measures in production and
office areas. We have strengthened publicity and education for
employees to improve water-saving awareness among employees,
and regularly monitored water consumption to compare planned
water consumption with actual water consumption, with an
aim to ensure the effectively implementation of actions to save
water resources. Through these measures, we hope to reduce
unnecessary water use and contribute to environmental protection
and sustainable development. Meanwhiles, the areas where the
Group's factories are located have abundant water resources and
matured water supply system and facilities. As such, there is no
difficulty in obtaining water sources.

Water resources management target

RIR - HekER®RE (E)
AEREE

AEBEKE RN ERETRELERE - KN
FREIBEGHE THABNEKERE &4
ENMRABBETT —RIIMEKER o 3
MR THEINSEHE RS 8 ITHE
KEH - WERBERKER - HHAEA
KEMERAKE - BEBHHKERNITE
BEBMER - BBELER - RAFERE
RO TUENAK » BIRFBRENA S
BRBEER - R - NEBE XK HR B
EKERTRE - KRG MEMETE @ £
ERUKRTE TR -

KEREHERIZ

Target Total intensity of water consumption to decrease by 2% (with 2022 as the base year and 2025 as
BEZ the target year)
LA20225F REEESF » 2026F BB RF - KEREFEEE TFE2%
Initiative in 2023 e  Optimise production processes to reduce water consumption
2023178 BILEETE  BAIKERRE

e Replace existing facilities with water-saving production facilities

B AR A E R

e  Strengthen the maintenance and management of ordinary water facilities

hneg B E KRR M E R

Water-saving measures

During the year, the injection molding factory of the Shenzhen
headquarters set internal water-saving targets, and achieved the
water-saving targets through measures such as upgrading water
equipment and optimising water processes. For example, it:

e Transform the original open cooling tower to a water-saving
closed cooling tower to reduce the amount of water used in
the cooling tower and thus effectively save water resources;

e Carry out comprehensive inspections on the use of water
resources, and quickly detect and deal with leakage of pipes,
valves, pumps and other equipment to reduce the ineffective
waste of water resources and improve the efficiency of using
water resource.

S0

R Y| 48R B 28 R [ AN F JE I FE T A BB AR K
B BATRAAKRENEBLAKIZSE
B IERETK B AR - flan

o BRARM L ANKE BER K E
PV AIKSE - DS AR K E -
BREKIKER ;

s XHRARKEREMRBRRE - HHE
BB KREREHBERRER
RARBERAEE - BPKERNE
BORE - Tt TKEREERBRE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR - e RERRSE(E)

The Group's total water resource consumption and intensity are
shown in the table below:

Water consumption Unit

KERHFE B

Total volume m?

S K

Intensity m?/million HKD revenue

. STk E AR

Energy Management

The Group is committed to reducing energy consumption of
production equipment. We establish an energy management
system and formulated a series of energy-saving management
systems and operating procedures to ensure that various energy-
saving measures are effectively implemented. During the year,
the Group set clear power consumption targets for the mold
and injection molding business in the factories, respectively.
Production equipment is comprehensively reviewed and
evaluated to identify high energy consumption equipment and
take corresponding optimization measures. We have also focused
on raising employees’ awareness and participation in energy
conservation through regularly carrying out energy conservation
publicity and training activities to increase employees’
understanding of the importance of energy conservation and their
participation.

Energy management target

Target
BE as the target year)
LA20224F R EAESE - 20255 & HIZEF -
Initiative in 2023 .
202317 Eh modes, so as to reduce energy waste

AEBKEFRARRENEEMTIRAT

2023 2022 2021

203,297.5 233,779.0 247,847.0

104.5 102.6 1083.1
RERERE

AEBBINRELERBHENER - R
MEZTRRREREER - HIE T — 5608
EIRHIEMIRERE - MRZIADEERS
FBERANIT - REE TR T L EBEMRE
DAGETRENBERR  ZEEEMT
HEERR - B S ERRELREERD
BLiER - RMEIERSEINEHEER
M2EE  THRARMESEMBZIES
ReEETHAMEEZMNRBM2EE -

BEREEAIE

Total intensity of energy consumption to decrease by 1% (with 2022 as the base year and 2025

BERMEHREATRE T %

Use the public energy and equipment management platform to adjust equipment operation

ABAANHERRREEETAAEREETER  HOEERE
e |mplement energy-saving renovation projects to improve production energy efficiency

MEfTEIREEIR R - R A E MR K

e  Pay attention to the maintenance and management of ordinary energy-consuming facilities

JEE HE ARG A A E I
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Energy-saving measures

promoted the energy-saving project of public facilities and
equipment, and launched and operated the automatic control
system for air compressors to improve the operating efficiency
of air compressors and implement the power-saving operation
mode of automatic shutdown and start-up during holidays,
which effectively reduces power consumption;

phased out a 450T hydraulic injection molding machine in
February 2023, saving a total of approximately 95,000 kWh of
electricity per year;

renovated the terminal treatment method of spraying exhaust
gas through combining actual situation of Suzhou spraying
and expert review, under which the catalytic combustion
scheme was abandoned and changed to the water treatment +
activated carbon adsorption method, which reduced the annual
energy consumption of regeneration and combustion electric
by a total of 60,000 kWh;

regulated the air-conditioning temperature and set air-
conditioning temperature between 27.5~28°C on the basis of
ensuring production condition to control energy consumption;

strengthened equipment maintenance and manual
intervention, and regularly cleaned heat exchangers, filter
screen of air conditioners and other equipment to ensure their
normal operation and improve electricity efficiency;

posted signage for power-saving on electrical switches to
remind employees’ awareness on power-saving.

RIR - HekER®RE (E)

RBBETE o

MENARERENEED - LETE
TEFE BTG R - RA = EEL
BTHXR  BERHEBRAMNEDEAKSE
BETER - BB T EHERE

202342 AYEK1 4 450TME LB H# -
FHIAFMELIGEEE

HEEBMNEZRERBRL  KRABERFT

C NEERERAIGEE SR 0 RE
%TUW%E;% » PR 7K B B + 5 1 IR R A
FR ERmOBEFMREEREEL L6
BESE

FEERAE  EREEERGHER
T ZERBERTE A27.56~28°C ¢ 4
EiF =2

MR EREMATFH mwﬁﬁ%
nE - EARBIRE WRER

i

17> kmﬁﬁ W&

HEERME CRUSHBEIZH - LU
FEE TEE =
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR - e RERRSE(E)

Renovation of the cooling water tower in Building G of the
Shenzhen injection molding factory

We integrated the closed water tower of four HCT workshops into
the HP2 workshop, replaced the process cooling water pipes of the
HP2 workshop with new ones and connected them to the closed
main pipe. HP2 closed the original open water tower after the
integration, which can save about 140,000kWh of electricity for the
year. In addition, the renovation has also increased the utilization
rate of the closed water tower in Building G and optimized the
quality of the process cooling water of the HP2 workshop.

FRIYE BB IE GIR /2 AR 2aE

BMEHCTO BRI AN KEES EHP2E
M SHP2ER TELAKEFTBTER
ERARXNEE  CEAZHP2EFARMARN
KE - RFEEEEFHES4140,000kWh °
BN - R EERE T GIREAR KB ER
B THP2ER THSAIKIKE o

Renovation of the cooling water tower in Building G

GIRZ ARG &
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Air compressor integration in the Shenzhen injection molding factory

We control the air compressor equipment system through PLC
to achieve joint control of equipment, which reduce power
consumption. The joint control functions mainly include sequential
start and stop, autonomous switching of main and backup
machines, priority activation of frequency converters and single-
point pressure control. When the system is lack of pressure, it can
automatically turn on the backup machine and reasonably control
the number of air compressor put into operation through single-
point pressure control, which can balance the operating time of
the air compressor, optimize the operation mode, avoid frequently
loading and unloading of the machine, reduce the pressure
fluctuation of system, and effectively reduce energy consumption.

RIR - B RERWRE (B)

BRIYI T 2B [ I 2R B
HPEBPLCIERIZERRBERR - BRR
BRIELAR DT - BIZIhE T ERREIERF

T THEEE IR BAXAEEK
BEBNEGHE  EERBATER - 2R
AEYRZERE  BBEINENZE
BiEflZE R NETHE - $@TI§%@
TR BEETI - MRS IREMm -
Eﬂ%@ |3¢{E§/%MLJ77‘J/)§@J ﬁ)&/ﬁz@\ﬁmﬁ/ﬁ
o

2024-04-02 14:33.3

H
H
L
L

| e

Air compressor equipment system
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR g kERWmE(E)

The Group's various types of energy consumption and total energy AEEFREERERENBEREE BN

consumption intensity are shown in the table below: TERAR :
Energy consumption Unit
BEROHEE B 2023 2022 2021

Direct energy

HiERER

Gasoline GJ

FUH HE 1,298.1 566.5 538.8
Coal gas GJ

R HE 1.7 2.1 2.4
Liquefied petroleum gas GJ

RIEAHR = 4.8 3.7 3.8
Direct energy consumption MWh

BERERER IR 362.4 158.9 151.4

Indirect energy

R RER

Electricity MWh

ES) JKEL B 69,010.0 70,762.3 80,158.0
Indirect energy consumption MWh

LR EFE JKEL s 69,010.0 70,762.3 80,158.0

Total consumption

HHFE
Total energy consumption MWh
REREREESE KR 69,372.4 70,921.2 80,309.4
Energy consumption intensity MWh/million HKD
RERERERE revenue
KRS, B B
2 35.7 31.1 33.4
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

In recent years, climate change has led to frequent occurrence
of extreme weather events, which increase corporates’ physical
and transformation risks. Actively responding to climate risks has
become a necessary task and responsibility for every enterprise.
The Group is deeply aware of the importance of taking climate
action. We complied statistics and disclosed carbon emission
data related to its operations. Meanwhiles, in order to ensure the
sustainable development of our business, we deeply identified
climate risks and opportunities related to the Group's business
with reference to the TCFD framework and developed policies and
actions to address climate risks.

Greenhouse Gas

Greenhouse gas emission target

Target
5= as the target year)
LA2022 BEX.SF - [A20265 B 1EF
Initiative in 2023 ]
20231TE

MIBIZE R =R 8

RIR - HekER®RE (E)

ALF IR - RARE LB B im K R IAE - 180
CEEBLRELRR  BREHRERARE
lﬁﬁ-%ﬁ%ﬁ’ﬂ%%&%ﬂﬁ& c REH

ARARBBBRORIERTBNEENE - BN
I%%mﬂﬂ)ﬁi&%@ 2 HER VIR BE R BUR - B
REREBOAIRFERR - M2 ETCFDIE
R RABREEEB S EBHEENREE
P LS - I BB RIRE R0 77 £ BT E) o

ﬁ%

B
Bt
;

M EREELEIL B 1R

Intensity of greenhouse gas emissions to decrease by 1% " (with 2022 as the base year and 2025
ORERBOBEREE TE1%
Compile and verify data for greenhouse gas emissions and expand the scope of inventory

while setting quantitative targets for energy-saving in factories of all business

BHRER L EAREHE  XEBHERECENHER R

e Promote production processes for energy-saving and emission-reduction and use efficient

energy saving facilities

BETRE R EE T - B S EN AL R it

° Purchase green electricity, for example, the Shenzhen factory plans to raise the purchase of

green electricity to 1% in 2024
BEGEET -

Greenhouse gas data statistics

The Group identified that greenhouse gas emissions during
operations mainly arose from indirect emissions (Scope 2)
generated from purchased electricity and, to a lesser extent, direct
emissions (Scope 1) generated from fuel combustion of stationary
sources and mobile sources. In addition, we also took into account
of other indirect greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 3) generated
from business travel of employees and commuting of employees
during the year.

* Includes Scope 1 and Scope 2 greenhouse gas emissions.

RYIRE T #2024 F B EAREHEERN %

R BRI A BN

AREERFELBETHNREREBINE

ERBTIIEBENELNEE _MEFER

HRZEERNBESRREEFRELENEE

—HEHFR - I AEERMERTTE

I%ﬁ&ﬂﬁl PEENBE =-HMHEER
REB TN ©

* BREE-NEE_REREBIW -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR - g RERHE(E)

The data of the Group's greenhouse gas emissions during the year AKFEE  AEBBRERESREEN IR

are shown in the table below: NG
Greenhouse gas emissions Unit
BEREHEK By 2023 2022 2021

Scope 1 - Direct greenhouse gas emissions

HE--ERAEERBHER

Fossil fuel combustion — stationary sources tCO eqv
LR RREHR B — B ER uma aitiRE = 0.4 0.4 0.4
Fossil fuel combustion — mobile sources tCO eqv
fea e E - B R uqaé aitixE = 101.5 44.2 36.6
Equipment and system operation tCO eqv
R R RETE IR uqaé fitixE 2 296.0 105.9 526.1
Greenhouse gas reduction — trees tCO eqv
A= RS RR — AR lﬂiﬁ alkirE= (10.4) (9.9) /
Total Scope 1 emissions tCO eqv
HE—Hmes umﬁ Atixg 2 387.5 140.6 563.1

Scope 2 - Indirect greenhouse gas emissions from energy use

HE—--RREERERBHEN

Purchased electricity tCO eqv
HNBE u@E fitixE= 39,356.4 41,112.9 46,571.8
Total Scope 2 emissions tCO eqv
HE—HREE u@*%ft RE 2 39,356.4 41,112.9 46,571.8

Scope 3 - Indirect greenhouse gas emissions from the value chain

HE=-EEEBRAEREIN

Commuting of employees

tCO eqv

ET@E uﬁ-%ﬂt RE = 214.9 / /
Business travel of employees * tCO eqv
ST EIR* ums atixE S 133.7 94.8 55.2
Total Scope 3 emissions tCO eqv
HE=Hes u@é aitixE = 348.6 94.8 55.2
Total emissions
B
Total greenhouse gas emissions tCO eqv
AEREHRES IﬂiE SitixgE 40,092.5 41,348.3 47,190.1
Greenhouse gas emission intensity tCO, eqv/
BE SRR E miIIion HKD revenue
u@ %ﬂ: }IEEE
BEBEEK 20.6 18.1 19.6

¥ The statistical caliber of business travel of employees during the year is air * Zﬁﬁrélﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬂﬂ“‘ﬁglﬂﬂ%ﬁm
business travel of employees and high-speed rail business travel of employees. BRI - 20224 8220214 B TR RS T O 1E
The statistical caliber of business travel of employees in 2022 and 2021 is air FRME P IR
business travel of employees

AA| \EE
2F M
\ﬂ]]u H
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Climate Risk Management

The Group has, with reference to the TCFD framework guidelines,

incorporated climate change response into the Group’s ESG
management system and established a sound climate risk
management process.

Climate Risk Management Process:

1)

Climate risk identification: the Group conducted extensive
research on domestic and international climate change trends,
as well as technological developments inside and outside the
industry for peer benchmarking, collected relevant opinions
from stakeholders, and combined the Group’s own business
characteristics, in order to identify climate-related risks and
establish a climate risk checklist;

Climate risk assessment: The Group, from a qualitative
perspective, comprehensively assessed the impact of climate
risks on each business segment of the Group, as well as its
duration and intensity;

Climate risk management: The Group, based on the identified
climate risk results, formulated targeted response measures,
regularly evaluated the effectiveness of the measures, and
incorporated climate risks into the management system;

Climate risk disclosure: The Group implemented regular
reporting on climate risk management in an orderly manner,
conducted public information disclosure with reference to the
TCFD framework, in order to respond to the concerns and
expectations of stakeholders and strengthen communication
and cooperation among all parties.

Climate Risks and Opportunities

The Group, with reference to the TCFD framework and extensive
peer research, carried out the identification of climate change
risks (physical risks and transition risks) and opportunities, and

determined the time dimension of their impact (short-term of
1-2 years, medium-term of 3-5 years, long-term of 5-10 years),
specifically analyzed the possible impact of each climate risk and
climate opportunity, formulated targeted response measures

through brainstorming and in-depth discussions, and reflected
them in the Group’s operating strategy.

RIR - e keasmE (@)
REREES
REELETCFDIERIES| - #HRERIERE(
MALBESGERERR - EVREIRIKEAR
E ﬁ//lu*i o
RIRESR EFEIE -
1) RIREERBZSR

NINRIEZE (LB
Eo  EITRIEEHEZ

AR ER B8 18 R 2 38 BT
C ITERSMRT B R
Yo Sk A 2 75 1H A

ER BEAKEBFEBEN - &R
RIEAERER - Wi RIEREREE

2) RixERFMG: LEEAE - 2EFME
RIRE RS AEE R EBRROTE R
EFERRNTE

3) REREBRER : RIEC IR ERR
AR BIEABHEMNREER €
HISH LB B UL - BREERAA
EEER

4) RIRRERKE ﬁfEEﬁ@ﬂﬁE
MEHIER TIE - 2ETCFDIERE
@%E%&@'@%ﬁﬁ%%@&ﬁ%
2R THERAE -

RiRER R HE

REBLETCFDELREMEZ M RZEAN - 7
BRRIEZLRR(EERKRMEERR) R
BRFEATE - HREFENREEE(RH
1-24F ~ R HR3-54F - KHRS-104F) « B8O
FERERBRMREEBI EEENTE -
BRAEDESIEARER - A HIE
FEST TR - 0 H R BRE AR B A 3B 2 SR B
q: o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR - g RERHE(E)

Climate Risk Checklist:

Type of risk Climate risks

ERER RIREER

Physical risks

ERER

Acute Frequent extreme

Feqed weather (Such as
typhoons and floods)
B AR (B -
HEK)

Chronic Rising average

& temperature

FHRELFH

Description for risks

e

1. Extreme weather causes
physical damage to assets
BB ARHEEEKMERE

2. Transportation is blocked,
facilities are damaged, and the
risk of supply chain disruption
increases
BETMA &
JENe

3. Endangering the health and
safety of employees

BEETIHREL2

MR - fLREsE R B

1. Increased electricity
consumption of cooling
equipment such as air
conditioners at operating sites
BeBMNEASRAREREE
51

2. Overheating of production
and transportation equipment
shortens their life

HE - Ehnfpang

)
L
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BESHH

RIZABBFE :

Time dimension Response policies

B EE

Short-term

H

Long-term

=4

47t

1. Prioritize climate-adaptive infrastructure
during the project construction period, such
as wind-proof design, flood-proof design and
other measures
ERAERHE LR EABRRERIEAERE
i W%W%ﬂ At PR E R

2. Strengthen early warning and monitoring of
extreme weather, formulate response plans,
and organize regular natural disaster response
drills and training
ERWHERRNREER  tIEREAER &
HAG B AL E R ERTE

3. Conduct self-examination before disaster
strikes to ensure the safety of facilities and
equipment, prepare emergency supplies
in advance, and conduct organization and
coordination by the safety and environmental
department to ensure smooth communication
and collaboration among various departments
AERGAFEEEL  BRIMARENL 2
1t RAERESDE - TRUPABIHHA - 7
fRE P FIEE B 7

4. Adjust employment policies in a timely manner
according to weather conditions, such as
issuing temporary shutdowns or working from
home to ensure the safety of employees
&ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁ% MERREE
TSEREAS  REETAGETS

1. Establish high temperature monitoring
and early warning system for production
equipment
BUAERBRRENEEE RS

2. Adopt scientific and efficient refrigeration
solutions and conduct regular comprehensive
inspections of equipment to ensure stable
operation under high temperature conditions,
meet production needs while improving the
comfort of the working environment
FOR2aURNtR R ERERELT2E
*A%_Mﬁ& H/Jm{‘m %%ELF{ /ﬁﬁi?
FRERRR I¢%Fm%ﬁﬁ



Type of risk
ERER

Transition risks

HUERR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Climate risks

RIzER

Stricter policies and
regulations
HREEBER

Clean development of
science and technology

HEERILER

Description for risks

e
1.

BEEE

The government has introduced  Long-term
a power rationing policy, and our &£
production department has been
forced to reduce production and
suspend production. The high
energy-consuming equipment
has been replaced. Power
rationing will also affect the
upstream supply chain, causing
an increase in production costs
B LA RERR - £ESBIIHE
WFFE’%%%&%W%R'@
YL LFHIER  ERAEE
&$%M
The government has introduced
energy transformation and
emission reduction policies to
limit carbon emission quotas,
thereby carbon emission
pricing has gradually increased,
increasing compliance costs
T I & R RE AL BRI HEEUR © R
HITKEEERE - REEE B R
& EINERKA

The transformation of technology Long-term
from high emissions to low RH
emissions has led to an increase

in research and development

costs and accelerated the

elimination of high-emission and
high-energy-consuming facilities

Bl B S PR E S R B B R
BRI - RS HE - =R
R

Low-emission clean energy has
gradually replaced high-emission

fossil energy, leading to an

increase in production costs

EHERR B RaRE SIS HEM

M REER - EREER AL

RIR - HekER®RE (E)

Time dimension Response policies

7t

1.

Strengthen communication with the
government and regulatory authorities to
ensure timely understanding of policy changes
and proactively adjust relevant work to adapt
to the changing regulatory environment
M8 BB AMEEHFIER - BRRE T RECR
B TEHRATEALE - LERTEE
EERE
Internal production peak shaving, promoting
energy-saving technological transformation,
and establishing an energy management
system to reasonably control energy
consumption
REEERE - HTHRRY  BIRERR
FAR BB B S
Optimize the inventory and management of
the Group's carbon assets and strengthen
carbon emission supervision and compliance

inspections
BIEEREERERER - MARHERESE
BRRE

Increase research and development efforts

in the field of clean technology and reduce
costs through innovation in clean production
technology
MAERRZEMEHNHENE - BREREE
Befir gl R E R A

Continuously explore and apply green and low-
carbon materials to improve performance and
reduce costs
THRZRERGEERMH - 5
7N

Lay out clean energy and gradually increase
the proportion of green electricity usage. It is
planned that the purchased green electricity of
the Shenzhen factory will reach 1% of the total
electricity consumption in 2024
mRERER  BIRREZE E@j] ERLB &t
220245 R BRAIMNERE T EREEH

PEREREIEAL
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR g kERWmE(E)

Type of risk Climate risks Description for risks Time dimension Response policies
ARER RERER JElig: g REEE FE% 7 gt

Changes in customer 1. Customers' environmental Mid-term 1. Adopt green product design, increase

behavior awareness has changed, and b investment in green product research and

BEFRTAZL their attention and expectations development and innovation, and increase the
for green and low-carbon proportion of green products
products have continued to RRGEERL  BAGBERMERAHE
rise. If we fail to respond to A RAGBERLE
the increase in consumer 2. Actively carry out responsible marketing of
demand for environmentally green products and establish a green and low-
friendly products and implement carbon image
industrial transformation in a EEHESBERBETEE BUKGERY
timely manner, our market share Ed
will decline
ERRRESNEE - HEEER
EmOEIENAETEG LA B
AENBESEEEHRRERT
KOENLERELHY - FER
TEAE TR

Increased stakeholder Investors are demanding Short-term 1. Benchmark against ESG ratings and improve

attention richer and more reliable ESG 5k ESG risk management

FRENEIERS information from companies so H1ZESGATAR - IRAESCRRER
that it can be incorporated into 2. Pay attention to domestic and international
their investment assessment and ESG development trends, and grasp ESG hot
decision-making processes spots in the capital market
REEERGEARHEELE  BA WIEANNESCERBY  LEERTIHESGR
FMESGER ' MEBEMALR B
EHEFIRRBRE 3. Carry out ESG personnel training and
Negative ESG events have a strengthen ESG management within the
negative impact on corporate Group
image HRESGAEE - MK EAFESCER
BEESGEMHENRELHE 4. Strengthen exchanges with partners,
va participate in ESG seminars, and learn about

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023

the latest trends in the industry
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Climate Opportunities:

Climate opportunities

RiFHE

Products and services
EE RS

Policy Support
R F5

Resource efficiency

B E

Energy source

LRI

Climate development
resilience

RIRERINE

Description for

opportunities

PR

Stronger customer preference for green
products and services

B R EEm MR RT T EE S

The introduction of relevant green
policies such as carbon neutrality and
clean energy has a positive guiding
role in the market for green products
and services, providing favorable
opportunities for the Company to
develop new markets and businesses
TR BREREEBREECRLA -
B EERERE TS A G ER| EE
A 7% AREI TS MERRE T B

Energy-saving technologies, resource
recycling and other methods can
improve resource and energy efficiency
g - BREWRERXAIRSERK
BE IR AR

Using clean energy, such as purchasing
green electricity, can reduce carbon
emissions from energy use and increase
business compliance costs
ERBZER - B ERELREIR
& FHRBERR - iEbu%i%é%EﬁX$

Obtain energy saving and emission
reduction benefits and increase product
diversification through climate-friendly
product design, renewable raw material
application and low-carbon production
technology innovation
@i@ﬁﬂiﬁﬂﬂ?@uuﬂﬁ A B4EREE
FA R AR Ak A B R A AT - 2 K R B AR AR
& ENERNZ R

RIR - HekER®RE (E)

RIRHE

Time dimension

REEE

Mid-term
HH

Long-term

=

Mid-term
i Hj

Long-term

231

Mid-term
i Hj

Response policies

e 75 8t

Follow market trends, actively develop green
and low-carbon products, and manage product
carbon footprints to meet customer needs and
improve product competitiveness

IEfET%iBE  BRREGEERER  ERER
TR - AmE B BRI REERRT N

With the help of policy support, further
promote the design and production of green
products in the future, assist the exploration
and development of carbon asset management
solutions and services, and promote the
sustainable development of the Group
EOBRRZR  E—SHBRRECERNRTHE
HE  BNREEEBRARTRBHREEFME -
REREFEER

Vigorously develop energy-saving technology,
resource recycling technology and other
optimization projects, reduce energy and
resource consumption, and save production
costs
Kﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé&?ﬁ
REEIREERERE -

BREREMEFEIEER - [
B4 BN

Explore the use of clean energy, plan to

purchase and gradually increase the use of

green electricity, and reduce business carbon

emissions

RRERBZER  EBETE
BB A LL - BEERTSIRBER

B INAREE SN

Promote product reduction design, innovatively
apply environmentally friendly renewable raw
materials, enhance the climate development
resilience of the Group's business, and promote
the low-carbon transition of the business and the
growth of operating revenue
HEEDAERE - AFERRRAIBERE -
EaREEBNRGEERINL - HEEKERER
REERARIER

RIE® (=A%) BRAR] 2023F
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIE - g hERRE (&)
CREATING A SUSTAINABLE SUPPLY CHAIN

SDGs addressed in this chapter
AEFERERNSDGs

DECENT WORK AND HEIER 12 RESPONSIBLE 12 MBHE
ECONOMIC GROWTH e GONSUMPTION MBS
ANDPRODUCTION

i B CO

o

4N O

In order to promote the coordinated development of the
environment and economy, the Group enhances supplier
management and audit systems, actively implements responsible
procurement, promotes the sustainable development of the supply
chain, and creates a transparent, green and recyclable supply
chain.

The Group persists in the principle of integrity and transparency
in management, strengthens supply chain management and
supervision mechanisms, and actively carries out exchanges and
cooperation to jointly promote the development of the industry.

Supplier Management

The Group formulates measures and documents such as the
Supplier Management Procedures (£ EE BB+ )) and the
Supplier Management Process ((tfEREIEMIZ)) to clarify the
processes of supplier development, engagement, exceptional case
handling and regular review, to effectively manage supply chain
resources, and to create a fair, just and open supplier cooperation
platform. During the Year, the Group has continued to improve its
supplier management process and removed the overlapping parts
in the management system of BOM suppliers and non-BOM to
ensure the simplicity and consistency of the process and avoid
operational confusion and redundancy.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023

TEFRE AR

AEBREYREACENHBRER &
HEBREEMELHE BHRETEER
BRI RERR  BIEER
REME] RROHEER -

AEBEETHEEANEERA - AH
ERERMEERY  BHRARIRAE -
HRMEEEXEER

HEEEE

AEEHE(REREERERER) (HEREE
AR FHIE X - R ERAE - R
ERREREHRFIERE AREEHEE
BR - EERAF - RE - ARANHEESE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

ESG Assessment of Suppliers

The Group regards ESG factors as an important factor to conduct
comprehensive assessment on suppliers and fully considers the
environmental and social risks of suppliers, so as to drive suppliers
to improve their ESG management levels. During the Year, the
Group conducted ESG assessment on 40 suppliers, all of them met

RIR - HekER®RE (E)
EHESGHA

AEERESCRRERAHERFHNERZR
RETEEEZE AN ERHEEHNRRE
HERk - REHEHIETESGEEKYF -
AEE  REBEHIORHEEFRE TESGHT
- FrEHERSNTARMSHERNEX -

our supplier requirements.

Admission of
Suppliers
HAEREA

Annual Review
of Suppliers
HEBTE

The Comprehensive Review Report for New Suppliers (Gt [ER4RA STERE))
covers various ESG topics such as factory environment, safety management,
quality management and social responsibility, which can effectively identify ESG
risks of potential suppliers.
ChitERGRETERE)RELIHIRE 288 -
TE - BRESEEHRERIESGRER

mEEd  HEEEEZMEESG

The Annual Monitor and Review Report for Suppliers (&R FE EEFEIZHRE))
covers ESG factors such as environmental management, labor standards, safety
management and business ethics, which provides continuous assessment on the
performance of suppliers in terms of ESG.

(HEBFEEERZMS)REREETE  BTEL  R2FE -

= BEEBEHEMESGRR -

Supplier Communication

The Group establishes sound supplier communication channels
and continues to strengthen its cooperation with suppliers to
create a good cooperative atmosphere.

Supplier Seminars

The Group pursues collaborative cooperation and technological
innovation with an open and inclusive mindset, and regularly holds
technical seminars with strategic partners who share a common
vision and complementary advantages to discuss the direction of
the development of the industry and achieve win-win cooperation.
During the Year, the Group held two supplier technical seminars
to discuss the latest technology trends and market development
trends with suppliers.

R BEEFESGH

HEFER

AEEZREHEHEERE  FEMNS
HEEEENSERR  fERTFNEGERE -

HEFHHE

AEBERARBELE  BXBREIE - &%
ez - BEAAKRFBARMNEAED BB
BEBET  THERRWHANE  KIE
XBRIW - BRAERR - AFE &K
BRI HERRMATE - EHERLR
BRal T & iTe R misERBE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR g kERWmE(E)
Annual Supplier Conference

In order to strengthen the relationships with suppliers, the Group
holds annual supplier conference every year with supplier partners
to review cooperation results, future outlook of development plans
and strategic goals, and convey our operating concept of integrity.
During the Year, 97 suppliers attended the annual supplier
conference on-site and another 70 suppliers participated in real-
time online, in which four suppliers were awarded in recognition of
their outstanding performance in the field of product technology.

Supplier Satisfaction Surveys And Studies

The Group attaches great importance to opinions and suggestions
of suppliers, conducts supplier questionnaires, and formulates
special rectification plans to continuously improve satisfaction.
During the Year, the satisfaction rate of the Group's suppliers
reached 99%, which highly recognized the Group's performance in
the cooperation process.

The Group controls the product lifecycle from the source, focuses
on the management of upstream procurement, implements the
principle of procurement from nearby sources and controls the use
of conflict minerals to fully consider the impact of raw material
procurement on the environment and society.

Procurement From Nearby Sources

The Group implements an efficient procurement strategy. By
making full use of the geographical advantages of the Group's
factories, the Group conducted in-depth market research and
assessment to evaluate the capabilities and reliability of suppliers,
so as to strengthen the connections between enterprises and the
local society, and improve its control over the supply chain. In order
to optimize our procurement strategy and reduce procurement
costs, we have replaced some imported brands with high-quality
domestic brands to promote the steady development of the
domestic supply chain.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Conflict Minerals

The Group recognizes that engaging in mineral mining, trading,
processing, and exporting in conflict-affected and high-risk areas
not only brings great damages to the environment, but also carries
material negative social risks, and the Group must avoid to provide
sources of funds for conflicts directly or indirectly. The Group
implements responsible mining to alleviate problems on human
rights and environment that may arise from mineral mining, and
requires suppliers to sign the Business Cooperation Agreement
(EBAER D)) to ensure the metal materials (including tin, gold,
tungsten, etc.) used and sold by suppliers are free from conflicts,
and strengthen the control of conflict minerals.

Green Procurement

The Group incorporates environmental factors into procurement
strategy, selects products that meet environmental standards, and
ensures that suppliers follow environmental principles and produce
environmentally friendly products to improve resource utilization
efficiency.

The Group checks whether the supplier holds compliance
documents such as the material safety data sheet (MSDS) or
third-party certified test report, and conduct review in accordance
with the environmental protection requirements in the Supplier
Review and Assessment List (T ERIZBE)). At the same
time, the Group requires suppliers to understand the Group's
Environmental Substance Control Standards (CGRIEVIEIEFHIZA))
and sign the Environmental Substance Compliance Statement ((I%
RYE A EERR)), so as to fully implement the concept of green
procurement.

RIR - e keadms (E)

AEERRINEXFREENS AR RN
EEEMRK X5 KB HAOTEHRE
ERBARE  AFEEXMSRETEN
Rk ARCEEAFRASERREHRESH
KR - REBBETAEENRE - RDE
ERRAIRE SR ARMIRIRME - BERKHE
EERB(ABEIERQ) ARKRHERER
FHENSBMH(BES €  §F)1ThF
EEHRER  MBRHERBEENEE

BeRE

AEEBERAEZMARBARNE B &
B REGARREENES RRHLER
BEBRRALAERRER 25 AR
R -

AEBEeERHEEBRSABLERLER
MEE AR E BB E (MSDS)F 5 58 = 77 B i Al
HE - URR(HERFIEREZFE) PR
RESCEITIEZ - R - AEEERHEER
TRASENCGREMEZHIRE)  ARE
(REMETAEER)  NERFERER
BE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIE - g hERRE (&)
ACHIEVEMENT ON TALENT VALUE

SDGs addressed in this chapter
AEFERERNSDGs

3 Mnsan gy
e (j

The Group upholds the employment concept of “ensuring merit-
based employment and making the best use of talents”, attaches
great importance to talent nurturing, continues to strengthen
efforts to protect employee rights and interests, proactively build
a platform for talent development, and continually promotes
the building up of the talent team, so as to support high quality
development of the Company.

GOOD HEALTH
AND WELL-BEING

5 HERITH DECENT WORK AND

Lol

g

The Group strictly complies with laws and regulations such as
the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China ((FFE A RILHN
Bl4 %)% )) and the Labour Contract Law of People’s Republic of
China ((ZEARKEMBELEEFED), and formulates institutional
documents such as the Administrative Measures for Recruitment
(CHEEEE S Z )) and the Staff Handbook ( & T F 1t ) to
standardise the management on employment process covering
from recruitment to departure. The Group is committed to creating
an inclusive, equal and fair working environment.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023

EE IR
ECONOMIC GROWTH Sk

AT EE

AEERET [BAES - AZBES WA AR
T REERALEE  THREETH#R
RIE - BIBRERZASZERY G  FEHEEA
FTHRMER WO RAREEERE -

AEERBUT(FEARLNELHE) -
(hEE AREFESEA FE) SE@ES
HE CRRERHE) (BIFMERBY
- BRRRRIRRGE — BEFRSE
BER BARTERS  F% AFHT
YERRS -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR - B RERWRE (B)

Total number of employees & T4 3,353

Total number of employees by gender

IR EI D H) B T2

1,944

58.0%

M Female &

Total number of employees by age group

I FERAR S DB THR8

364

Male 55 B Management
EEAE

Total number of employees by position

IREARE D H B T2

I General staff
—MREET

Production staff
H$EET

Total number of employees by geographical region

iR B D H B T2
73

| 18-30 B 31-45 Over 45 B Mainland China Other regions
18-303% 31-455% 453 A £ HR B AT H i
Actively exploring campus recruitment EIR T BB E

During the year, the Group precisely deployed campus recruitment
channel. It organized campus recruitments at Hunan University
and Central South University, and attended the Wuhan and Xi'an
bilateral job fairs organized by Guangming District Government of
Shenzhen to build up talent reserve for the long-term development
of the Company. To expand the recruitment channel, during the
year, the Group successfully launched the “Wechat public account
for recruitment of TK Holdings"”, which posted the latest job
information and recruitment news for job seekers to have an easier
access to job information and recruitment process, and the public
account currently has 800 followers.

AEE  ARERBAEMRBRIBEE  ATEMN
MABNHREASERNERES X240
RYAEBRFABORERALEES -
REXNREZRMEAT HR - SHARA
BEE AFESEAY LR ITRTERA
BAR] RESFHNELEATNFEED
e EREBEF @M T MBI EMKLABE

5y
3Zx

MIE © BRATZ AR M EESES005RA o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR - g RERHE(E)

RITIERRIBEE
FTEACRYERAT &

FULIEAR

120

The autumn career fair 2023 of“Chasing Dreams
in Guangming”in Guangming, Shenzhen

ARYITEARER B2 XA 12023 FREHE S

TKHOLDINGS
BHCH.2283 }"_EF\

BENOBARIE RAES, AREZ", HEERES
ZEMAFRIARE, SATHRERE, HERH!

Wechat public account for recruitment of TK Holdings

ROTERBIE AR

Seminar held at Central South University

TREABERE

Compliant Employment

The Group formulates the Age Verification Procedures ({F &5 &
F2F7)), strictly prohibits the employment of forced labour and child
labour, and requires recruitment staff to check the identity card
and identity information of applicants, who may only be admitted
upon confirmation of identity. The Group conducts random check
on front-line production employees every quarter, and establishes
smooth and effective channels for reporting child labour. Once
child labour were found to be hired by mistake, the Group will
make rectification immediately according to the Administrative
Regulations on Child Labour Remediation ((Z LM EIEHRE)).
During the year, there was no incident of forced labour or child
labour within the Group.

Equality and Diversity

The Group firmly upholds the principle of fair, just and open
recruitment, strictly prohibits discrimination against race, skin
colour, region, age, gender, sexual orientation, ethnicity, disability,
pregnancy, religion, political affiliation, association or marital
status, and promotes meritocracy and merit-based recruitment.
At the same time, the Group encourages the employment of
employees with different genders, ethnicities, skin colours and
educational backgrounds to promote the diversified development
of all employees.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Employee Retention

The Group attaches great importance to personnel retention. The
Group reviews the turnover rate of its employees every month,
analyses the reasons for abnormal turnover and puts forward
recommendations for improvement. At the same time, the Group
continues to improve its remuneration performance management
mechanism by granting annual dividend incentives to key
personnel through the virtual equity incentive mechanism, and is
committed to strengthening the retention of its employees through
measures such as providing extra holidays and other benefits to
long service personnel.

The Group establishes a comprehensive talent management
system, provides clear career development channels for
employees, continuously enhances the professional competence
of employees, and improves the compensation and benefits
mechanism for employees, so as to facilitate the career
development of employees and comprehensively implement
talents management.

Employee Development

The Group formulates the Measures for Performance Assessment
((#EBEE % HIZ ))and the Administrative Regulations on Promotion
and Training ((B A EIBEEIE R E)) to establish a dual-channel
development mechanism for management and professional
development, under which employees can choose their own
development channels based on the Company's business
development needs and their own strengths, thereby broadening
their room for career development.

Performance appraisal

The Group adheres to the principles of full participation and
effective communication, establishes and optimises a fair and
impartial value assessment system and value distribution system,
and conducts performance appraisal for all employees in order to
strengthen employees’ goal orientation and sense of responsibility.
The Group's Measures for Performance Assessment clearly states
that the appraised employee has the right to know the results of
the appraisal (including the appraisal grade), and if they disagree
with the results of the appraisal, they may submit an appeal to the
Human Resources Department.

RIE - L RERWEE)
ETRE
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IR E R AR ) - BRRR AT BRE
BOASE  WRBRREREABRHKRE
SMREAE R EEE - TETINR 8 THE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR g kERWmE(E)
Promotion management

The Group establishes a transparent and feasible employee
promotion and personnel selection mechanism.
encourage the enthusiasm of members within the organisation,
internal employees are prioritised for promotion whenever
vacancies arise. Putting personnel as the first priority, the Group
comprehensively considers the conduct, professional skills and
management potential of employees in the promotion system,
and select personnel fairly based on comprehensive review,
360-degree assessment, potential assessment and interview.
In addition, the Group formulates a high potential talents and
succession management plan to accelerate the development of
high potential talents by taking a comprehensive review of the
Company's talents, and continuously tracks and follows up the
development of high potential talents to build a comprehensive

In order to

talent ladder.

Employees Training

The Group continuously improves its employee training system,
and provides employees with abundant and diversified employee
training through a combination of online learning platform and
offline on-site training. During the year, the Group achieved
remarkable results in terms of employee training. Our employees
received a total of 73,302.8 hours of training, and average training
hours per employee was 21.9 hours.

Employee training B T Z IR

Total number of employees B T 485

3,363
|

EHEHE

AEEGEER NMENBEIBEARAL
EIREH - $El7%§ﬂ@%ﬂ,%%ﬁq%5ﬁ2§ﬁ’ﬂ
TIEREBN  BEEBUZER  BEEAR
MEL: AR 2EHEMEAKRERA &
TRt 2 EHEREIME  SERERER
Hb f@%é%ﬁﬁﬁ * 360E/E‘Jﬁ$ ) /Elj]flﬁ\”
FERESER - RTFEBRASL o BN KR
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TATMEE%% ERBAT ISR IR

B UHEBERBREREBEASZRMRR - #&
ETENAL BB
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AEERBTEETHRIER  URLESEE
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AEEEETHENINTIEREGS TEEKK ' 8
THEEHIAR84573,302.8/\F - &4 EI E
HE IS A21 .9/ o

I
Number of employees trained

3,028

LN

Percentage of trained employees by gender (%)

ZMRBINZIEDE (%)

Male 5

B Female Z
EEAR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR - e keEawmsE (&)

Average hours of training completed per employee

BEEETHZIN TR (DE)

o 21.7
BEEAB

By position General staff

ZIEEE S —MRET

Production staff
HEET

Male

ES
By gender

el bl

OKR Agile Goal Management (OKR& B IZEIE) training
programme

In 2023, the Group launched a 9-month OKR training programme.
During the implementation of the training programme, the internal
project team and external professional teachers jointly trained the
management and core staff to help them master the principles
and application skills of OKR, and promoted the scientific analysis
of the Company’'s goals by setting and tracking the organisation’s
goals and key achievements, thereby promoting close cooperation
among departments and effectively enhancing the Company’s
operational efficiency.

15.8

31.8

20.9

Female
23.2
% _ g
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR g kERWmE(E)
Leadership training

In order to enhance team synergy, the Group launched an in-
depth and practical leadership training for middle management
in 2023, focusing on six core elements, namely customer-centric
thinking, team building, role recognition, first things first, and
emotion management, to reshape the core competencies of the
management team and help management broaden their horizons
and enhance their leadership skills through case studies and
interactive discussions.

The Group continues to improve its employee welfare system
and organises a wide range of employee activities to enhance the
sense of belonging and satisfaction of its employees.

Caring for Female Employees

In addition to basic medical coverage, the Group provides a
health care programme for female employees, including two
cancer screenings and public health examinations for healthy
childbirth and childcare, in order to safeguard the health of female
employees.

Employees Activities

The Group actively carries out various cultural activities, regularly
organises basketball games and cultural festivals and organises
its employees to participate in indoor and outdoor sports such
as badminton, table tennis, e-sports and billiards to enrich their
leisure time. During the year, the Group actively organised and
participated in various external activities and competitions,
including the Guangming District Chamber of Commerce Cup
Basketball Tournament (Y. A & M & EKE ) and the “Mingzhu”
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Friendly Football Match ([ BE Ek | £ &5 76
& Bk & 3H & ) , to promote exchanges and cooperation among
employees.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Employees Support

The Group continues to promote employees support by offering
consolation to injured employees and support to employees
facing difficulties in their daily lives, making every effort to bring
warmth to our employees. Adhering to the concept of caring for
employees and contributing to the society, the Group has set up
the TK Love Fund to help employees and move forward together.
Since the establishment of the Fund in 2010, a total of 42 seriously
ill employees and their families received donations, and the
cumulative donation amount reached RMB1.28 million.

Childcare

The Group launched a summer childcare programme for our
employees’ children to ensure that the children are well looked
after during the care period and to provide more support and
assistance to employees’ families. During the year, a total of more
than 20 employees of the Group enrolled in the summer childcare
programme for their children.

ENGAGING IN PHILANTHROPIC WORK

SDGs addressed in this chapter
AEFEERNSDGs

QUALITY
EDUCATION

it | ividit

|

The Group proactively fulfils its social responsibilities, actively
participates in social welfare activities, gives back to the
community through practical actions, and promotes mutual
benefits and win-win situations between the enterprise and the
community. The Group formulates the Community Investment,
Donation and Sponsorship Management System( { it [& & & -
BREEEBEESE)) to regulate the management process of
community investment, donation and sponsorship to ensure the
effective use of public welfare resources and to truly benefit the
residents of the community.

The Group continues to support education and community safety
construction and actively participates in philanthropic work to help
build a better community. During the year, the Group’s employees
participated in 210 hours of community service activities and
donated a total of HK$694,000.

RIR - HekER®RE (E)
AIHHK

REBIFEHEETEHL  UYXBEIART
M WEERHESTRELE  2HE8
ITHERE AKEFHEEET - OB
EMES  BARVYFIBLEAS  HET
STEEAER) C EFRIIT 0 B2010FHYES
HEPRERESFEIRERE 245
EARE1288TT °

BOEE

AEBRRRIBT FREHTEUE
EREFHESENNRESIALERE - B
ETRERKEZHOIBNED - XFE -
AEERAE _THEBEIRBBMEIFX
EHIFEIAE -

BhRmER

Bl

AEEIHRTHEEME  BRSEEER
2EE WERTHOGEME @ RECKE
HEHEFHE AKREHE(ERKRE
BREEREDHEESE) RBELRKRE B8
MEBEERE  BEAZERRFIAERF
A BEEERHERER -

AEBERBEAHENUER2ERRHEX
FoEB2EAGEE  REXFHERH
BoAFE  RAEBEIZENHEEH210
N - H£18H8694,0008 7T ©

RIE® (=A%) BRAR] 2023F

125



126

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR - e RERRSE(E)

Community and business work together to immerse people in the
world of books(it (DEEE) - HIAEE)

In 2023, TK Group launched the event of “Community and
business work together to immerse people in the world of books”,
donating child-friendly books to the Tangjia community (3%
#L[&) to enrich the children’s after-school lives and create an
environment with a strong reading atmosphere for their growth.

HILBE)  HAEE

2023%F  BITSEEHAET [+ CBE) - HIK
22X ES)  AEFIHEBRBIRERITEE
LERBRAEE  BlETREBTNNERER

Erl

“Community and business work together to immerse people
in the world of books”——TK Holdings’ Book Donation Event
[ - HAEER ] —RIIERELRBEED

Hand in Hand, Bringing Warmth to Others (FH F & BE1T)

In 2023, TK Group organised its employees to launch an orphanage
volunteer activity called “ Hand in Hand, Bringing Warmth to
Others “ to bring warmth and care to the vulnerable groups with
actions and love, and to spread the power of caring to more
people.

“SUTRER |

20235 5TER TR RE

FHFmETT
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| &

“Hand in Hand, Bringing Warmth to Others”"——

TK Holdings' volunteer activity

[FRFRET] —RTERETED
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Caring for the Growth of Children

On 1 June 2023, TK Group launched volunteer activities in the
Dong Zhou Primary School and Shenzhen Guangming District
Foreign Language School to support the growth and education of
children and help them move towards a better future.

RIR - B RERWRE (B)

BB R

2023F6 18 » BTEBEERE/NEMFY
MAREINEREBERFARXE LGS © AZ
FPOXKRMBEREZF - B EREM
FEITHIARR ©

“Caring for the Growth of Children”"——TK Holdings
donated to primary and secondary schools

[E 0B |

Support and Care for the Army

On 1 August 2023, TK Group launched the “Support and Care
for the Army “ activities on Army Day by visiting the Guangming
District Fire Brigade and Nanfeng Police Station to convey festive
greetings and sincere respect to them, and to jointly build a safety
defence line.

ROTEBH/NEREY A RS

HERA

2023F8A1H  RISEHE [HEAR ]
EEEES - EH R SRR E B E Bl
R FT - 4 PIER DA ST B A R 15 R0 AR 2 A A
EOEFHEREZHEZ -

FREER #iE L) CHNA FIRE AND RESCUE

: FI!EE: }t— B mga;nwa.ﬁmxsx ‘

“Support and Care for the Army"——TK Holdings

launched Army Day activities
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR - g RERHE(E)

OVERVIEW OF KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS? HREEVNIEEEE:

Key performance indicators (KPls) Unit
BRERER B 2023 2022 2021
Air emissions Exhaust gas emissions from stationary sources
BB [ E R BE SR HE Y
Benzene kg
S T 150.3 120.1 36.9
Toluene kg
AR T 312.1 253.1 116.4
Xylene kg
—HRX T 308.9 262.8 122.7

Volatile organic compounds
(VOCs) kg

RIEEEAEIEE Y (VOCs) = 4,359.0 4,008.9 1,742.7

Non-methane hydrocarbons

(NMHC) kg

FEF LR (NMHC) TR 3,823.7 3,343.4 667.8

Particulate matter (PM) kg

AR ASRZRF (PM) T 1,005.1 1,000.5 346.1

Exhaust gas emissions from mobile sources

BEIRERBEK

Nitrogen oxides (NOx) kg

REfWIRE T 24.8 11.0 3.7

Sulphur dioxide (SO,) kg

—E LR E T 0.6 0.2 1.3

Particulate matter (PM) kg

A IRABFR T (PM) T 1.8 0.8 0.5

Total exhaust gas emissions kg

FERHERAAE Fi 9,986.3 9,000.8 3,038.1
kg/million

Total exhaust gas emission HKD revenue

intensity Tr/E8

FER BB S B EE U 5.1 3.9 1.3

P The timespan of key performance is from 1 January to 31 December 2023.

The scope of data collected covers the production bases in the Shenzhen

headquarters, Suzhou and Huizhou.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR - e keasmE (@)

Key performance indicators (KPls) Unit
BRENIER By 2023 2022 2021
Greenhouse gas Scope 1 — Direct emissions tCO, eqv
emissions #HE—— BJEENR AM_StixE= 387.5 140.6 563.1
BERIEN oo
Scope 2 — Indirect emissions tCO, eqv
& [E — — MW A LiRE S 39,356.4 41,112.9 46,571.8
Scope 3 — Other indirect tCO, eqv
emissions A —StixEE
& B = — HEEEHEm 348.6 94.8 55.2
Total greenhouse gas emissions tCO, eqv
BEREHRESE A=A LIiRE S 40,092.5 41,348.3 47,190.1
Greenhouse gas emission tCO,eqv/million
intensity HKD revenue
BEREHREE PSS LiREE
BEAKERK 20.6 18.1 19.6
Hazardous waste Total hazardous waste tonne
BEEEY EEREEDES NI 312.3 402.6 494.6
Hazardous waste intensity tonne/million
BEREYNEE HKD revenue
UNUEER-Y: 35 0.2 0.2 0.2
Non-hazardous Total non-hazardous waste tonne
waste BEEEVES NI 1,752.8 1,896.9 2,257.3
FEEERZEY) TS ooooooooooooooooooooooooos
Non-hazardous waste intensity tonne/million
MmEREEYEE HKD revenue
R BEEBER 0.9 0.8 0.9
Energy Direct energy consumption MWh
consumption HIZALIRERE K FL IR 362.4 158.9 151.4
125410 2 Attt ettt
Gasoline GJ
i HE 1,298.1 566.5 538.8
Coal gas GJ
R, HE 1.7 2.1 2.4
Liguefied petroleum gas GJ
RAL AR HE 4.8 3.7 3.8
Indirect energy consumption MWh
¥ AL IR E AR JKEL B 69,010.0 70,762.3 80,158.0
Electricity MWh
& JK FLBF 69,010.0 70,762.3 80,158.0
Total energy consumption MWh
e HFEEE JK FLBF 69,372.4 70,921.2 80,309.4
Energy consumption intensity MWh/million
RERBRERE HKD revenue
JFR, B BB E IR 35.7 31.1 33.4

BTEE (%) BRAR 2023F3F 129



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR g kERWmE(E)

Key performance indicators (KPls) Unit
BRENIER By 2023 2022 2021
Water consumption  Water consumption m?
FAKkE AkE AV /N 203,297.5 233,779.0 247,847.0
Water consumption intensity m?¥/million
FAKZRE HKD revenue
SR BEEEER 104.5 102.6 103.1
Packaging material Total packaging material tonne
consumption consumption N
BEER BEMBEE 1,610.1 1,961.0 2,127.7
Packaging material consumption tonne/million
intensity HKD revenue
BEYRETE UNUEE=R=Y: 330 0.8 0.9 0.9
Description of environmental information and coefficients RIEE R EEEE A

The timespan of environmental information is from 1 January
to 31 December 2023. The scope of data collected covers the
production bases in the Shenzhen headquarters, Suzhou and
Huizhou.

According to the Emission Standards for Volatile Organic
Compounds for the Printing Industry (ENRI1T ¥ B3 AL A
YIHEUZ %) (DB44/815-2010), common VOCs include but are
not limited to benzene, toluene, xylene, acetic acid, methyl
ethyl ketone, isopropanol, ethyl acetate and butyl acetate.
In 2023, total exhaust gas emission intensity increased
slightly resulting from a decrease in revenue; there existed
a restatement of the exhaust gas emission data in 2022.
Specifically, based on the exhaust gas detection report for all
production bases throughout 2022, the annual exhaust gas
data from stationary sources was re-counted and increased
disclosures, while in 2021, only the data of the exhaust outlets

REASNEREE A2023F1 818
Z£12A318 : SEREGEEE X8
B BN - BN A EE o

BRI R 7T 2B B # L& W uZ
4 (DB44/815-2010) @ & A A8 3 14
BEteamBER BEX .. ZRE .2
B RER - 2R - ZBEROEROBE
THEES - 2023 F BERBH R ERZ W
TR MBS B LA 2022 F BE R &
FHEEBEM - BBERARIE2022F
i £ EEFE 2 F R0 EI R
WE - BENAFTILIEINEEEFETER
BEREE - M2021 F{E S st 5 TR IR
REREMAOFE=FFENZERNEE
2021 FERFEMERK -

of the Shenzhen factory in the third and fourth quarters were
counted and disclosed, so the exhaust gas emission in 2021
was relatively low.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

In 2023, Scope 1 greenhouse gas emissions were generated
from stationary sources, fuel combustion of mobile sources,
and equipment and system operation; Scope 2 greenhouse
gas emissions were generated from consumption of
purchased electricity; Scope 3 greenhouse gas emissions
were generated from employee commuting and employee
travels. The sources of data were payment slips of relevant
expenses and administrative ledgers. The greenhouse gas
emission coefficient of purchased electricity was determined
with reference to the Notice on the Management of GHG
Emissions Reporting for Power Generation Sector from
2023 to 2025 ((BAM 47 2023—2025 F H BT XL XA E
REBEENMEEEBHIERNBA))issued by the Ministry
of Ecology and Environment, and other energy emission
coefficients were determined with reference to the Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPls issued by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. The greenhouse gas emission coefficient
of employee commuting was determined with reference to
the Shenzhen’'s 2019 Low-carbon Travel Emission Factor
(€20191K B 11 77 HE AR A #) ) and the literature Study on the
Environmental Pollution and Carbon Emission Reduction for
Shared Bicycle (R TTR 5 MBSz 7t)) (DOI:10.16868/
j.cnki.1674-6252.2022.05.095 ) .Greenhouse gas emissions
from employee travels were calculated using the ICAO
Carbon Emissions Calculator. In 2023, Scope 1 greenhouse
gas emissions increased due to the increase in driving times
of official vehicles. The Group carried out energy-saving and
optimization projects, resulting in the reduction of Scope
2 greenhouse gas emissions. Employee travels emissions
additionally included those from high-speed rail, so Scope 3
greenhouse gas emissions increased.

The types of energy consumed by the Group in 2023 include
direct energy consumption and indirect energy consumption.
Direct energy consumption includes gasoline, coal gas and
liguefied petroleum gas, and indirect energy consumption
refers to purchased electricity. The sources of data are
payment slips of relevant expenses and administrative
ledgers. The energy consumption conversion coefficients
are determined with reference to the conversion coefficients
provided by the International Energy Agency and the General
Rules for Calculation of Comprehensive Energy Consumption
((ERBREFEFTE@AI)) (GB/T2589-2020) of China. In 2023,
Gasoline consumption in direct energy increased due to the
increase in driving times of official vehicles.

Hazardous waste includes waste ink, waste paint residue,
containers and gloves stained with waste engine oil, waste
toner cartridges and ink cartridges, etc.

Non-hazardous waste refers to plastic tips, scrap iron, iron
filings, office waste and domestic waste, etc.

The water consumed by the Group is from the municipal pipe
network, and the sources of data are financial records and
administrative ledgers.

RIR - e keadms (E)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR g kERWmE(E)

B1: Employment

B1{E{E
Employee distribution Number of employees* Turnover rate (%)°
EBEAH D EEAZ(A)4 BERKE(%)s
By gender Male
= RIE S ES 1,944 4.6
Female
zZ 1,409 3.4
By position Management
RBAE D EEAE 176 0.4
General staff
—ARET 1,970 1.2
Production staff
HEBT 1,207 8.7
By age group 18-30
RERBREI S 18-30%% 782 9.7
31-45
31-455% 2,207 2.6
Over 45
45574 | 364 0.4
By geographical region Mainland China
e g o B A 3,280 3.9
Other countries/regions
HBIZR b 73 2.1
Total number of employees
EE&EH 3,353 3.9
B2: Health and Safety
B2 REAZ 2
KPIs
BRERER 2023 2022 2021
Number and rate of work-related fatalities
BT T A SR L& 0 0 0
Number of work-related injuries
HAIXEAH 3 5 2
Lost days due to work injury
EIGIEBARTERE(CK) 4.5 246 98
é Number of employees as of 31 December 2023. 4 TA2023F12A31HMERE T A -

o Turnover rate refers to the average monthly turnover rate for the 12 months of
2023; the formula for calculating the monthly turnover rate is: monthly turnover
rate = total number of resigned employees per month/total number of employees

per month.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Repoﬁ(conﬂnued)

B3: Development and Training®
B3 & R 1%

RIR - HekER®RE (E)

Number of
employees
Employee distribution trained
BISM ZAIAE(AN)
By gender Male
RMRIE D e 1,785
Female
z 1,243
By position Management
RBAE D ERAB 153
General staff
—MREBT 1,084
Production staff
HEBT 1,791
Total
st 3,028

Percentage Total Average

of employees training hours  training hours
trained (%) BB 19 I R
FIEDE(%) () (/NEF)

58.9 40,667.6 20.9

41.1 32,635.2 23.2

5.1 3,817.5 21.7

35.8 31,163.8 15.8

5.1 38,331.5 31.8

90.3 73,302.8 21.9

B5: Supply Chain Management
B5 : fitpEdEEIE

Location of suppliers

HEBRELE

Number of suppliers

HEFHE

Mainland China
R E A

Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

BREHE

Vietnam

M

Other regions/countries

HAthiws, Bl

Percentage of suppliers who implemented the practices

AT BB RER Eb

® Percentage of Employees Trained = Number of Employees Trained /Total

Number of Employees * 100; Percentage of Employees Trained by Category =

Number of Employees Trained in the Specified Category/Number of Employees

Trained * 100; Average Training Hours Per Employee = Total Training Hours/

Total Number of Employees; Average Training Hours Per Employee by Category

= Total Number of Training Hours for Employees in the Specified Category/Total

Number of Employees in the Specified Category.

ZIEREBESL=FEE MEEEH* 100 : &
BERE S MZIIERA AL =FEERIE TZIIA
#ZEE* 100 BREETHIIIRH=LF
FIRE MEBEE : RIAMEIEE FHZIINE=
RERRIE B MBERIISE FEERNES B -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR - g RERHE(E)

B6: Product Responsibility
B6 : EmEE

Percentage of products subject to recalls for safety and health reasons (%)
H&x 2 mEREHARKNED (%) 0

Number of product and service related complaints received

= i MRF R 2B (R) 12

B7: Anti-corruption
B7 : REE

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting period

RERIALEITASERERI T ERENEBRFARFNEE (E) 0

Total hours of anti-corruption training completed by employees
1B B 5eAk R BV 15 3l ) A RS 2 (/)N BR) 2,552.5

Number of employees who completed anti-corruption training

ERREBEINEESEE (A) 1,617

Percentage of employees who completed anti-corruption training (%)

TERREBEEINEEB D (%) 45.2

B8: Community Investment

B8itERE

Volunteering hours
IR 210

Donations (HK$)
BEGET) 694,000
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CONTENT INDEX TO THE ESG REPORT ESGHRERAB RS
Disclosed

ESG indicator or not

ESGIEE HEBER

A1: Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws Disclosed

General and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer EHE

Disclosure relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into

A1 water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous

—REE waste.

BRABERIMRERBEN - MAKRTHOHES  EEREZEEY
MWESSHNER RETHETAGERZENEREZRRIINE
o

A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Disclosed
HERUAE SR M AR A HE LB - ERE

A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas Disclosed
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per EHE
unit of production volume, per facility).

HiE(BE) ReeRHEE (BE2)AZREHRE (AR &) k(40
BR)EE(NABESEM - §EKMHTE) ©

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Disclosed
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per BIRE
facility).

FEXEEEEDAE CAETE) R(WER)BE(NNEEEE
iz - BIHRMEE)

A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Disclosed
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per EHE
facility).

FEEEEEEYRES BT HE) R(WER)BEE(WASBESE
iz - BIERME) ©

A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve Disclosed
them. DR
FAFTRT LM HERE B IR R BERE L B EATERER A P8R -

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are Disclosed
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps BIRE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIE - (LN

taken to achieve them.

HEE B EREZEENN A - R ART AR B E R R
ER|E L B R B -
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Page
HiFES|

90-100,
107-113, 140

93, 96, 108,
128-129
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR - g RERHE(E)

Disclosed
ESG indicator or not Page
ESGEE HEER HFES|
A2: Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water  Disclosed 100-106
General and other raw materials. B
Disclosure BREABR(BIEER « KREMEME) B EER
A2
—RIXE
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. Disclosed 106, 129

electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per BE#E

unit of production volume, per facility).

3‘22;&5*”i\J”‘E’]E%&/iFEﬁ%AEﬁ(ZZD%E - Relom) @it E (AT ET
H)REE(NAGEREN - SERIEHE

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of Disclosed 102, 130
production volume, per facility). B FE
BFEKSEREE(WMAGESEN - BERMEE

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken  Disclosed 102-103
to achieve them. BEiFE

R PR S ROREIRE A Rt B R R A B iE Lk B R PRI P8R

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that Disclosed 101
is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to B # 5
achieve them.
Fa SR EGE A KR _E Rl B RS - LA RFTR] M A9 7K B 1R &
REDE L B SRR R

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) 130
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

SRk mPTABEM B8 AN E) R (ER) SEEBMGE -

A3: Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the Disclosed 100-113

General environment and natural resources. EHE

Disclosure AR BEIT ALIRIBE R RAARREKEAZENBUR -

A3

—RIRE

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the Disclosed 100-113
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to EHE

manage them.

M RGEHHREMARNERNEAZEMNERDNEREFHETE

B1TED °

A4: Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate Disclosed 107-113

General related issues which have impacted, and those which may BiFE

Disclosure impact, the issuer.

A4 E%%J&Vﬁai“ AT AEEX ENEARKEREEDN

—RIXE PR

A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have Disclosed 109-113
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the BEIFE

actions taken to manage them.
HMBERAESHETAEEYZNEARKEESZE © REH
118 -
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ESG indicator
ESGIEE

B1:
General
Disclosure
B1
—RIEE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
R g kEREHE(E)

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

EAFH RRE  BEREA  ILERE - BRE - TS#RE 21
E - REGAREMFERBINRERETHETABEATE

HAERDER KR DI ER

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or
part-time), age group and geographical region.

IR - EREE (N2 BEERE) - FRERN R E S ES LR
2 o

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical
region.

ZRMER - FEAERI RMEEI D HIEBRARLLE o

B2:
General
Disclosure
B2
—RIEE

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

BRARE TS TERE RRIE(E 8 8 2B 1B E R BUER K8 <P E
BITANBERZENEBEE R OIFER

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the
past three years including the reporting year.

BE=F(BRERFE)SFRATUHROABBILE -

Lost days due to work injury.

HIEBEATERE -

B3:
General
Disclosure

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted,
and how they are implemented and monitored.

R PTER AN RO B SRR BR B 2 24 06 - DARRMERA T REERTT% ©

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

BRITRTTHE B BT TIERE B A B R BUR - #HlEIES)

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee

category (e.g. senior management, middle management).

}“*I% BEF(NRRERE  +REER)IASNZIEER
e ©

The average training hours completed per employee by gender
and employee category.
HRIRESHRES - 55

BEZERZIENFEEE -

Disclosed

or not Page
HERER =X
Disclosed 118-121, 140
E#E

Disclosed 119, 132
E#E

Disclosed 132
E#E

Disclosed 79-87, 141
E#E

Disclosed 132
E#E

Disclosed 132
E#E

Disclosed 82-87
EHE

Disclosed 121-124
E#E

Disclosed 122, 133
EHE

Disclosed 123, 133
BT

RIE® (=A%) BRAR] 2023F
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR - g RERHE(E)

Disclosed
ESG indicator or not Page
ESGHE R EER3
B4: Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws Disclosed 120, 141
General and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer BEHE
Disclosure relating to preventing child and forced labour.
B4 B AP IEE Taisg 45 THBGR KB F AT AR ERZ ENIEE
—RIXE SEERAEOIRIERL
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to Disclosed 120
avoid child and forced labour. ERE
R ST R E A FE HE A SR B T R R il 85 T ©
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when Disclosed 120
discovered. ERE
HIRTE RIS AR B BIER AT RRE 5 -
B5: Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply  Disclosed 114-117
General chain. BT
Disclosure EIRMHIEGAIRIE Rt g R R ECR
B5
—MRIRE
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Disclosed 133
@S DR HEREE - EARER
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of  Disclosed 114, 133
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how EHE
they are implemented and monitored.
AR REEENEN  mERTERBNHERER - X
RAABENITRERTE
B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social  Disclosed 115
risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and B #5
monitored.
LA R e R B EIRE IR R R SRR AIER - LA RIEREE
MITREER T ©
B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally Disclosed 117
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and BEiFE

how they are implemented and monitored.
HMERE HEE RS BRARERRRGHED - LAREBEH
ﬁ&%ﬁ?@?&'
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ESG indicator
ESGIEE

B6:
General
Disclosure
B6
—RIEE

B7:
General
Disclosure

B8:
General
Disclosure

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
R g kEREHE(E)

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods
of redress.

BREREEMMBEENERELZ S BS  RELAMESFEUR
WROTENBER LB THETABEAZENBREERROINE
£ o

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons.

EERCDEXERAAT R 2 EEFIEHRMADKN B DL

Number of product and service related complaints received and
how they are dealt with.

BERERNERRRERFERE AREHATDE -

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

it 2R R N RS A B ERE R RO B B -

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

il & 2 i e B2 M E m B GAE R -

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

s H B EH B RHRE R - U RABERITRERAE -

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BEADIEHR BR  SGEFRARENBERNETHETATER
FENMERERRIROINER o

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.
RERAANLHITASHESREWEEL

LEFiAGER o

BISHARFAEE

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.

AT R BBAE - AREBRTRERTE

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and
staff.
fumES R BT RHIRESE -

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of
the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.
ﬁEﬁtMiE%Eﬁi?KTﬁﬁ%@ﬁﬁ&‘ﬁ@%E%ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%iéiﬁ@%%
A1 A 5 HBUR

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).
BIEREE(NHKE  BETE  SIER - @F - k- 85) -

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

EEIHBMBHAER(MESERER) -

Disclosed

or not Page
HERER =X
Disclosed 72-79, 141
E#E

Disclosed 134
E#E

Disclosed 72,134
E#E

Disclosed 76

E#E

Disclosed 73-74, 77
E#E

Disclosed 78-79
E#E

Disclosed 71-72, 141
E#E

Disclosed 71

ERE

Disclosed 71

E#E

Disclosed 71-72, 134
E#E

Disclosed 125-127
E#E

Disclosed 125-127
ERE

Disclosed 125, 134
ERE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR - g RERHE(E)

LIST OF RELEVANT LAWS, REGULATIONS, AND MEEEERRBERYIR

POLICIES
Methods for ensuring the
Relevant laws and Compliance Major impacts on compliance of these laws
Aspects regulations disclosure the Company and regulations
=i HEEEER EHREREE HERERNEATE BRETELEEZRALNSG
A1: The Environmental The Group was not aware  The Group may be Comply with the requirements
Emissions Protection Law of the of any violation related subject to administrative under environmental
A1 People's Republic of to emissions during the penalties, and in case of laws, establish system to
B China year. severe circumstances, avoid, reduce and control
(P A\REMBRBER AEERERTERIRE be ordered to suspend environmental pollution
EE) Bk A E R A production and operation.  resulting from daily operation as
The Law of the People’'s % o REB MR BRI TG much as possible, and handle
Republic of China on g BB ER Al ALt & and disposal of emissions in
Prevention and Control SEERE- accordance the requirements of
of Water Pollution national laws and regulations.
(HZEAREMBIKFE EFERREEERE - FIFTH
DNz ) EREEE  HOMETHEE
The Law of the People’s BATEHRIRIESE - WIZEAXK
Republic of China on the EEFHREREENEE RN o
Prevention and Control
of Atmospheric
Pollution
(hEAREMBARS
RBRE)
B1: The Labour Law of the The Group was not aware  The Group may be The Human Resources
Employment People’s Republic of of any violation related to  subject to administrative Department has formulated
B1 China employment during the penalties, face legal different policies in accordance
R (FEAREMBELEE) year. litigations and suffer with relevant laws, and has
The Labour Contract KREBNFRIL EEIRE damage to its external adhered to the principles

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023

Law of the People's
Republic of China

ERARENEEERER -

image.

$E@TQE§§‘MTB@E

of openness, fairness and
justice in the selection and

(RFEAREMELEA g mBEEFARLE employment of talents.
[R%) %\T?l\E’Jﬁ/%xTﬁ o ANERBPIERBAREREN

The Law of the People's
Republic of China on the
Protection of Women's
Rights and Interests
(hEE AR EMBIR 2
=IREE)

The Social Insurance
Law of the People's
Republic of China
(hEAREMBEMLER
57979

ERBIFTIRBEK - BRRH
ALEREAMBARE



Aspects
EmE

B2:

Health and
Safety

B2
REEZ2

B4:
Labour
Standards
B4

BT AR

B6:

Product
Responsibility
B6

EmER

B7:

Anti-
corruption
B7

RER

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR - e keasmE (@)

Relevant laws and
regulations

MEERER

The Production Safety
Law of the People’s
Republic of China
(hEAREMBELZZE
BEE)

The Law of the People's
Republic of China on
Prevention and Control
of Occupational Disease
(hEAREMBER R
ibi=pzY)

The Fire Protection Law
of the People’s Republic
of China
(hEAREMBEFE)

The Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of
China
(REAREMELEE)
The Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the
Protection of Juveniles
(hEAREMBARKF
AREED

The Product Quality Law
of the People’s Republic
of China
(hEARAMBEERE
2E)

The Patent Law of the
People's Republic of
China
(hEAREMBEZFE)

The Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of
the People's Republic of
China
(hEAREMBERTE
EBRFE)

The Anti-Money
Laundering Law of the
People’s Republic of
China

(HZE A REMBROEE
D

Compliance
disclosure

BRELEKE

The Group was not aware
of any violation related to
health and safety during
the year.
AEERENT BB R
RERZEZHEBNEELE
HRIER -

The Group was not aware
of any violation of labour
standards during the year.
AEERENT BB R

B TRAEEmNEEER

AR -

The Group was not aware
of any violation related

to product responsibility
during the reporting
period.
REERAR IR E BN
EREEMETHEBNE
EERER o

The Group did not receive
any corruption lawsuits
against the enterprise or
its employees, and did
not have any violations
of relevant laws and
regulations that have
significant influences

on the Group during the
reporting period.
AEBRARREHALLZ
BUEIE S EERE
HBRBFARME - TNRE
ERUAGSEFEATE
EVEREE R -

Major impacts on
the Company
HERERNEASE

Major safety accidents
and occupational disease
risk can cause the Group
to be penalised and its
employee to be injured.
EARZEWRBERE
B P B2 28 B 5= 4 e
REBIXRIE-

The Group may be
subject to administrative
penalties, face legal
litigations and suffer
damage to its external
image.
REE AR X B THE
g mERARFARAT
HINIFE R

The Group may face
return of goods by client
or consumer, causing
significant economic
losses.
AEEF TP HHE
ERE  ERBRENEE
Bk o

There may be an increase
in the Group's operating
costs, causing economic
losses.
AR L EA
ERAOBRK o

Methods for ensuring the
compliance of these laws
and regulations

BRETELEZERAOINGE

Provide staff with mechanical
safety protection equipment
and personal protective
equipment, organize three-
level safety education and
training, and perform works

in accordance with safety
operation guidelines.

[ 8 TREERN R 2D ERE N
REAABRAm @ WHEBET=
BERHERI - RBLERIE
EEIETIE -

The Group forbids the use of
child labour and forced labour,
and has developed remedies to
timely deal with misuse of child
labour and forced labour.
AEEFEEERAET KRGS
T - WE IETfRE s - PA R
BRERAETIRRHLEINER

The Group and its supply
chain have implemented a
strict quality management
system to ensure that product
quality at each segment is in
compliance with relevant laws
and regulations and client's
requirements.
AEERHEERENTESE
BHIE - RS ARG mER
EREEEERREPEX -

Stipulated in the Employee
Handbook the code of conduct
that must be followed by
employees, and adopt zero-
tolerance policies for illegal
actions such as corruption

and bribery. The Group also
provides anti-corruption
trainings for directors and
employees.
(BIFMIEIAEILAES
RITRSFE - HERE  BREE
ETRERERBMBER - K&
BIRESUARBIRHERER

B3l o

RIE® (=A%) BRAR] 2023F
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHREE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited
accounts of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding.
Principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 37
to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis on revenue and operation of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023 by principal activities and geographical
markets is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group's business review for the year ended 31 December
2023, which includes a discussion on principal risks and
uncertainties facing by the Group, an analysis of the Group's
performance using financial key performance indicators, particulars
of important events affecting the Group during the year, and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group's business
is set out in the sections headed “Financial Highlights” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.
In addition, discussions on the Group's environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group are set out in the sections headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 169.

It is the policy of the Board, in considering the payment of
dividends, to allow shareholders of the Company to participate
in the Company's profits whilst retaining adequate reserves for
the Group's future growth. The Board shall consider the following
factors before declaring or recommending dividends:

e the Group's actual and expected financial performance;

e retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023
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e the Group’s working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future expansion plans;

e the Group’s liquidity position;

e general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group's
business and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Company; and

e other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with
applicable laws and regulations including the laws of the Cayman
Islands and the Memorandum and Articles of Association. The
Board will continually review the said dividend policy from time to
time and there can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in
any particular amount for any given period.

After considering the above-mentioned factors and taking into
account the business, financial and cash flow position of the
Group, the Board has recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK7.5 cents per share and a special dividend of HK10.0
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2023 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company at the close of business on Friday, 7 June 2024,
amounting to a total of HK$62,494,500 and HK$83,326,000,
respectively. The proposed final dividend and special dividend are
subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting (the “"AGM") of the Company. The final
dividend and special dividend, if approved, are expected to be paid
on Thursday, 20 June 2024.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM to
be held on Friday, 31 May 2024, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Tuesday, 28 May 2024 to Friday, 31
May 2024, both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the AGM, unregistered holders of shares of the Company should
ensure that all share transfer documents, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at
17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 27 May 2024.

Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERES(E)
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DNecKws’Repoﬁ(conﬂnued)

SREE(E)

For determining the entitlement to the aforesaid proposed final
dividend and special dividend, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Thursday, 6 June 2024 to Friday, 7
June 2024, both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to be qualified for the proposed
final dividend and special dividend, unregistered holders of shares
of the Company should ensure that all share transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong at the above
address for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 5
June 2024.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the past
five financial years is set out on page 252. The summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in the Group's property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in Note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2023 are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the Company's share capital during
the year are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Memorandum and Articles of Associations or the laws of the
Cayman lIslands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Save for the purchase of 1,930,000 shares of the Company through
its trustee on the open market for the purposes of the Share
Award Scheme, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2023.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in Notes 21, 22, 23, 24 and 36
to the consolidated financial statements on pages 214 to 216, page
231, and the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
172.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands amounted to approximately HK$568,837,000
(2022: HK$495,285,000), of which approximately HK$62,495,000
and HK$83,326,000 has been proposed as a final dividend and a
special dividend for the year, respectively.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2023 were around HK$694,000 (2022: HK$2,719,000).

DWecKws’Repoﬂ(conﬂnued)
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERES(E)

DIRECTORS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:
Executive Directors

Mr. Li Pui Leung

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

Pursuant to the Memorandum and Articles of Association, Mr.
Yung Kin Cheung Michael, Mr. Cheung Fong Wa and Ms. Christine
Wan Chong Leung will retire at the AGM and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

PARTICULARS OF BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Particulars of biographies of directors and senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 28 to 34 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of Directors’ remuneration and those of the five highest
paid individuals in the Group are set out in Notes 38 and 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Each of the executive Directors entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 20
December 2022, which may be terminated by either party giving
not less than three months’ notice in writing.

The Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of the
independent non-executive Directors for a term of three years
commencing from 20 December 2022, unless terminated by either
party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing.
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No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
agreement which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report and Note 35 (Related Party Transactions) to the
consolidated financial statements, no director nor a connected
entity of a Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contract of
significance in relation to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Share Award Scheme"” below, at no time during the year
was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements and the objects
of or one of the objects of such arrangements is/are to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities, including debentures, of
the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests of the directors or chief
executive of the Company in the shares of the Company which
were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"),
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code (Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules),
were as follows:
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EFgHEE(E)

Long position in the shares of the Company

RARBRBNHFRE

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Name of director Capacity/Nature of interests Number of shares the Company*
RARABHEL
Exgs B REEME KRGEE REBDEE*
Mr. Li Pui Leung (“Mr. Li") Interests in controlled corporations 457,466,000 54.90%
(Note 1)
PhREE(TENREE]) Rt EEER (M)
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael Interests in controlled corporation 55,620,000 6.67%
("Mr. Yung”) (Note 2)
SEALRE(SEE]D Rt EEER(HE2)
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu (“"Mr. Lee") Interests in controlled corporation 53,640,000 6.44%
(Note 3)
FRIBEE(TEZRBEE]) P EEE R (HiE3)
Notes: M -

1. These shares were held by Eastern Mix Company Limited (“Eastern Mix") (for
368,066,000 shares) and Lead Smart Development Limited (“Lead Smart”)
(for 89,400,000 shares) respectively. The issued share capital of Eastern Mix is
owned as to 45%, 28% and 27% by Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, respectively;
and Lead Smart is wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Li. As Eastern Mix and
Lead Smart are controlled corporations of Mr. Li, he is deemed to be interested
in these shares held by these two corporations pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

2.  These shares were held by Cheer Union Development Ltd. (“Cheer Union”), a
corporation wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Yung.

3. These shares were held by Normal Times International Limited (“Normal
Times"), a corporation wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Lee.

The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares involved divided by the

number of the Company's issued shares as at 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
directors nor chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in shares or underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which has been recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEgWmEE(E

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN FERRNIR G R B R0 R

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, the following corporations had interests M2023F12A318 * AARRIEFESHFRHE
in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company as G E336IEREEARNA T FENERE
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the softFTac sk s i AR R AP A - A REBHES

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as known by the AT %IA FEI D BITARANEYRERS

Company:
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interests Number of shares the Company*
RAEQ TN
BREREHE B EEME R EE BRETDL*
Eastern Mix (Note 1) Beneficial owner 368,066,000 4417 %
ER(MET) EmlEEA
Lead Smart (Note 1) Beneficial owner 89,400,000 10.73%
LE(MEET) EnBEAA
Cheer Union (Note 2) Beneficial owner 55,620,000 6.67%
B (HfeE2) EmEEA
Normal Times (Note 3) Beneficial owner 53,640,000 6.44%
w (H1523) EmEEA
FIL Limited (Note 4) Interest in controlled corporations 83,242,000 9.99%
FIL Limited(f73£4) Rt EE R
Pandanus Partners L.P. (Note 4) Interest in controlled corporations 83,242,000 9.99%
Pandanus Partners L.P. (#7it4) S A B R
Pandanus Associates Inc. (Note 4) Interest in controlled corporations 83,242,000 9.99%
Pandanus Associates Inc. (fifit4) SZHIEEER
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. Approved lending agent 42,716,200 5.13%

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. ZOEETRIEA
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EFgHEE(E)

Notes:

1. The above interests of Eastern Mix and Lead Smart were also disclosed as the
interests of Mr. Li in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’'s
Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

2. The above interests of Cheer Union were also disclosed as the interests of Mr.
Yung in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests in

Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

3.  The above interests of Normal Times were also disclosed as the interests of Mr.
Lee in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

4. Pandanus Associates Inc. is a general partner of Pandanus Partners L.P.,
which in turn owns as to 38.71% in FIL Limited. FIL Limited was deemed to
be interested in these 83,242,000 shares of the Company through a series of
subsidiaries. Accordingly, Pandanus Associates Inc., Pandanus Partners L.P. and
FIL Limited were deemed to be interested in these shares pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares involved divided by the

number of the Company's issued shares as at 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, no person,
other than the directors and chief executive of the Company
whose interests are set out in the section headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive's Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” above, had any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 29 November
2013 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives or rewards to eligible participants (including employees,
executives or officers, directors including non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors, advisers, consultants,
suppliers, customers and agents of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries) for their contribution to the long term growth of the
Group and to enable the Company to attract and retain high caliber
employees.

The Share Option Scheme became effective on the date of the
Company's listing (20 December 2013) and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, had remained in force for 10 years from
that date. Accordingly, the Share Option Scheme has expired on 20
December 2023.
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The total number of securities of the Company available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme was 73,340,000 shares,
representing approximately 8.80% of the shares of the Company
in issue as at the date of this annual report. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options granted to each
eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme (including both
exercised and outstanding options) within any 12-month period
is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any
grant or further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. A grant
of share options under the Share Option Scheme to a director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, is subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the Options). In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any
of their associates, which would result in the shares issued and to
be issued, upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding),
to such person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of the grant in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
30 days from the date of offer upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determined by the directors, save
that such a period shall not be more than 10 years from the date
of offer of the share options and subject to the provisions for early
termination as set out in the Share Option Scheme. There is no
requirement of a minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised. The exercise price of the share
options shall be not less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the
share options, which must be a date on which the Stock Exchange
is open for business of dealing in securities; (i) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of offer.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EFgHEE(E)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no
outstanding share option for the subscription of new shares held
by any parties. As at each of 1 January 2023 and 20 December
2023 (being the date of expiry of the Share Option Scheme),
the number of share options available for grant under the Share
Option Scheme was 73,340,000 share options, representing
approximately 8.80% of the shares of the Company in issue as at
the date of this report.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Award Scheme on 25 February
2019 as a means to recognise the contribution by the Group's
personnel and to provide them with incentives to retain them for
the continual operation and development of the Group. The Share
Award Scheme is valid for a term of ten (10) years commencing
from the date of adoption and is extendable for a period of not
more than five (5) years. As at the date of this report, the remaining
life of the Share Award Scheme is approximately 4 years and 10
months. The shares of the Company to be awarded under the
Share Award Scheme (“Awarded Shares”) are purchased by the
trustee from the open market out of cash contributed by the
Group or subscribed by the trustee when allotted and issued by
the Company under a general mandate granted or to be granted
by the shareholders of the Company from time to time to allot,
issue or otherwise deal with the Company’s shares in accordance
with the Listing Rules for the purpose of the trust and be held
on trust for the Eligible Participants (as defined under the Share
Award Scheme) (other than Excluded Participants (as defined
under the Share Award Scheme)) until such shares are vested
with the relevant Selected Participants (as defined under the
Share Award Scheme) in accordance with the provisions of the
Share Award Scheme. Eligible Participants include any full time
and part-time employees of the Group (including the executive
Directors). Selected Participants include any Eligible Participants
recommended for selection by the Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board pursuant to the Share Award Scheme Rules
("Scheme Rules") for participation in the Share Award Scheme.
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Pursuant to the Scheme Rules, the Board shall not make any
further award of Awarded Shares which will result in the nominal
value of the Shares awarded by the Board under the Scheme to
exceed 5% of the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time. As at the date of this report, such 5% limit represented
41,663,000 shares of the Company, of which 6,312,009 Awarded
Shares were held by the trustee pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme. Accordingly, the number of shares of the Company
that may be further granted under the Share Award Scheme was
35,350,991 shares of the Company, representing approximately
4.24% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
this report.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the vesting period of
Awarded Shares is determined by the Board in accordance with the
Scheme Rules, but is generally 5 years from their respective grant
dates, and the vested shares will be transferred to the selected
participant at no cost upon vesting.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company through its
trustee, Bank of Communications Trustee Limited, acquired a total
of 1,930,000 shares of the Company for the purpose of the Share
Award Scheme.

As at 31 December 2023, all the share awards were held by the
trustee, and no share has been vested.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EFgHEE(E)

Details of the Awarded Shares granted and movements during the

HE2023F12A31BILFE - REAEEIIK

year ended 31 December 2023 are set out below: HREEFIEERY DT
Number of Awarded Shares
RBRHEE
Lapsed/
Fair value at Unvested Forfeited/ Unvested
the date of as at Granted Cancelled as at
Name or category of grant® 1 January during during 31 December
participants Grant date Vest date (HKS per share) 2023 the year the year 2023
RE B R2023E 2023
NAEREY 1A18 EREM/ 125318
SERENLZHER RLAH FRAS (BRKHET) *ER EREE  RW/EH rER
Employee Participants
(in aggregate) 31 January 2019 31 January 2024 4.78 1,015,544 - (58,467) 957,077
EE2EE(AH) 2019%1A318 2024F1A31H
20 January 2020 31 January 2025 2.76 1,676,430 - (87,815) 1,688,615
202061 A20A 2025514318
20 April 2022 19 April 2027 2.42 1,886,026 - (66,251) 1,819,775
202254 /208 2027F4 7198
2 June 2023 2 June 2028 1.53 - 1,999,974 (53,432) 1,946,542
202346420 2028%56A42H
Total 4,578,000 1,999,974 (265,965) 6,312,009
@zt
Notes: HeE -

(a) The fair value of the awards granted is measured by the quoted market price of

the Shares at the respective dates of grant.

(b)  The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the awards

were granted was HK$1.59 per Share.

As at 1 January 2023, the number of shares available for grant
under the Share Award Scheme was 37,085,000.

As at 31 December 2023, the number of shares available for grant
under the Share Award Scheme was 35,350,991.
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Further details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in Note 25
to the consolidated financial statements. During the year ended
31 December 2023, no share option was granted under the Share
Option Scheme. The aggregate of 1,999,974 Awarded Shares
granted to the Selected Participants during the year ended 31
December 2023 includes 1,930,000 shares which were purchased
by the trustee from the open market pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme and 69,974 shares held by the trustee under the Share
Award Scheme which were forfeited during the year. Accordingly,
no shares of the Company were issued in respect of the awards
granted under the Share Award Scheme during the year ended 31
December 2023. The number of shares of the Company that may
be issued in respect of options and awards granted under all share
schemes of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2023 divided by the weighted average number of Shares in issue
for the year ended 31 December 2023 is therefore not applicable.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Mr. Li, Lead Smart and Eastern Mix (collectively the
“Covenantors”) have entered into a Deed of Non-Competition in
favour of the Company (on behalf of itself and the Group) dated
29 November 2013 (the “"Deed”). Pursuant to the Deed, each of
the Covenantors shall procure their respective associates not to
directly or indirectly engage in any business in competition with
the existing businesses of the Group. Relevant information on
the Deed was disclosed in the Prospectus in the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders”. The Company has
received confirmations from the Covenantors of their compliance
with the terms of the Deed. The Covenantors declared that they
have fully complied with the Deed for the year ended 31 December
2023. The independent non-executive directors have reviewed the
confirmations from the Covenantors and concluded that the Deed
has been complied with and enforced in an effective manner.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EFgHEE(E)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following continuing connected
transactions during the year. The directors confirmed that those
transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole. All applicable percentage ratios (other
than the profits ratio) as defined in Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules
in respect of the proposed annual caps for those transactions
are expected to be less than 5%. Those transactions are exempt
from shareholders’ approval under Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing
Rules and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The table below sets out the annual caps and the actual
transaction amounts of those continuing connected transactions in
2023:

FRAEEF VA THERERS - EF1E
REZERGTIRAEEBRER —BEFBRE
FRATEE ZIEBEMERREIY - XHFE
ARBIREZBEMNZE - BIZFLTRAE
14.0716MER  ZERHZEZFELR
FTEEAE DL E(BFLERIN BEER
5% o RIK ETRAIE14A.76(2)1F © ZER
SERPETREIENRTE  UHFEARQ
AR 2 BB o

TRENZEHEAERHN2023F 2 FE
tREERZ 55

Actual
Transaction
Transaction period Transaction items Annual Cap Amount
RS HE RHER FELR ERXZH
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FTHER
From 1 January 2023 to Rental expenses to
31 December 2023 TK Technology Holdings Limited
("TK Technology Holdings")
and TK Technology
(Shenzhen) Limited
("TK Technology (Shenzhen)”) 66,200 64,885

2023F 18182 IR ERBR AT

2023%12A31H ([RIREER] R
FIRHE ORI AR A A
(TESIRECERYD DX
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(1) Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement

A tenancy agreement dated 16 January 2023 (the “Hong
Kong Tenancy Agreement”) was entered into between TK
Technology Holdings as landlord and TK Group International
(Hong Kong) Limited (“TK Group International (Hong Kong)"),
a subsidiary of the Company) as tenant in respect of the
premises located at Workshop No. 19 on 9th Floor, Block B, Hi-
Tech Industrial Centre, No. 491-501 Castle Peak Road, Tsuen
Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong (the “Hong Kong Premises”)
with an area of approximately 77.67 square metres for a term
of one year commencing on 1 January 2023 and expiring on 31
December 2023 at a monthly rent of HK$12,000. The property
is used as the principal place of business for the Group in Hong
Kong. At any time during the term of the Hong Kong Tenancy
Agreement, TK Group International (Hong Kong) may terminate
the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement by giving not less than one
month’s prior written notice to the landlord or by paying one
month’s rent to the landlord.

TK Technology Holdings is a property holding company and
indirectly held as to 45.0% by Mr. Li, 28.0% by Mr. Yung
and 27.0% by Mr. Lee. According to the Listing Rules, TK
Technology Holdings is an associate of Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and
Mr. Lee, and is thus a connected person of the Company.

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement, the annual
rent of the Hong Kong Premises in 2023 amounted to
HK$144,000, payable by TK Group International (Hong Kong)
in advance on the first day of each calendar month. The annual
rent payable to TK Technology Holdings was determined at
after arm’s length negotiation between the parties to the Hong
Kong Tenancy Agreement. The independent property valuer
of the Company has also confirmed that the terms of the
Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement are fair and reasonable and
the rental payment under the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement
reflects the prevailing market rate.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

FESREE(E
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(2) Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements

The following lease agreements were entered into between
TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord and TK Mold (Shenzhen)
Limited (“TK Mold (Shenzhen)”), TK Precision Plastics
(Shenzhen) Limited (“TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen)”), YD
Mold (Shenzhen) Limited (“YD Mold"”) and TK Supply Chain
Management Services (Shenzhen) Limited (“TK Supply Chain”)

as tenants respectively:

(2) FYEREEE =

RIRECGRIND (EREET)EBRITHEA
CRINDBR AR (TRITEACRID ) -
RITREPEZ CRYIDARRB(TRITHE
BPEB ORI L) - ARERCRYD AR
RAI(THREA DA KRR IHERE R
B CRINDARAB (TR HEE]) (1F
RAEMA) D RIS THIEE R

Agreement Parties to the Agreement Date of Agreement  Leased Property Term Monthly Rent
IE i HED ELEE BEnz £4 A
(RMB)
(ARH)
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant TK Technology (Shenzhen| as landlord - 30 December 2022~ Workshop A, B, C, D, E and F Phase 1 January 2023 to 1,437,120
No. 1 Lease Agreement and TK Mold (Shenzhen) and YD 1 of TK Technology Park, Tangjia 31 December 2023
Mold as tenants Community, Fenghuang Sub- District,
Guangming District, Shenzhen City, the
PRC
MIERERFEEHE RIRE(RI) (fErET)E 025128308 PERITIREERGERERHERT 20BF1A1EE
RIRA(RINR PEIZE(-®)HEA-B-C-D B+ 20235128318
RREA(ERERA) Fif
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant TK Technology (Shenzhen) as 30 December 2022 Workshop E and F Phase 1, G and H 1 January 2023 to 3.320,067
No. 2 Lease Agreement landlord and TK Precision Plastics Phase 2, Zone A and B Workshop J, 31 December 2023
(Shenzhen) and TK Supply Chain as Phase 3 of TK Technology Park, Tangjia
tenants Community, Fenghuang Sub-District,
Guangming District, Shenzhen City, the
PRC
MIRFRRRE DS RINRRINEREE)ERITRE 2026128308 TERIMAEEREABHERAERT 2023F1A188
R (R RRT R (e Rl HRIXE(-S)HRE FR: (CH)R  203512A31H
A) BGHE: (ZH)REJEA BE
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant TK Technology (Shenzhen) as 30 December 2022 Dormitory Block A of TK Technology Park, 1 January 2023 to 119,201

Dormitory Block A Lease
Agreement

RIEFREARRERARE

landlord and TK Precision Plastics
(Shenzhen) and TK Mold (Shenzhen)
as tenants
RIMR(A) (FAZT)ERTRE 20205127308
R (R RRIRA (R (R
REA)

Tangjia Community, Fenghuang Sub- 31 December 2023

District, Guangming District, Shenzhen

City, the PRC
TERIT AR EERERILE WBE1A18E
RIRBTZEARES 2023F12A318
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TK Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen),
YD Mold and TK Supply Chain (collectively the “Tenants”)
are entitled to renew the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease
Agreements by notifying the landlord one month before the
expiration of the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements,
and Tenants are entitled to a right of first refusal in the
renewal. Moreover, in the event that the landlord intends to
sell the subject properties during the term of the Shenzhen
Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements, including any renewal
thereof, the landlord shall inform Tenants of the intended
sale in writing and Tenants are entitled to a right of first
refusal to purchase, which is deemed to be waived if Tenants
do not accept the offer within 30 days after receiving such
notice. Tenants are further entitled to terminate the Shenzhen
Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements by giving one month's
notice to the landlord without cause. Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and
Mr. Lee, being the ultimate shareholders of TK Technology
(Shenzhen), undertake to use their best endeavour to procure
TK Technology (Shenzhen) to fulfil its obligations under the
Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements.

TK Technology (Shenzhen) is a company indirectly held as to
45.0% by Mr. Li, 28.0% by Mr. Yung and 27.0% by Mr. Lee.
According to the Listing Rules, TK Technology (Shenzhen) is
an associate of Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, and is thus a
connected person of the Company.

The annual rent payable to TK Technology (Shenzhen) was
determined at after arm’s length negotiation between the
parties to the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements.
The independent property valuer of the Company has also
confirmed that, the terms of the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants
Lease Agreements (including the rental payable thereunder)
are fair and reasonable and the rental payable under the
Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements reflects the
prevailing market rate. Our directors consider that the
Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements have been entered
into on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group.

Pursuant to Rules 14A.81, 14A.82 and 14A.83 of the Listing
Rules, the transactions under the Hong Kong Tenancy
Agreement and Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements
(collectively the “Connected Lease Agreements”) have been
aggregated for the purposes of determining the category of
continuing connected transaction that the Connected Lease
Agreements shall fall into under the Listing Rules.
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DWecKNs’Repom(conﬂnued)

gmEE(8E)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have, for the purpose of Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules,
reviewed the continuing connected transactions under the
Connected Lease Agreements as set out above and have
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions have
been entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary and usual
course of its business; (ii) on normal commercial terms or
better; and (iii) according to the agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company's shareholders as a whole.

For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, has
provided a letter to the Board, confirming that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions abovementioned:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(i) have not been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and

(iii) have exceeded the respective annual caps.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in Note 35
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company confirms that in relation to the related party
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2023, it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for 31.2% of the Group's total
sales and the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
was approximately 8.2% of the Group’s total sales. The aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
were approximately 8.3% of the Group's total purchases and
the purchase attributable to the Group's largest supplier was
approximately 1.8% of the Group's total purchases.

None of the directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had beneficial interests in the Group's top five suppliers or
customers referred to above.
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COMPLIANCE OF RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, there was no material breach or non-compliance
with the applicable laws regulations by the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Share Award Scheme” in this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing shares entered into by the
Company during the year under review or subsisted at the end of
the year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors as at the date of this
annual report, there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the
issued shares of the Company under the Listing Rules.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance were entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries during the year.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to the shares of the Company,
they are advised to consult an expert.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and a resolution for their re-
appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
AGM.

By the order of the Board
Li Pui Leung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBEN RS

o
pwec

To the Shareholders of TK Group (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of TK Group (Holdings)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
are set out on pages 169 to 251, comprise:

e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2023;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BERAE

BRIEE(ZR)BRATKRR
(RASHSEME LA BERLA])

=R
RFEETNAR

FTEBER)ABRAT(NERAT]) REH
BAR(EE£E]FEHNREFEI69E251HME
BB BHmE - B

o M2023F12A3AMEHEEARE

s HEXALFEMNGHESWER

s HEZRALFENAEDZEEHEK :

iz
1
%};
m
’:,_
_FR
it
=
o)
F
Nei
S
=i
il
S
pa

o ABHMIBBEME  BEBARHIE
B R RIRER -

BMANER

BMRE  6HVBRREBRES B LA
RE([BEEGHMAE ) BMEBMBER
HEA([BEVHREERN]DEEMF S
RERT HEER2023F12A31BHA G
BRAREBEZBIEFENEHUBEERR
FAEHRERE  YEERBREBQFEHNH
BREATEZRRE

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong STl K8 & il FiFH T > BB 7 A 2288
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to the assessment
of expected credit losses on trade receivables.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BN B RS (8)

Key Audit Matter

HRETER

Assessment of expected credit losses on trade receivables

Refer to Note 3.1(b), Note 4.1 and Note 18(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023, gross trade receivables amounted
to HK$320,225,000, which represented approximately 13% of
the total assets of the Group. Management has estimated the
expected credit losses (“ECL") on trade receivables and a loss
allowance of HK$4,289,000 was made against the gross trade
receivables as at 31 December 2023.

Management estimated the ECL on trade receivables based
on estimation about risk of default and expected credit loss
rates of customers. Management applied judgments in making
the estimation and selecting the methodology and inputs used
in the ECL calculation, based on the customers’ credit risk
characteristics, financial position of major customers as well as
forward looking information.

We considered this area a key audit matter due to the magnitude
of the balance of trade receivables as well as the significant
judgments and estimates involved in the estimation of the related
ECL.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

FEESEURERBEERSR

BRHAHPBIREMEES.1(b) « s 1K
MzE18(a) °

M2023F 128310 » EHEWFIBEE S
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EEE((EHEEEE]) - W MN2023F
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%4,289,000/8 7T °
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We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and assessment process over the estimation of
ECL on trade receivables and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty, complexity and subjectivity.

We evaluated and tested management'’s key controls in relation
to the estimation of the ECL.

We assessed the appropriateness of the ECL provisioning
methodology adopted by management based on our
understanding on the Group’s business and credit control process
and the credit risk characteristics of customers.

We tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing analysis of
trade receivables by tracing to sales invoices and receipts.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

B 2B RS ()

BANSFONAEEERETSE

We assessed the relevance of the key factors used to calculate
the estimated default rates and loss rates.

We evaluated the financial position of major customers
by checking to relevant information and evaluated the
appropriateness of management’s assessment of forward looking
information with reference to our understanding of the industry
and external macroeconomic data.

We checked the mathematical accuracy of the calculation of ECL.
Based on the above, we considered that the significant

judgments and estimates made in relation to the assessment of
ECL on trade receivables were supportable by available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BN B RS (8)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023

ESRERZEENAHUBRRA
AENEM

BERRESARARBE B ASHEM
NEEMBHRE LA RFL RGO RE
RERREEMTAENSHMBERE U
HEHRRREAHVBRROBRIFEAR
RFRERMEBNERERRAAFOA

HEREE -

ERHUAHMBRERE EFAFTME B
SEREFBEENREN  YEFERBRT
BREESBCEAMNER  URERRFE
RESHER  KRIEEHERK EEEE
BEFIEE  HREEMERNERTER -

= = BELE
EVZBQAAREE
o

Bz

REMHET SN BRRAENE
£

BFNER  EHEHUBRREEBESS T
T #£ i 70 BRAF Sk 86 AR 1 G B e (E fa] B KB AR
RS S IBIRE  WHABRERMERD
REEMHE - HAER BT(ELSRR)®R
SRMANER - Rtz NBEHEE A
BE) BT ERARENAR A EMHE A
AT B EFAEERMEE - GEFRIF/EK
FHRRE  BIERBERRBEBETERE
TTHRF - ERXR —ERERBRAFER B8
B3I o SHERMRL ] A R ERRF SR ER ARSI R - 40
ReBARE BN ELRRAIETES G
BMmREREREA O B MR ATIEL L
PORTE - RI BRI SRR Al AR EE K ©



Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BN B RS (8)

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheung Siu Cheong.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

etz elER
Year ended 31 December
HE12A31ALEE
2023 2022
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
iz FET T
Revenue WA 5 1,945,721 2,279,321
Cost of sales SHE AR 7 (1,432,928) (1,738,046)
Gross profit ER 512,793 541,275
Other income H A 6 45,244 44,613
Other gains - net Hiplzs — F58 6 6,227 9,515
Selling expenses HERX 7 (57,375) (67,019)
Administrative expenses TEAX 7 (275,152) (283,950)
Net reversal of impairment losses on SRHEERERE
financial assets B EFEE 2,978 3,316
Operating profit KRR 234,715 247,750
Interest income FBUA 9 22,796 23,393
Interest expenses FMEmY 9 (12,485) (10,038)
Finance income — net B IS — 5 58 10,311 13,355
Share of results of associates FE(EEEE R R EE 12 (8,032) (2,347)
Profit before income tax R it 48 B3 Aia 236,994 258,758
Income tax expense Frig TR 10 (32,803) (31,849)
Profit for the year FRER 204,191 226,909
Other comprehensive loss Hit R EEBE
[tem that may be reclassified to AJREE#T IR E
profit and loss: BmiyEE -
Currency translation differences GNESRRITEEZR (29,427) (146,325)
Total comprehensive income for FRAREWREE
the year 174,764 80,584
Earnings per share SRER
- Basic and diluted —BEARREE 11 HK$0.25/85T  HK$0.27/8 7T

PA_E& Bt & Y et 3% 85 (R B MY B 7 — 61 B

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. iH e

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AN > =
SHEEEER
As at 31 December
MW12H318
2023 2022
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
iz FET FET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMEE 13 411,804 485,972
Right-of-use assets FHREEE 14 92,201 112,316
Intangible assets ELEE 15 15,053 19,483
Financial assets at fair value through BRAGBEEAHES
profit or loss FFAEENEREE 19 33,621 33,621
Investments in associates REEE R AR E 12 17,195 25,368
Deferred tax assets EEFRIBE E 30 5,019 1,643
Prepayments for property, plant and M BB M ERIER
equipment B FRIE 5,646 12,437
580,539 690,840
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 17 360,082 391,862
Trade and other receivables B 5N E bW GRIE 18 352,814 343,227
Deposits for bank borrowings RITIEENILES - 157,138
Cash and cash equivalents HeERBREEED 20 1,158,156 1,114,456
1,871,052 2,006,683
Total assets BEATE 2,451,591 2,697,523
EQUITY e
Share capital fi& s 21 83,326 83,326
Share premium 810 = B 21 251,293 251,293
Shares held for employee share FIEERMDEEIFAN
scheme gl 22 (17,679) (14,401)
Other reserves H bkt 23 52,263 69,506
Retained earnings 1R ER & H 24 1,315,974 1,215,871
Total equity A 1,685,177 1,605,595
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

aHEERERGE)

As at 31 December

M®12A31H
2023 2022
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
iz FERT FET
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bank borrowings RITEE = 60,543
Lease liabilities HERE 14 28,298 40,841
Deferred income FEIEW A 27 36,750 43,412
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFRIBEE 30 23,400 31,322
88,448 176,118
Current liabilities REBE
Trade and other payables B o5 NEMEMNRIE 28 335,196 348,601
Contract liabilities AH8E 29 228,855 200,955
Income tax liabilities st atE 19,922 4,405
Bank borrowings RITIEE 26 25,708 286,472
Lease liabilities HERE 14 68,285 75,377
677,966 915,810
Total liabilities EE%E 766,414 1,091,928
Total equity and liabilities Rk EBEHERE 2,451,591 2,697,523

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board
of Directors on 22 March 2024 and were signed on its behalf.

Li Pui Leung
R
Director

EF

LA L& GHEE B B R EE R BE MY o — 663

B
=N

BHMBEHRN2024F3A22AKEESH
o WHTIEETRRESTERE -

Yung Kin Cheung Michael

aEM

Director

EFE

ROIE® (=A%) BRAR] 2023F H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

/\ =N 2
SRS ER
Shares
held for
employee
Share Share share Other Retained
capital premium scheme reserves earnings Total
HES
LHE !
& RtEE HENRG  EtRE  REET @zt
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iz TARL TER TAR TAn TAR TAL
Balance at 1 January 2023 #2023F 1R 1R (55 83,326 251,293 (14,401) 69,506 1,215,871 1,605,595
Comprehensive income Gak#
Profit for the year EREA - - - - 204,191 204,191
Other comprehensive income Eiira s 23 = S S (29,427) = (29,427)
Total comprehensive income BENGAE - - - (29.427) 204,191 174,764
Transactions with owners in REEANEREASH
their capacity as owners: ETHRS
Acquisition of shares WERG 2 - - (3,278) - - (3,278)
Employee share schemes EERNMHE
- value of employee services —EERHBER 8 - - - 3,087 = 3,087
Dividends & 31 - - - - (94,991) (94,991)
Transfer to statutory reserves HETLTRE 24 - - - 9,097 (9,097) -
Total transactions with owners REBAETHRSAE - - (3,278) 12184 (104,088) (95,182)
Balance at 31 December 2023 M2023 1231 R EER 83,326 251,293 (17,679) 52,263 1,315,974 1,685,177
Balance at 1 January 2022 R202F181R 44 83,326 251,293 (10,416) 201,232 1,096,484 1,621,919
Comprehensive income Gak#
Profit for the year EREF - - - - 226,909 226,909
Other comprehensive income Elr Al - - - (146,325) - (146,325)
Total comprehensive income BAWREE - - - (146,325) 226,909 80,584
Transactions with owners in REEANERBASH
their capacity as owners: ETHRS
Acquisition of shares WEER D - - (3,985) - - (3,985)
Employee share schemes EERAHE
- value of employee services —EERBER - - - 2,068 - 2,068
Dividends BRE - - - - (94,991) (94,991)
Transfer to statutory reserves HETLTRE - - - 12,531 (12,531) -
Total transactions with owners BREEAETHRZER - - (3,985) 14599 (107,522) (96,908)
Balance at 31 December 2022 RO02E12831 AL 83326 251293 (14401 69506 1215871 16059
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be LA & OF 2 Bl 5% 1B 52 (R B B P 5 — B B9
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. & o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BOHBRERER

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2023 2022
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaE FExT FHEIT
Cash flows from operating activities REKEIHHELSHRE
Cash generated from operations LEEENES 32(a) 455,669 418,482
Interest received BUFE 17,914 6,963
Income taxes paid BATER (28,278) (53,910)
Net cash generated from EEEEFTEER
operating activities IR& F5E 445,305 371,535
Cash flows from investing activities HKEREZTBNRERE
Purchase of property, EEWE  BEREE
plant and equipment (65,543) (139,247)
Purchase of intangible assets BEELEE (3,418) (4,869)
Disposals of property, HEWE - BEK&&E
plant and equipment 32(b) 9,769 5,283
Additions of financial assets at RERAREBEFZEAH
fair value through profit or loss EHFTAEENEREE 19 (881,057) (1,241,318)
Disposals of financial assets at PERARBEFEAER
fair value through profit or loss B ABENSREE 19 885,297 1,257,129
Payment for investment in an associate REE& A TIHIZ AR - (12,380)
Loan to an associate M — R E A RIRMER - (2,240)
Dividends from an associate KB —fEEE A RIHRE - 355
Net cash used in investing activities KWEEEFTRIR S F5E (54,952) (137,287)
Cash flows from financing activities REBZEIBNHRERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIEBMB A 65,000 103,740
Repayments of bank borrowings EERFITEE (387,677) (88,609)
Decrease in deposits for RITEERESRD
bank borrowings 157,138 17,299
Decrease in deposits for leases HEZE D - 10,913
Interest paid 2ERFE 32(c) (12,485) (9,410)
Principal elements of lease payments HMENFHEES IS 32(c) (73,597) (76,906)
Acquisitions of shares Ui B& R (7 22 (3,278) (3,985)
Dividends paid BATRE 31 (94,991) (94,991)
Net cash used in financing activities BhE EENPTRIR SRR (349,890) (141,949)
Net increase in cash and ReRBEEEZEY
cash equivalents b ipeck-c] 40,463 92,299
Cash and cash equivalents at FHReMEEEEY
beginning of the year 1,114,456 1,027,568
Effects of exchange rate changes MR TE 3,237 (5,411)
Cash and cash equivalents at FRESMREEZEY
end of the year 1,158,156 1,114,456

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in LA AR MEREERPEMMF— 05
conjunction with the accompanying notes. & o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB R R

1

2.1

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 28
March 2013 as an exempted company with limited liability.
The address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company, an investment
holding company, and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing, sales,
subcontracting, fabrication and modification of molds and
plastic components in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"). As at 31 December 2023, the ultimate shareholders
of the Company are Mr. Li Pui Leung, Mr. Yung Kin Cheung
Michael and Mr. Lee Leung Yiu (collectively the “Ultimate
Shareholders”), each holding an effective equity interest of
30.61%, 19.04% and 18.36% in the Company, respectively.

On 20 December 2013, shares of the Company were listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved
for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 22
March 2024.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Compliance with HKFRS and the disclosure
requirements of HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS") as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“HKCO") Cap. 622.
HKFRS comprise the following authoritative literature:

e Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

e Hong Kong Accounting Standards

e Interpretations developed by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
2.2 Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVPL") which are carried at fair value.

2.3 New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following new and amended
standards for its annual reporting period commencing 1
January 2023:

e HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

e Definition of Accounting Estimates — amendments to
HKAS 8

e |nternational Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules —
amendments to HKAS 12

e Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction — amendments to HKAS 12

e Disclosure of Accounting Policies — Amendments to HKAS
1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the
amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods.

B HPBRERME(E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S HP R E(E)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2

2.4 New and amended standards and interpretations not

yvet adopted

New and amended standards and interpretations that have
been issued but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group are as follows:

Amendments to HKAS 1

EAGTERE 1R EFTA)

Amendments to HKAS 1

B ERIFE 1R (BETAR)

Amendments to HKFRS 16

BB BmEERE165% IEFTA)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

BERAGHERETRRBBMBHRSE
B 75 (BRI )

Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(Revised)

BB R EF5Y

S

(RER])

Amendments to HKAS 21

BB G ERIE215%(BETAR)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

BB RELERFE105% &
BB G ERE 285 (BT A)

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
impact of these new or revised standards, amendments and
interpretations, certain of which are relevant to the Group’s
operations. According to the preliminary assessment made by
the directors of the Company, these standards, amendments
or interpretations are not expected to have a material impact

m B E % ()

Classification of Liabilities as current or
non-current

HaESERRESIERE

Non-current liabilities with covenants

BREZIERDERE

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

ERHEABMAESRE

Supplier finance arrangements

HEREE 25

Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

MR ER - BRAHHBRERETIRRL
EHERNS I

Lack of Exchangeability

TRz A A ]

Sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture

KEEEBENRNEE AR CRNEELES
B

CHENEES 20

on the Group in the current or future reporting periods and on

foreseeable future transactions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

(a)
(1)

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (foreign exchange risk, price risk, cash flow and
fair value interest-rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.
Risk management is carried out by the senior management of
the Group under policies approved by the Board of Directors.

3

BT RRME(E)

B [ e T

3.1 I EREE

N NeSE e Sy N N R R g
B MiERAROMNERR - BRER 3R
TRERAABENRER) - FERR
ERnsEzAR AKRENEBEARE
EFZERNERMENERRENE
EREHAEEMBRAEENELER

HEE - RREEAXASESREEE

REBLEESHENBRET -

Market risk (a) MiZER
Foreign exchange risk (i) SMER Bz
The Group mainly operates in the PRC and Renminbi (“RMB") REBEBFZEEFEKLEERE - AR
and HK$ are the functional currencies of principal subsidiaries (TARS ) ERBATARKEETENE
of the Group. The Group is exposed to foreign currency NEINIEEEE - REBHME ZBINE
risks, mainly with respect to RMB, US dollar (“USD") and EXRIINERE  TEAARYE XL
Euro dollar (“EUR"). Exchange rate fluctuations and market (TEZErL])EBIT([BIT]) - REE—
trends have always been the concern of the Group. Foreign BUARHEREEEREH NTIHED -
currency hedging of the Group has been managed by the TN £ (B B B 75 48 BE i TR K £ [ 19 AN IS
Group's financial controller and overseen by the Group's chief o MRS B A ITEAAR BB IEAREE
executive officer. In accordance with the hedging needs and Y ONEE S5 o IR ¥ E B N E AN
the then foreign exchange situation, the financial controller BN BHAEKKERBESELET
would gather and analyse information regarding various TEMEBRETHT  WETILBE -
hedging instruments and determine stop-loss thresholds. The THBHBEEERSRTENEHSR
chief executive officer would then obtain quotations from TEMKRETFHERAEESRIZEHE
various banks as to the financial instruments and then evaluate iRk o B2023F12A31H » WHEH
and make a decision as to whether to enter into the relevant REEHNE RS ©
hedging agreement. There is no unsettled hedging contract as
at 31 December 2023.
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency REEEABEXRBH - ASEUINEE
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the respective ENEYEERBENEREERINT -
balance sheet dates are as follows:
2023 2022
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
&E &8fF BE B&
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TET FHET FHET
RMB ARE 180,412 - 233,005 -
UsD Eiv 178,376 40,218 294,840 121,645
EUR BT 30,768 2,549 23,380 118,623
Total @zt 389,556 42,767 551,225 240,268

ROIE® (=A%) BRAR] 2023F H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RS R I (4]

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3

Bt 7 [ B B B ()

3.1 B EREZE &)

(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) mZEM(E)
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (i) SMER ()
If RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% against the ThAE%Rﬁﬁﬁﬁ\\ﬁ%ﬂ@/ﬁiES% :
relevant foreign currencies, with all other variables held B H A SR T - B[R FTE %RHIJ
constant, the profit before income tax would have been bl M?)/i'a‘bﬂlﬁ/ﬁlzu"l— :
(lower)/higher as follows:
2023 2022
Strengthened Weakened Strengthened Weakened
5% 5% 5% 5%
F{E5% f7 5% FHE5% f2E5%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TET FET
RMB AR 9,021 (9,021) 11,650 (11,650)
usb T (6,908) 6,908 (8,660) 8,660
EUR BT (1,411) 1,411 4,762 (4,762)
Total 4az 702 (702) 7,752 (7,752)
(i) Price risk (i) 1B Bz

The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk or
commodity price risk and the Group has not entered into any
long-term contracts with the suppliers. Fluctuations in the

price of raw materials are usually passed on to customers.

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

The Group's interest-rate risk arises from bank borrowings.
Bank borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest-rate risk. Bank borrowings at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest-rate risk. The Group currently
has not used any interest rate swap arrangements but will
consider hedging interest rate risk should the needs arise. If
interest rate for variable rate borrowings had been 10% higher/
lower for the year ended 31 December 2023 with all other
variables held at constant, the Group’s profit before tax would
have been lower/higher by HK$841,000 (2022: HK$542,000).

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, changes in interest rates
within an expected range had no material impact on the

interest income of cash and bank balances.
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SRR REE o MEZ=2023F 128318 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

(i)

Credit risk arises from cash and bank balances and trade and
other receivables.

Risk management and Security

For cash and bank balances, the Group manages credit risk
by placing all the bank deposits in state-owned financial
institutions or reputable banks which are all high-credit-quality
financial institutions.

The Group does not require collateral from the debtors on the
outstanding balances. To manage the credit risk in respect of
trade and other receivables, the Group performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its debtors’ financial condition. The Group has
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. The Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual receivable to ensure that
the adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. Based on the historical credit losses experienced and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors, the
Group maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts and actual
losses incurred have been within management’s expectations.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group faced concentration of
credit risk as the Group’s five largest customers accounted
for approximately 44% (2022: 41%) of the total trade
receivables. The Group has been taking measures to reduce
the concentration by expanding customer base.

3

BT RRME(E)

B 7 [ B B ()

3.1 B EREZE @)

(b) FERR

(i)

EERRRERERBTERARES
N LAl FEURRIA

EREERLE

RS RRTERME - AKREBBH
ERTERENEESRBELEE
RFRIT(ARBEEREEEZNTRE
B NEREERRE -

SR E A B SRAET AL AR E R ERIE
HEMR - REEARE D REMRUR
EMEERR  ARESHEEBAN
BHARRFEETEENE - ARER
BERRER  UHERIELBRETBHAK
Bl B E R o AN & E M E B & (@ B R
WRIREY AT Y Bl & %8 - DARER Bt 1S AT Uk
EleBELRARESE - REBERE
EEBRLEMNEERBERERNAELEE
o AEEYHRKREE  MELN
EREE-—BEREEEENEYRR -

2023F12A31H * BRASRERAE
FPIEE S EYGRIEBEEA44% (20224 -
41%) WAEBEH —TRENEES
FER - ASE—EXRIEE - BBIE
AEFER  BAEFRER -
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Notestothe(ionsohdatedFﬁnancmlStauﬂhents(conﬂnued)

RS R I (4]

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group formulates the credit losses of cash and bank
balances and trade and other receivables using expected credit
losses ("ECL") models according to HKFRS 9 requirements.

Cash and bank balances

The fair values of cash and bank balances including
deposits for bank borrowings and cash and cash equivalents
approximate to their carrying amount and represent maximum
exposure to credit risk.

While cash and bank balances are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial as management considers
that the counter-parties are reputable banks and financial
institutions with high credit ratings. There is no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach in
measuring ECL which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables. To measure the ECL, trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics.

The expected loss rates are based on the estimated default
rates and loss rates, together with the forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has
identified the annual gross domestic product growth and the
annual consumer price index growth to be the most relevant
factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based
on expected changes in these factors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BTSRRI ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BEKRERE®

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BF 7 m B R == (@)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERM (&)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) LREEREE)
Trade receivables (Continued) B REINGIE(E)

On that basis, the loss allowance for trade receivables was
determined as follows:

BUEE B HEYHRAEENER
BEwmT

As at 31 December

MW12H318

2023 2022
Expected loss rate TERfEE = 1.34% 3.25%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) EmEm@E(TAET) 320,225 297,701
Loss allowance (HK$'000) EEEE (%) 4,289 9,668

Trade receivables is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of
a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group and the
failure to make contractual payments for a period of greater
than 1 year.

Other receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 three-stage approach
to measuring ECL of financial assets included in other
receivables. The Group makes periodic collective assessments
as well as individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement records and past
experience.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. Impairment on other receivables is measured
as 12-month expected credit losses when there has been no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If
a significant increase in credit risk has occurred since initial
recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime expected
credit loss.

B 5 MR I & & 12 TR HI A] i o B
TUAME - EBAEAH AW ONEEZEE
FBERER)EBABEERNEEZENX
EGHE BEABANEBR1FHRIA
TEHB IR -

H fth FE UK IR
AEBERBEBYBRELNEIFRE
W =[BT Ef AEMEREN S
MEENEHEERE AKEZBEHE
‘RECBEMBELR  THHEMEK
FRIR Y A] U @15 S 1T EE RS R A S (@ B
BRE

AEEVFHEREERZBENNA B
- IRHEEZECEERBRREREHA
BELBRELN - fWEMRKKIENEE
[E\fex B #) 25 HE SR A PR AL SR B 4 00 - B
B2 A FEEEBBRFERE - i
EERR B V) HER ARG BEZE N
AR R ERERFERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A3 B 7R iy (42
APtE SRR M ()
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BKRREREE
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B EREZE &)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) FERME (&)
(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) ZFEERE(E)
Other receivables (Continued) Hin UG IAE (8)
To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit AL EERRETEEEN  AEH
risk, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the LEERBEERREHBNELRBERT
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the SHEIABHNENRRE  WEZEAIEH
date of initial recognition. It considers available forwarding- BIREME R - LEMATIFIERER :
looking information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:
e external credit rating o INEMEERTAR
e actual or expected significant adverse changes in o THEAET MBI ERE
business, financial or economic conditions that are ERTEHEESATNNNEHERE
expected to cause a significant change to the debtor's BABITHEBHNENELETEAE
ability to meet its obligations s
e actual or expected significant changes in the operating e BEHANKESXBEEWRWKTEHRES
results of the debtor ERED
e significant increases in credit risk on other financial e F—EBHANEMERIAEEER
instruments of the same debtor B T N
e significant changes in the expected performance and o EMATBHBANITAEAETKRE
behaviour of the debtor, including changes in the payment It BREAEEGEEANKIELD
status of debtors in the Group and changes in the B RERARLESEENEE -
operating results of the debtor.
As at 31 December 2023, the Group has assessed that the ECL MR2023%F12A318 @ B —EEZ QA
for other receivables were immaterial, except for a loan to an REEZIN  KREBB I {GEMEKRR
associate. The loss allowance for other receivables as at 31 EHRNEHEEBET TEKX - HiEW
December reconciles to the opening loss allowance as follows: FIEM12 A31 BREEEEEE v E R
BENHERERET
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Opening loss allowance as at 1 January A1 A1 BRI Es e e = -
Increase in the allowance BEESIE N 2,306 -

Closing loss allowance as at 31 December

M12A31 B EARE 1B # 2,306 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
B HIAERRMTE (L)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 M¥KEREE@)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BF 7 m B R == (@)
(¢) Liquidity risk (c) REESREE

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and bank balances. The Group's liquidity
risk is further mitigated through its own cash resources
and the availability of banking facilities to meet its financial
commitments. In the opinion of the directors, the Group does
not have any significant liquidity risk.

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities
(excluding non-financial liabilities) into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows including
interest elements computed using contractual rates, or if
floating based on rates at the year-end date.

AEEZBEERTRE RRITERE
BEERERBECRR - XAEENRE
EoREBRE-—FBEREEBERESERMN
KB RITEE AR B B BUARSE M5 A
RIR-BEFERA AKREALETMAEKR
MEBETRR

TERDBRBEEEABRABEANIH
BRI IR - A BAR DA
SEMNERABECEERAGRI) - X
ARBNSEREORURACRE
BREEBEHONXAENNEED - L
HEZ8 - AIRFEANMERFS -

Less than 1yearto 2yearsto Over

1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
TR-F —5Z@ME WMEERLE BRRF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THT THT THET TER

As at 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31A
Bank borrowings BITEE 26,090 - - - 26,090
Trade and other payables B REMERNTUE 237,796 - - - 237,796
Lease liabilities HEEE 71,357 11,768 16,351 2,385 101,861
Total st 335,243 11,768 16,351 2,385 365,747

RTSHE () BRAOQF 2023FH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BTSRRI EE(E)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BHEREEm
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BF 5 m B (R == (4|)

(¢) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REVESRM(E)

Less than 1yearto  2yearsto Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
AR—% —FERF MFELF  BRLF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THx TER FHT FAET

As at 31 December 2022 #2022512A31H
Bank borrowings BIEE 290,095 62,115 - - 352,210
Trade and other payables BH R EMENTA 265,627 - - - 265,627
Lease liabilities HEAR 79,249 13,614 25,537 5,585 123,985
Total st 634,971 75,729 25,537 5,585 741,822
The Group had access to the following undrawn borrowing REBPREHRATES T RIZIA
facilities at the end of the reporting period: BERE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Floating interest rate FEEFIER
Expiring beyond one year —F 12 5| Hf 466,100 440,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Capital management

(a) Risk management

The Group’'s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may vary the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total
equity. The gearing ratio is as follows:

3

382

(a)

B HPBRERME(E)

B % B b B T2 (1)
EAEE

B EE
AEBEREANBERRREASE#
BRBELENRN  KMAKRREHRE
BY SEMFFDERENS - ARER
RENEREBLUREEARKAR -

REBIAEELARE  AEEXEE
BURT FRRMR S SR - BITHARK
HEBERDER
AEBREERABLENERERE
Ao ZUERTREEBBRRIARG AR
e BERBHERNT :

As at 31 December

®W12A31H
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Total borrowings BEE®zE 25,708 347,015
Total equity MRS 1A 1,685,177 1,605,595
Gearing ratio (%) BEEABLZE(%) 2% 22%

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 A AEEMAFT
The fair values of current financial assets, including cash and ARIHERE  RPeMmEE(RIER

cash equivalents, and trade and other receivables, as well as
current financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
bank borrowings and lease liabilities approximate their carrying
amounts due to their short maturities. The fair value of non-
current lease liabilities approximate their carrying amounts as
the difference between the incremental borrowing rates and
market interest rates are immaterial.

MRS FEMAREF N E b EYGK
Rk BE(BRESNEME
AR - RITEERBEERBEINAAE

EREHEREERES - FRBHEEREN
ARAEBEEEKREERS - HTHREE

EEMNXERSHNR 2 HNERL T E
% o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BB HRRIEE(E)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Fair value hierarchy

The Group has classified its financial instruments into the
three levels prescribed under relevant accounting standards.
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair
value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value, by the levels of inputs to valuation techniques. The
inputs to valuation techniques are categorised into three levels
within a fair value hierarchy, as follows:

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the end of the reporting period. The quoted

Level 1:

market price used is the current bid price. These

instruments are included in level 1.
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market is determined
using valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted
equity securities and for instruments where
ESG risk gives rise to a significant unobservable
adjustment.

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, all the
resulting fair value estimates of the Group's financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are included in level 3.

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values

For unlisted equity investments, specific valuation techniques
used to value financial instruments include: recent transaction
prices and asset-based method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(iii) Fair value measurements using significant unobservable

inputs (level 3)
There is no change in level 3 items for the year:

B HPBRERME(E)

3 M¥KEREE@)

3.3 A REEME @)

(i) FREXRTAEERGABBENAAEE
STE(E=E)
FRAPEE=BIEE & :

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

12A31H 12A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBxT FHEIT

Unlisted equity investments ELTEREE 33,621 33,621

(iv) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
The following table summarises the quantitative information
about the significant unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair
value measurements.

(iv) fGERARBREAABENBE
TEBAFE=FBrAEEFEMBEKX
TRBERHARBOELES -

Un-observable

Description Fair value as at 31 December inputs Range of inputs
Bt R12B31BNAREE TUBEHAYE BABBEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
Unlisted equity investments HK$'000 HK$'000
FLTRERE TR THEL
Investment A 23,621 23,621  Expected volatility 35% 35%
REA BHRE
Risk-free rate 4% 4%
mRERAN X
Investment B * 10,000 10,000  Discount for lack of 19% N/A
&R * marketability THE
RZRBMAM
Discount for lack of control 16% N/A
B AR TR
Discount rate N/A 19% -21%
gk TER
Net profit rate N/A 22% - 24%
FE ol
Total 33,621 33,621
@Bz

* During the year, investment B has substantially ceased operation after
the acquisition of investment A. The equity interest in investment A
accounts for more than 99% of the net asset value of investment B as
at 31 December 2023. In this regard, the directors changed the valuation
method of investment B from discounted cash flow analysis to asset-based
method. The directors are of the view that the asset-based method is more
appropriate to reflect the fair value of the investment.

*FER EWEREAR  REBEEERFILE
i o R2023F12A31H - REARIRIEIGRE
BEEFEIIN AL » 5t - BEHREBA
EELZAMRRE e KBS ENREERR
ke BERR  RERWEITHERBRES
RA1EE -

RTSHE () BRAOQF 2023FH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3

RS R I (4]

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(iv) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value (Continued)

(v)

Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value is as follow:

e The higher the expected volatility, the higher the fair value

e The higher the risk—free rate, the lower the fair value

e The higher the discount for lack of marketability, the lower
the fair value

e The higher the discount for lack of control, the lower the
fair value

There were no significant inter-relationships between
unobservable inputs that materially affect fair values.

Valuation processes

The finance department of the Group includes a team that
performs the valuations of non-property items required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values.
This team reports directly to the chief financial officer (the
“CFO") and the audit committee (AC). Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the team, the CFO
and AC at least once every six months, in line with the Group's
half-yearly reporting periods.
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4

4.1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and judgments concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
judgments that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

Impairment of trade receivables

Management estimated the ECL on trade receivables based on
estimation about risk of default and expected credit loss rates.
Management applied judgments in making the estimation and
selecting the inputs used in the ECL calculation, based on
the customers’ credit risk characteristics, financial position
of major customers as well as forward looking information.
Details are disclosed in Note 3.1(b).

4.2 Allowance for inventories

In determining the net realisable value (“NRV") of inventories,
the Group would evaluate the customers’ orders, estimated
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make
the sale. If conditions which have impact on the NRV of
inventories deteriorate, additional allowances for write-down
may be required.

4.3 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of assets with similar nature and functions. The
estimated useful lives could be changed significantly as a
result of technical innovations and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles. The depreciation charge
will be increased when useful lives are less than previously
estimated. Write-off or write-down will be recognised when
the assets become technically obsolete or non-strategic.

4

4.1

BT RRME(E)

BAgE S SH a3

AR AR R R R A B AR
i RAE - BEREBEERTY A%
MBI -

REBERRAE L (AT A E - BB B

2 SRR ERRIEREEERE
R TNl r] S B HN ™MEMKF
EAHEENBEREEFLERHE
BV A LR B (T Be HI B

B 5 B ERE

EREEREMAFTRORRRAEMEE
BEREMUEZERUREANEREES
BETE - EFLEBAF REER
HEEERTERBNBABER &
EEeRBEEPNEERRIER - T8
B PRI B AR A K A BE 1 B R FE AR
B o FHISWEERMIES. 1(b) °

4.2 GERE

REEFENAZHFE([AIERE
BEE AEESFIHEEFITE =
THRAEFRARAHEEREOGE
FOAS o fii 2 B 17 B A I FE MR
fb - RIZARH SR ERSMEUR B

4.3 W% - BB R R A9 ] F F 1

AEEREEUEERDENYE - B
FEEERENERAERFHBELER
BEME BELARBOAIERFY -
& fh & R8P 4 HA AT BE B B 1l 2 0 B
HERTEXBHNRFEFOTRMESE
BEZ - HAERAERIRAER
it RIS EEMTERX - EEERM
B S B FEBUER I - RIS HE R B S
o
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGMENTS (continued)

4.4 Income taxes and deferred taxation

There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate determination of income tax is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
to be probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses can be
recognised. The outcome of their actual recognition may be
different.

4.5 Withholding income tax

Subsidiaries in the PRC are required to withhold income tax on
dividend declared out of profits earned after 1 January 2008
to the overseas immediate holding companies of the PRC
subsidiaries. The directors assessed the cash requirement
of the Group and the dividend policy of its major subsidiaries
established in the PRC, based on the Group’s business plan
and financial position. According to the assessments made by
the directors, a portion of the retained earnings generated by
these subsidiaries would be distributed in the near future and
deferred tax liabilities for withholding income tax were accrued
accordingly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BT RRME(E)

SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 oHER
The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as AEERITESATELCEREKSE - 8
the executive directors of the Group. The executive directors TEFEMAEENRNIBHRSE - UTHE
review the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess REESEER - WA E BN VE L B RS
performance and allocate resources and have determined REHRNE MEECLENH - AEHE
the operating segments based on the internal reports that KESMNEBEREERRE - DIHERE
are used to make strategic decisions. The Group's operating RERFPEAMEENEUSEEZ LR E
segments are aggregated into a reportable segment when EEMEREERFESRH A IEH L F
they have similar economic characteristics associated EETPMBEAREREHA—ER
with the production process, distribution channel and type L5 Eitt - MITEEEBEAERE
of customers, and satisfy all conditions and meet all the BHME  VETASEMETRS D
aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8. Accordingly, the executive 2B ()VEERME  K(i)yFBAEGRIE -
directors considered the nature of the Group's business and
determined that the Group has two reportable segments: (i)
mold fabrication and (ii) plastic components manufacturing.
The executive directors assess the performance of the HMITESRIELEE D HHIE A K EFE
operating segments based on their revenue and gross profit HOMRER  BXB/FELLEDEFNE
and do not assess the assets and liabilities of the operating ENEE-
segments.
Information of the reportable segments for the year is set out (a) FNAHMEDBEREHINAT -
as below:
Plastic components
Mold fabrication manufacturing Total
BARE EEANRE @it
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT TR THT THERL THTL
Revenue KA
Segment revenue AERA 736,483 713115 1,326,005 1,673,086 2,062,578 2,386,201
Inter-segment revenue elimination 7 BRI A 34 (116,857) (106,880) = - (116,857) (106,880)
Revenue from external customers  SNEEBIA 619,626 606,235 1,326,095 1,673,086 1,945,721 2,279,321
Segment results and gross profit ~ AHWLEREH 228,994 160,133 283,799 381,142 512,793 541,275
Refer to consolidated statement of comprehensive income for ERAFTAENERFOER  F2846

PR B ek -

reconciliation of gross profit to profit for the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BRI ERERME(E)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 ZEER @)

(b) Information regarding the Group’s revenue by nature: (b) BEAANEBRZMEZHEIHHWAEZR :

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Sales of goods SHEE @ 1,875,206 2,188,566
Modification income IEBCON 70,515 90,755
1,945,721 2,279,321
All revenue is generated from contracts with customers and EHBAAKEETEFLELK - WRERE
recognised at a point in time. TR o
Revenue of approximately HK$160,521,000 (2022: #]160,521,00078 7T (20224 :276,043,000
HK$276,043,000) was derived from a single external customer. BB ARBEE—INARE o ZIWA
Such revenue is attributable to the plastic components REELBHEMFREDFS -
manufacturing segment.
Sales between segments are based on the terms and DHEEENERSHEEBEAEHE
conditions agreed by the respective segments’ management. AR R G ©
(c) Information on revenue of the Group by geographical markets, (c) AN E R ER R b B FE E Y o 15 T 35
based on delivery location, is as follows: EDMMAERINT ¢

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLLEE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
PRC 5 946,723 1,103,432
USA E3E 361,315 507,209
Europe &N 322,999 344,844
South East Asia and Hong Kong R REE 223,222 295,802
Others Hh 91,462 28,034
1,945,721 2,279,321
(d) Over 90% of the non-current assets other than financial (d) 90% A LW IERBEE(TRHEESRMT
instruments, investment in associates and deferred tax assets A REBEARNREREEREELE)

was located in the PRC. IR o
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Notestothe(ionsohdatedFﬁnancmlEﬁatenwents(conﬂnued)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Accounting policies of revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after

eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when control of the products
has transferred, and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities as described below. The amount
of revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to sale have been resolved. Revenue is
recognised as follows:

Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to the
customers, the customer has full discretion over the channel
and price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of
the products. Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specified location, the risks of obsolescence
and loss have been transferred to the customer, and either the
customer has accepted the products in accordance with the
sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance
have been satisfied.

As receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as
this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional
because only the passage of time is required before the
payment is due.

Deposits received from customers are classified as contract
liabilities and then recognised as revenue when the obligation
is performed.

Modification income

Revenue from mold modification services is recognised when
control of the modified mold has transferred. The modified
mold has no alternative use for the Group due to contractual
restrictions. However, an enforceable right to payment does
not arise until the customer has accepted the modification
specified in the contract.

5

) WAFER

DTSR R P A (4R

7 EER (@
YRR

WABRBRAESEEREEBBREPHE
BmkRENERNEERENRAE
B - WAEIRIBED - RE - @Rk
FIMEEAEEANBEERNFRET
A2 -

K%lﬁémm¢%%ﬁbvﬂaﬁA

RS B F IS AR T IR R RE R
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WA EE fm VI B B RS s (BIE XA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BTSRRI EE(E)

6 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS - NET 6 HWARHEMKE—F5E

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT T
Other income Hipug A
Government grants T 18 B 29,015 25,677
Sales of scrap and surplus materials e R R TSR R 11,595 13,073
Others Hib 4,634 5,863
45,244 44,613
Other gains - net Hitlz — F5E
Gain on disposals of property, HEME  BENMREHRE
plant and equipment (Note 32(b)) (Bt7E32(b)) 3,513 2,053
Net foreign exchange gain BE 3 N 28 5 58 2,648 13,952
Impairment of goodwill EERE - (6,652)
Others Hib 66 162
6,227 9,515
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE

B HPBRERME(E)

7 BMEETHRAX

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Changes in finished goods and IRk G N B ah B
work in progress 3,037 104,611
Raw materials and consumables used RAE R B FEmFER 618,694 761,527
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) EBERAMEZ(HEs) 589,927 634,701
Depreciation and amortisation I K B 8 215,233 226,850
Subcontracting expenses KRITEHR 150,446 156,533
Water and electricity expenditures KEEH 58,421 59,410
Transportation and travelling expenses B N ERRF X 39,063 49,173
Other taxes and levies Hipfi & 13,790 13,5635
Maintenance expenses WHEIEE A 13,412 15,817
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) for FERE(BERE)
inventories 12,187 (2,753)
Security and estate management RERDMEERE
expenses 8,938 9,969
Advisory and legal service expenses BN EIREHS 8,586 9,875
Advertising and promotion fees XBHEER 8,401 6,343
Utilities and postage fees HEBREE 3,760 5,970
Auditors’ remuneration 1% AN B
— Audit services — RS 3,294 3,667
- Non-audit services — BN 222 452
Sale commission expenses HERASMX 2,867 7,708
Operating lease payments (Note 14(b)) KRR ENR(HE140) 2,439 8,657
Customs declaration charges WEAE 1,728 1,815
Donations g 694 2,719
Other expenses Hipx 10,316 12,636
Total cost of sales, selling expenses SHERAE - HEMXR
and administrative expenses TR 4% 1,765,455 2,089,015

ROIE® (=A%) BRAR] 2023F H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BRI ERERME(E)

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8 EERAIBX

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Wages and bonuses T&KRIEAT 486,734 508,741

Labour outsourcing costs AA TS N AR AN 45,529 55,461
Pension costs — defined contribution BREKA — AT HEKET (@)

plans (a) 18,654 20,719

Other social security costs E At RACAR 24,272 26,037

Other allowances and benefits H 2L AR 11,651 21,675

Share award scheme & 17 22 Bh &t &) 3,087 2,068

589,927 634,701

(a) Employees in the Group's PRC subsidiaries are required (a) "EBFENBARMNES AL HEMAM

to participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme T3 T E 1R B AR S SR IR ET
administrated and operated by the local municipal government. 2l e AEEMFEMMBRARIZEEFN
The Group's PRC subsidiaries contribute funds which are FHH S E10%E20% (20224 : 10%
calculated as 10%-20% (2022: 10%-20%) of the average £20% )T EREERZAEIHK - HE
employee salary for the year to the scheme. During the year 2023F12A3MBILFE - AEEWEME
ended 31 December 2023, no forfeited contributions were FA 78 U R DA B K 6 9 4 3K S (2022
utilised by the Group to reduce its contributions for the year @) o N2023F 128318 AEH
(2022: Nil). As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no B E Bl A B R (2022412 A 31
contributions payable to the scheme (31 December 2022: Nil). H:®E) -

196 TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include three (2022: four) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note
38. The emoluments payable to the remaining two (2022: one)
individual during year are as follows:

B HPBRERME(E)

8 EEEFEXw@

(b) EEBZSHMAL

FAN - AEEREERTMALTRE=S
#(2022%F : MEZ)EE - EBile 2 FHR
MIsE3SFATSI RAI DT « £ - FERHER
M4 (2022F « —B) &= H A LB
Eay/ (NI

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Basic salaries, housing allowances, EXREH - BEER

share award scheme, other It £ BT B - EfbERL
allowances and benefits in kind KEWREF 4,125 2,305
Discretionary bonuses B TEAL 3,298 1,095
Contribution to pension scheme RIRSETEIHERR 54 18
7,477 3,418

The emoluments paid to these individuals fell within the

following bands:

AZEALTXAHBENF TIIAR -

Number of individuals

A

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HLLEE

2023 2022
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) &4 B GBT)
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 3,000,001% 723,500,000 7T = 1
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001t 24,000,000/ T 2 -

RTSHE () BRAOQF 2023FH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

& G F R M e ()

9 FINANCE INCOME - NET

9 MBRA-FHE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12831HILFEE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
THxT FHEIT
Interest income: FBUA -
— Bank deposits — RITFEN 18,511 7,525
- Financial assets at FVPL —EAnBEFEEHEE
Ft ABSHERmEE 4,240 15,811
- Loans to an associate — M—fEEgE QR IR H
B 45 57
Finance income B UR A 22,796 23,393
Interest expenses: FBEMAX :
- Bank borrowings — RITIEE (8,414) (5,419)
- Lease liabilities (Note 14) — HEBBEWF14) (4,071) (4,619)
Finance cost B SR AR (12,485) (10,038)
Finance income — net BIFEU A — JFEE 10,311 13,365
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

BT RRME(E)

10 FRIEHMAX

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT T

Current income tax BVERFT 15 35t
- Hong Kong profits tax — BEFEH 12,449 12,523
- PRC corporate income tax — PR EREH 31,346 19,898
43,795 32,421

Deferred income tax EIEFTISHR
- Hong Kong profits tax — HEBNEH (1,762) 691
— PRC corporate income tax — R EMEN (9,230) (1,263)
(10,992) (572)
Income tax expense FREHMAx 32,803 31,849

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and is exempted from
Cayman Islands income tax.

No provision for income tax in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI") has been made as the Group has no income assessable
for income tax in BVI during the year (2022: Nil).

Under the current Hong Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance, the
subsidiaries in Hong Kong are subject to profits tax at the
rate of 8.25% on assessable profits up to HK$2,000,000, and
16.5% on any part of assessable profits over HK$2,000,000.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT") is provided on the
assessable income of entities within the Group incorporated in
the PRC, calculated in accordance with the relevant regulations
of the PRC. The applicable CIT rate is 25% (2022: 25%).
Certain subsidiaries of the Group were recognised as “New
and High Technology Enterprise” and enjoy a preferential CIT
rate of 15%.

ARARFAEHEEMRILSEHRLE
RAT - BHRARFASEESMEN

HRAEEFAERBRLES ([HEB
BREES])ABBERASHEA - B
Bt RRBRELESMSH AR (2022
FE) -

BEEAMEARBES - BEWMERF
2,000,000 7% 7T 3k LA T B J& 37 B s ) #%
8.25% Bt EH M TS - 2,000,000/
7T LA b H £ a] FE R A0 045 F1 12 16.5 % i X
BARFEH

PEMEMSH(TREMEE]) DIEAR
SEETRIEEIMACINEEREED
FERBIUAGHR B E - HIARZH 8
ERETE c BRATEMSHHNER25%
(2022%F : 25%) - NEBEE TH B AR
EREA [ RFEMEE] YZH15%
BWEEMSHEBRBX -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BT RN (E)

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

10 FRri8 8B X (@)

According to the CIT Law, a withholding income tax of 10%
is levied on the immediate holding companies outside the
PRC when their PRC subsidiaries declare dividend out of
profits earned after 1 January 2008. The immediate holding
companies of certain PRC subsidiaries have obtained Hong
Kong tax resident status, and a lower 5% withholding income
tax rate is applied.

The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would have arisen using the
main statutory tax rate applicable to profit of the Group due to

BIEEERERE  ERERIINEEE
f& A &) HY R BT B8 A /)7 20084F1 A1H
BEFRBROENFEIRRE - BI¥Z
ZhBEBIRINEEER A FEUI10% K TE
MG SBTHEAMNBARINEEZE
RAFREEBGEEARKERSH - Wik
5% BV BUE RN TEHIFTIS L -

BhS SR B BR P 1S A A& A A O BRI
T EEMmMERBAEEEMNERTE
EEMEAENRERESETE

the following:

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Profit before income tax b TS E A= A 236,994 258,758
Tax calculated at corporate income B2 % M EAMEHMEER
tax rate of 256% fiE 59,248 64,690
Effects of: TAEERNZE
- Different tax rates applied — HKEATRME (20,503) (23,123)
— Income not subject to tax — BARBBA (1,861) (1,163)
— Accelerated deduction of qualified — A ERFZINFTH
expenses (11,486) (12,677)
- Tax losses not recognised — RERBIBEE 4,965 2,657
- Expenses not deductible for tax — TR B A X 541 1,110
— Under/(over) provision in prior years — BEFERETE
(EBEER ) 574 (26)
— Share of results of associates — B S N T FEE 1,325 387
32,803 31,849
11 EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 BREF
(a) Basic (a) EA

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for
the year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue for the year excluding shares held for employee share
scheme (Note 22).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
B HIAERRMTE (L)

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 11 8REF @)

(a) Basic (Continued) (a) EA (&)

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A3MALEE
2023 2022
Profit for the year (HK$'000) F W a M (FHT) 204,191 226,909
Weighted average number of ordinary BT T BRAINETHE
shares issued (thousands) (FH%) 827,353 829,557
Basic earnings per share (HK$) BREARBMGET) 0.25 0.27
(b) Diluted (b) #8
Diluted earnings per share approximates basic earnings per HE2023F K2022F12A31 81L&
share for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 as the B BREERNETGRERRT A
impact of dilutive potential shares is immaterial. 1R - TERNEEEEROTZEEM -
12 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 12 RBEEARINIRE
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had 43.01% and M2023F &2022F12A318 » A% H
32% equity interests in Motlles i Matrius Fisas Navarro, S.L. DR EEAMRFFMALNERA A
(“Motlles”), a limited liability company incorporated in Spain Motlles i Matrius Fisas Navarro, S.L.
and Shenzhen Sunmerry Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen ([Motlles ) RAEH B MK BRA
Sunmerry”), a limited liability company incorporated in PRC, AARYIFTEE B AR A B (DRI E
respectively. The principal activities of Motlles and Shenzhen 1 1)43.01% F32% R%#E > Motlles &R
Sunmerry are provision of mold modification services in YIFFEHEER EEEBE DRI AR BUNE #
Europe and the manufacturing and sales of e-cigarettes in BEEHRBERPEEERIIBEEE T
China, respectively. 1 o
The carrying amount of the investments has changed as BRERAEZBMT
follows:
2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At the beginning of the year F14) 25,368 16,296
Additions NE - 12,380
Share of results JEIRZ5R
- Share of operating profit/(losses) — JEEEELSET(E1E) 938 (2,347)
— Impairment loss — REEE (8,970) -
Dividends ) - (355)
Currency translation differences GNESRRITE =R (141) (606)
At the end of the year FR 17,195 25,368
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BRI ERERME(E)

12 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 12 REE D AINRE (|)

Shenzhen Sunmerry is not able to obtain the licence to
manufacture e-cigarettes and may not continue to operate
its business. Management is of the view that full impairment
of the investment in Shenzhen Sunmerry of HK$8,970,000
is required. No impairment is required for the investment in
Motlles.

The associates are private entities with limited liability and no
quoted price is available.

The Group has interests in the above two individually
immaterial associates which are accounted for using the equity
method. The aggregated information of the associates is
follows:

EYFTEBRARENBLEEE TIEMNE
B BB AEECEEEK B8
BRE BHERRIFHEELHKER
st 1R R 1E8,970,000/8 7T - HBH R
Motlles#)1% & 5T E °

BMERNRREREEINEER  UER

o

b

AEBER EARMKE R TEKNEE R A
RIS FAEREADRR - BBE D RIER
BRT

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31ALLEE

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FET
Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of: ANEE (LA NS IHLEEE ¢
Impairment loss BIEEE (8,970) -
Profit/(losses) from operations RN (EE) 938 (2,347)
Dividends ) - (355)
Total comprehensive loss tRE BB (8,032) (2,702)
As at 31 December
M12A318
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 17,195 16,325
Goodwill GRS - 10,043
Aggregate carrying amounts of individually {ERITEARE L D FH
immaterial associates RE A 17,195 25,368

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13 3% - BRERRE

B HPBRERME(E)

Furniture,
fixture and
Leasehold Plant and computer Motor Construction
Improvements ~ machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
HE £ER
RENELEE BERES ERRE hat:: RREIR &3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEL FEL T TEx TEx
Year ended 31 December 2023 EZ2023%12A31A
IH5E
Opening net book amount FOREFE 76,456 377,097 4,745 1,981 25,693 485,972
Currency translation differences  JMERZHEZE (1,051) (5,497) (36) (24) (517) (7,125)
Additions NE - - 4,608 459 67,267 72,334
Transfers i 19,183 52,167 - - (71,350) -
Disposals (Note 32(b)) WEM#32)) (485) (5,767) (4) - - (6,256)
Depreciation charge REZH (31,575) (97,753) (2,993) (800) - (133,121)
Closing net book amount FERERFE 62,528 320,247 6,320 1,616 21,093 411,804
At 31 December 2023 12023128318
Cost B 254,249 1,038,265 45,147 8,896 21,093 1,367,650
Accumulated depreciation and 2 TERFEE
impairment (191,721) (718,018) (38,827) (7,280) - (955,846)
Net book amount REFE 62,528 320,247 6,320 1,616 21,093 411,804
Year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F12431H
IHFE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 66,387 423,347 4,392 1,667 32,173 527,966
Currency translation differences  SMEBRENEZR (4,427) (31,395) (237) (57) (2,374) (38,490
Additions NE - - 3,556 1,040 132,313 136,909
Transfers b 44,759 91,660 - - (136,419) -
Disposals e (1,058) 2,154) (18) - - (3,230)
Depreciation charge FEXH (29,205) (104,361) (2,948) (669) - (137,183)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 76,456 377,097 4,745 1,981 25,693 485,972
At 31 December 2022 32020128318
Cost A 254,616 1,049,788 42,668 8,493 25,693 1,381,257
Accumulated depreciation and  Z3HHEREE
impairment (178,159) (672,691) (37,923) (6,512) - (895,285)
Net book amount FAFE 76,456 377,097 4,745 1,981 25,693 485,972
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BOFT R ERR N (E)
13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Depreciation charges were included in the following categories
in the profit or loss:

13 Y% - BERRE @)

FrEHET AR IR

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHxT FHET
Cost of sales SHE AR 115,446 121,094
Administrative expenses THHAX 17,519 16,002
Selling expenses HERSY 156 87
133,121 137,183

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements 5 years

Plant and machinery 5-10 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3 years
computer equipment

Motor vehicles 5 years

14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASES

(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance

M3 - B AR B R A A A (2
B 190 5 RO AR (I LRI
BT

HEMERE 54

5% 5= K # 23 5Z 104
RE -HKER 3F

EL R

a2l 54

14 EHEEEREE

(a) REHEERBREINEHE

sheet
As at 31 December
MW12H318
2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT TFET
Right-of-use assets FRHEEE 92,201 112,316
Lease liabilities HERE
Current E 68,285 75,377
Non-current JEREY 28,298 40,841
96,583 116,218
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Notestothe(ionsohdatedFﬁnancmlStauﬂnents(conﬂnued)

14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASES (Continued)

(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet (Continued)

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability when they are not short-term and not for
low-value assets. Additions to the right-of-use assets during
the year were HK$61,531,000 (2022: HK$105,256,000).

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

R ()

14 FAHAREEREE @)

) REHEERBRBERN @)

WHEETBRANIEEEEEE - I
REAFEAREEREEARE - FRAARE
FABEEEGT,531,000 T (20224
105,256,000 7T) °

b) RE MRS NEREDN S

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A31ALEE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets {FREZETESH
— Charged to cost of sales — BEENANER 61,842 67,594
- Charged to administrative expenses — BITBAX R 12,706 14,061
Expense relating to short-term and low- HEHNMEEEEEHERE
value assets leases (Note 7) R (KZ7)
— Charged to cost of sales — BEER AR 1,962 6,813
- Charged to administrative expenses — BTNk 477 1,744
Lease modification HEBH 66 101
Gain on termination of lease contracts IEF AR S - 61
Interest expense (Note 9) FIEFZ (H7E9) 4,071 4,619

(c) The total cash outflow for leases were as follows:

(c) HENRESRHAAZENT

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31ALLEE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Principal elements of lease payments HENRHASIH 73,597 76,906
Interest portion of lease payments MEF AT BE 5D 4,071 4,619

Short-term and low-value assets leases REREEEEEREMNK

payments 2,439 8,557
80,107 90,082
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RS R I (4]

14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASES (Continued)

The Group leases various offices, warehouses, equipment
and vehicles. Rental contracts are made for fixed periods of 6
months to 8 years.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the
lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-
alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for which the
Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-
lease components and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.
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14 FAHAREEREE @)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASES (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the
Group, which does not have recent third-party financing,
and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on a rate, which are not included in
the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to
lease payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease
liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use
asset.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on
a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-
value assets comprise equipments and small items of office
furniture.

BT RRME(E)

14 FAHAREEREE @)

RETIREEENE » AEHE :

o EFMEBERT  ERENFEAR
FRENES HRE AN B
A% URBREEGE= 5 RE
AR (0%

s BAEME BERAREMIFE
HEMNEERR(FOWHEE =77/
B)REERRFE - &

e ETHENBEAOMNAE - a0 H
B ExR - B &ER -

7N 5 96 T I 2K 2R ] BE IR A SR B B R] A
ENFENNRERE  mMAEBENZEHEEN
FEMEEMA TS ARERFE - &
RIBEEEL N EHHE N REL AR
ERE - HEABEREEREEELTT
EXrAHA MR -

FERAEEE—MREEFRFEHA
HABREERE)VRERETENE -
MAKREREETEITEBERER A
FHAREERHBEENTEAFHR
FLATE -

HERELEGNEHEE RABEEE
BEREHEBNNRABREN B
RAFX - HHEEREH12MEA LA
THHE - KEEEERERB RN
MOERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BRI ERERME(E)

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15 B EE

Computer Customer
software relationships Goodwill Total
ERaRH EFE% 5k S et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TART TART TAERT TART
Year ended 31 December 2023 EZ2023512A31HLEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 17,080 2,403 - 19,483
Currency translation differences INERENEZR (246) (38) - (284)
Additions NE 3,418 - - 3,418
Amortisation charge BT H (7,275) (289) - (7,564)
Closing net book amount ERIEEFE 12,977 2,076 - 15,053
At 31 December 2023 2023128310
Cost B 62,760 2,863 - 65,623
Accumulated amortisation and ZETEE A
impairment (49,783) (787) - (50,570)
Net book amount IREFE 12,977 2,076 - 15,053
Year ended 31 December 2022 220225128318 LEE
Opening net book amount EYEEFE 21,410 2,943 7,393 31,746
Currency translation differences INEmENEER (1,491) (236) (741) (2,468)
Additions NE 4,869 - - 4,869
Impairment charge WEZ - - (6,652) (6,652)
Amortisation charge i (7,708) (304) - (8,012)
Closing net book amount EREREZRE 17,080 2,403 - 19,483
At 31 December 2022 20225128318
Cost D% 60,470 2,912 6,785 70,167
Accumulated amortisation and 2B NORE
impairment (43,390) (509) (6,785) (50,684)
Net book amount REEE 17,080 2,403 - 19,483
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
B HIAERRMTE (L)

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 15 B EE (@)

(a) Amortisation charges were included in the following categories (a) BT HEr ABISH T HZER] -
in profit or loss:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALLEE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHxT FHET
Administrative expenses THAX 7,064 7,298
Cost of sales PHE K 500 714
7,564 8,012
(b) Amortisation methods and periods (b) #eE %N Hi R
The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful life AEBGRAEREE NI BABREAFR
using the straight-line method over the following periods: ERFE A FNER EE T A -
Computer software 3-10 years B 3E104F
Customer relationships 10 years BEFARF 10
16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 16 ZERE TSR T A
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets SRMEE
At amortised cost bi7e £ YOI S
— Trade and other receivables (excluding — B 5 MEMERFRIE
non-financial assets) (TBiEFEesmERE) 321,199 294,393
- Deposits for bank borrowings — RITEENZS - 157,138
- Cash and cash equivalents — R RBESEEY 1,158,156 1,114,456
At fair value BARBER=
- Financial assets at FVPL — BARBEFEAHEES
FFABENEREE 33,621 33,621
Financial liabilities =R
At amortised cost bire 3 YIS
— Trade and other payables (excluding — B NHEMPERNFRIE
non-financial liabilities) (T BiEEesmanE) 237,796 265,627
- Bank borrowings — R1TEE 25,708 347,015
— Lease liabilities —HEaE 96,583 116,218
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BB HRRIEE(E)

17 INVENTORIES 17 #8&

As at 31 December

MW12H318
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Raw materials R4 %
— At cost — RN 20,896 45,957
- At NRV — A ERRE 592 320
Work in progress - i
— At cost — R 256,833 271,608
- At NRV — RA IR E 16,349 12,367
Finished goods RUEY Gh
- At cost — B 65,397 61,497
— At NRV — RAEIRRE 15 113
360,082 391,862

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and NRV. Cost is
determined using the weighted average method for the plastic
components manufacturing business and first-in-first-out
method for the mold fabrication business. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises direct materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads
allocated on normal operating capacity. It excluded borrowing
costs. NRV is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The cost of inventories for the year included in cost of
sales, selling expenses and administrative expenses were
approximately HK$603,351,000 (2022: HK$827,101,000),
HK$91,000 (2022: HK$24,000) and HK$30,476,000 (2022:
HK$36,260,000), respectively.

The Group reversed HK$3,305,000 of inventory previously
write-down during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
HK$3,764,000), as the Group sold the relevant inventories that
had been written down to customers at prices above the NRV.
The amount reversed has been included in ‘cost of sales’ in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

B HPBRERME(E)

18 B 5 R HMEWRIE

As at 31 December

MW12H318
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Trade receivables (a) E 5 W IEa) 320,225 297,701
Less: allowance for impairment B R ERE (4,289) (9,668)
Trade receivables, net B ZEIRGIAEF 58 315,936 288,033
Export tax refund receivables H R TR E U Sk IE 3,199 2,369
Prepayments and deposits (b) TR RIBRIES (D) 15,994 36,643
Value-added tax recoverable A] U [Bl3E(E F 12,422 9,822
Advances to employees AlREEN 3,643 3,200
Loans to an associate (Note 35(d)) ] — A& A RIREE K
(K17£35(d)) - 2,297
Others Eih 1,620 863
352,814 343,227
(a) Trade receivables (a) EZ WA
The credit period granted to customers is generally between BETEFHEEH KN FI0£90A -
30 and 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade receivables from ZoRWHIEAHEBBERNERRD T
the date of sales is as follows: (N
As at 31 December
R12H31H
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Less than 3 months ={EAUA 267,075 281,734
More than 3 months but not EE=EAENEA—F
exceeding 1 year 52,327 15,539
More than 1 year HBils—F 823 428
320,225 297,701
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BT RN (E)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18 B 5 & H fth FE WK TE (@)
(a) Trade receivables (Continued) (a) B 5 FEWFIE (4)
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for BOEWHENRBESERKBERRD
goods sold and services provided in the ordinary course of ERERIEHBEEMEKSPHRIE -
business. They are generally due for settlement within 90 ZERIEBEEIOCRNI AT - Ft
days and therefore all classified as current. Trade receivables BEPERRDEE - B 5 EIWKIEY]
are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that FIEEIEHRESEER  BRIEEES
is unconditional, unless they contain significant financing BAMEKD  BIRAABEWER - K
components, when they are recognised at fair value. The EEEAEFIEWNZKIES TWERA LI
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect eneE - Bt HERAERMNERE
the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them B ARG S
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
Movements of the Group's allowance for impairment of trade NEEE S EWRTENREREGEZE N
receivables are as follows: ™
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLEE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
At 1 January »1HA1H 9,668 14,272
Reversal of loss allowance recognised BE D EREERE (5,284) (3,316)
Receivables written off during the year G A R A LA [0 10 il 85 BY
as uncollectible FEMFR IR - (845)
Currency translation differences GNERRITE =R (95) (443)
At 31 December »W12HA31H 4,289 9,668

(b) Prepayments and deposits mainly represent prepayments for

purchases of raw materials.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVPL include the

B HPBRERME(E)

19 RAARBEFEBEEZBHTAR

sNEREE

BEENBREAABEAERARZEH

following: ABEMEREERRETHZE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Non-current assets FREEE
Unlisted equity investments JELMERIRE
- At beginning and end of the year — RNEY R FR 33,621 33,621
Current assets REEE
Wealth management products B E MW
— Beginning of the year — F9) = -
— Additions — RNE 881,057 1,241,318
— Interest income recognised in profit — RIBZEFEREF B UA
and loss 4,240 15,811
— Disposals — HE (885,297) (1,257,129)
- End of the year — FR = -

The wealth management products were placed with banks in
the PRC for cash management purposes with effective interest
rates ranging from 1.9% to 3.1% (2022: 2.4% to 4.5%) per
annum and mature within six months.

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

BMERGTENRNTPRMNIRT  (EREE
BAZ BEEFMNENTI19%E3.1%
(2022%F - 24%E45%)  WH/NE A
REIE -

20 BERBREEEY

As at 31 December

R12H31H
2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
Cash and bank balances (a) IRE NMIRTTER () 1,158,156 1,271,594
Less: deposits for bank borrowings B IRITIBREMNES - (157,138)
Cash and cash equivalents RERBLEED 1,158,156 1,114,456

RTSHE () BRAOQF 2023FH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
O RS ERRMIEE(4B)

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 20 REeRBREEEY @)

(a) The cash and bank balance are denominated in the following (a) RERPITEAUTYEEE

currencies:
As at 31 December
R12H31H
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
RMB AR 1,090,683 1,126,096
usD ET 37,750 81,302
EUR BT 19,562 21,503
HK$ BT 8,340 36,827
Others Hih 1,821 5,866
1,158,156 1,271,594
21 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 21 BAR B0 RE
Number of Nominal Share
ordinary shares value premium Total
LEREA HfE R EE @t
thousands HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tk FET THT THT
Authorised EE
As at 1 January 2022, 31 December 72022F1 18 ~ 2022127
2022 and 31 December 2023 318 1%2023F12A318 2,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid BRIRME
As at 1 January 2022, 31 December R2022F1 418 ~ 2022F12A
2022 and 31 December 2023 31HR2023F12A31H 833,260 83,326 251,293 334,619
(a) All shares issued rank pari passu with each other. (a) FIBEETROHBEILZAERSEZ -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BT RRNITEE)

22 SHARES HELD FOR EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME 22 BEERMtEEENRE

2023 2022
Number of Total Number of Total
shares consideration shares  consideration
BHHE RELE BinEE RERSE
(thousands) HK$'000 (thousands) HK$'000
(FH) TER (Fi) TEx
At 1 January B1A1H 4,578 14,401 2,932 10,416
Additions BE 1,930 3,278 1,646 3,985
At 31 December ®12A31H8 6,508 17,679 4,578 14,401

The Group acquires the Company’s shares through its trustee,
Bank of Communications Trustee Limited (the “Trustee”), for
the Share Award Scheme (Note 25). The total consideration
paid for acquisitions of these shares is presented as a
deduction from equity of the Company. These shares are held
by the Trustee for the purpose of granting share to be awarded
under the Share Award Scheme.

AEBBEBESTEARBRITERAR
REAZFEADBEARA KD - AR
P tn 22 @) AT 8 (Mi3E25) - BEZEK A
MENKEBREC 2 REARAER
RHIRR o RERMBZTEARTE IR
R BB S B A 4 2R -

23 OTHER RESERVES 23 HAtif#E

Shares-based Currency

Statutory payments translation
reserves reserve reserve Total

D5 A EH

LERE HARERE & 5 f#E Foh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER
At 1 January 2023 R2023F181A8 143,566 7,329 (81,389) 69,506
Share-based payment WD BERRR - 3,087 - 3,087
Transfer to statutory reserves (a) ~ ERZEET () 9,097 = = 9,097
Currency translation differences INEBRRITEER - - (29,427) (29,427)
At 31 December 2023 #2023%F12A31H 152,663 10,416 (110,816) 52,263
At 1 January 2022 R2022F1818 131,035 5,261 64,936 201,232
Share-based payment PARR 1D BETEE (T 51 - 2,068 - 2,068
Transfer to statutory reserves EBREETRE 12,531 - - 12,531
Currency translation differences INERRMEZR - - (146,325) (146,325)
At 31 December 2022 20225128310 143,566 7,329 (81,389) 69,506

RTSHE () BRAOQF 2023FH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BT BHRRME ()
23 OTHER RESERVES (Continued)

(a) Statutory reserves

23 HibfRE @)

(a) EEREME

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Group should make
appropriation of not less than 10% of their net income after
tax to a statutory reserve. Further appropriation is optional
when the accumulated statutory reserve is 50% or more of its
registered capital. The statutory reserves can be used to offset
accumulated losses of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group.

24 RETAINED EARNINGS

REFPBEMEARZNEAR  AEENT
B BN AR B RIFRAT DR
0% BIEEERE - BRFDEERBE
FEFMER0%KIA LK - JEFTR
ERBE—FTRE ZERBIANE
HARENTEKEARMNRAESE -

24 REEF

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31ALLEE

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

At 1 January M1A1H 1,215,871 1,096,484
Profit for the year FREF 204,191 226,909
Dividends paid (Note 31) ERIRER(HEE31) (94,991) (94,991)
Transfer to statutory reserves (Note 23(a)) ¢ Z %5 TE B (H7123(a)) (9,097) (12,531)
At 31 December ®12AH31H 1,315,974 1,215,871

25 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME

The Company adopted a share award scheme on 25 February
2019 (the “Share Award Scheme”) as a means to recognise
the contribution by the Group’s personnel and to provide them
with incentives to retain them for the continual operation
and development of the Group. Pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme, the vesting period of the awarded shares is 5 years
from their respective grant dates.

Fair value of the awarded shares granted represents the
market value of those awarded shares at their respective grant
dates. The fair value is recognised as an expense over the
relevant service period, which is the years to which the bonus
relates and the vesting period of the shares.

The Group planned to use the shares held for employee share
scheme to award the grantees of the Share Award Scheme
(Note 22). As at 31 December 2023, no share has been vested
since the establishment of the scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

25 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (continued)

Movements in the number of awarded shares are as follows:

B HIAERRMTE (L)
25 EERHBEE (&)
SEERAB A EFMT

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE

2023 2022
At 1 January M1A1A8 4,578,000 2,691,974
Granted = 1,999,974 1,886,026
Forfeited B (265,965) -
At 31 December MW12A31H8 6,312,009 4,578,000

Awarded shares granted and outstanding have the following
grant dates and vest dates with zero exercise price:

ERHNRBEITEINEBRODAE THRE
FHEEBEY  THRERT :

Number of Number of Number of
shares shares shares
Grant date Vest date granted forfeited outstanding
B R BT
Rk E =F RO#E RO#E ROBE
31 January 2019 31 January 2024 1,153,815 (196,738) 957,077
201941 A31H 20241 H31H
20 January 2020 31 January 2025 1,811,792 (223,177) 1,588,615
202041 H20H 20251 H31H
20 April 2022 19 April 2027 1,886,026 (66,251) 1,819,775
202244 H20H 20274 H19R
2 June 2023 2 June 2028 1,999,974 (53,432) 1,946,542
2023%6H2H 2028 6H2H
Total 6,312,009
st

The Group has to estimate the expected employee retention
rate of the share award scheme in order to determine the
amount of share-based compensation expenses charged to
profit or loss. As at 31 December 2023, the expected retention
rate was 92% (2022: 94%).

AEEAMARD EEENTEES
BER  NEBETEEINBRHURNGN B
EMHOBEERSTSE - R2023F12 A
318 EHBFEAEI2% (2022F
94%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BRI ERERME(E)

26 BORROWINGS 26 8 &
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FET
Non-current JERNEA
Bank borrowings — unsecured IRITIEE — EIKH 25,708 149,327
Less: current portion of non-current B FERNERE B R RENE S
borrowings (25,708) (88,784)
- 60,543
Current ENHA
Bank borrowings — secured RITIEE — GHEE = 116,060
Bank borrowings — unsecured IRITEE — EIKH - 81,628
Current portion of non-current borrowings  3EENERE EH R EIEEH 25,708 88,784
25,708 286,472
Total borrowings EEHA%E 25,708 347,015

(a) The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in (a) BEEMNEAMBEKR NIEETE :
the following currencies:

As at 31 December

MW12831H
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
UsD ETT 24,082 94,575
HK$ BT 1,626 136,380
EUR BT = 116,060
25,708 347,015

(b) All borrowings were at floating rates and the exposure of (b) REEBERBE  2EERZHF

the borrowings to interest-rate changes and the contractual RS MEFMEREFERLEESYD
repricing dates at the balance sheet date were 6 months or EHEERAARGMEALAR -
less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

26 BORROWINGS (Continued)

(c) The borrowings are repayable as follows:

B HPBRERME(E)

26 5 & (&)

(c) BEEHERUTHRAMERE :
As at 31 December
R12H31H

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 1 year 196" 25,708 286,472
Between 1 and 2 years 1229 - 60,543
25,708 347,015
(d) As at 31 December 2023, the effective weighted average (d) A2023F 12 A31H * EEMEFH

interest rates was 5.29% (31 December 2022: 1.79%) per

annum.

(e) The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its
bank borrowings during the year ended 31 December 2023 and

2022.

27 DEFERRED INCOME

The amount represented various grants received from local
government authorities in the PRC. The movements in

deferred income are as follows:

(e)

27

FFERE529% (202212 A318 :
1.79%) ©

HE2023F %2022 12 A31 B 1L 4
B AEBDETHRETEENTBER

it

DEO
IEFE YL A

ZANIRTE B P Bl T BT R AR &
TRMER - BEWAZZHINT

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

At 1 January M1A1H 43,412 61,316
Granted i 9,851 3,044
Recognised in the profit or loss RIBERER (15,738) (16,307)
Currency translation differences INERRITEZR (775) (4,641)
At 31 December M12A31H 36,750 43,412

RTSHE () BRAOQF 2023FH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BTSRRI EE(E)

28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28 EF R HMENRIEA
As at 31 December
M®12A831H

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Trade payables (a) B 5 eI 5kIA (a) 227,712 250,007
Wages and staff welfare benefits payable [EftTE NIEEET] 88,257 73,223
Accrual for expenses and other payables EETHE S R E M EN KA 10,084 15,620
Other taxes payable HAth fETFE IR 9,143 9,751
335,196 348,601

(a) The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the goods/ (a) BESEMNFIBRE R, REEKA M
services receipt date is as follows: BRER DTN -

As at 31 December

M12A318
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHET
0 -90 days 0£90H 177,935 194,821
91 - 120 days 91£2120H 31,423 34,080
121 — 365 days 1212365H 10,577 16,200
Over 365 days iHhia365H 7,777 4,906
227,712 250,007
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

29 CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the advance
payments made by customers related to contracts with
customers while the underlying goods and services are yet
to be provided. The increase in contract liabilities was mainly
attributable to a increase in sales orders on hand that are not
fully satisfied.

Revenue recognised in the current reporting period relates
to carried-forward contract liabilities for sales of goods was
HK$129,007,000 (2022: HK$187,055,000).

The aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to
sales orders on hand that are partially or fully unsatisfied
as at 31 December 2023 was HK$830,602,000 (2022:
HK$814,192,000).

Management expects that 70% of the transaction price
allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations as of 31
December 2023 will be recognised as revenue during the
next reporting period. The amount does not include variable
consideration which is constrained.

BT RRME(E)

29 EWATE

AEENEHNBREIEELBREPIE
F & #) H R 4R £t &9 48 BE 7 am Se AR 75 AT
XANWBANRE - ANEEENERMR
RARTRTERNETFTHEREZM -

RARESHHERREEERRNGE
AHBEABHKRA 129,007,000/ T
(20224 : 187,055,000/ 7T) °

MR2023F 12 A31H » BHHE2IHE
ERHEFHETENRZERAR
% %4 /5 830,602,000 7 T ( 2022 &F
814,192,000/ 7T) °

EIRETEH - R2023F12A31H © O/
ERATHEHNEEORZERPT0% K
RTEREHEERABKRA - 2BFE
EZR B AT ERE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BT RN (E)

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 30 FELETBH
The analysis of deferred tax assets and liabilities is as follows: BEREHIBEERBESTEOT :

As at 31 December

®12A31H
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Before offsetting KEH Al
Deferred income tax assets: EEMEMEE
—to be recovered after more than 12 months ~ — 452838 121& A 14 U 8 17,202 20,637
- to be recovered within 12 months — B 1218 A AUk El 12,199 10,927
29,401 31,564
Deferred income tax liabilities: REFTEREE
- to be settled after more than 12 months — $RRBI2MEAKLEE (47,054) (57,562)
- to be settled within 12 months — BRM2{E A NEEE (728) (3,681)
(47,782) (61,243)
After offsetting K&
Deferred income tax assets EIERTSHEE 5,019 1,643
Deferred income tax liabilities BLEASTHARE (23,400) (31,322)
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities BEFEHREERBBENESNOT ¢
are as follows:
Accrued
expenses and Deferred Lease
Deferred income tax assets Tax losses  impairment income liabilities Total
FEREX
EEFEHEE HEER KiAE EEWA HESE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FEL FEL T THL
As at 1 January 2023 2023F1A18 5,207 5,720 6,399 14,238 31,564
Recognised in profit or loss RERHER 1,152 375 (888) (2,227) (1,588)
Currency translation differences NEREMEER (83) (172) (111) (209) (575)
As at 31 December 2023 12023F 128318 6,276 5,923 5,400 11,802 29,401
As at 1 January 2022 202241418 2,325 7,331 9,197 16,411 34,264
Recognised in profit or loss RERRR 2,825 (1,155) 2,092) - (422)
Currency translation differences INERRNEZE 57 (456) (706) (1,173) (2,278)
As at 31 December 2022 12022F12A318 5,207 5,720 6,399 14,238 31,564
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

B HPBRERME(E)

30 IEZEFTISH (&)

Accelerated
tax  Withholding  Right-of-use

Deferred income tax liabilities depreciation income tax assets Total
EEFMEHREE MEHETE AMAEHR EREEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THL FHEL FEL FET

As at 1 January 2023 1202361718 (43,732) (3,681) (13,830) (61,243)
Recognised in profit or loss RERTHER 7,394 2,964 2,222 12,580
Currency translation differences INEFRMEZE 692 (11) 200 881
As at 31 December 2023 20235 12A31H (35,646) (728) (11,408) (47,782)
As at 1 January 2022 120221418 (44,074) (7,900) (14,987) (66,961)
Recognised in profit or loss RIERER (3,212) 4,190 16 994
Currency translation differences INERRINEZER 3,654 29 1,141 4,724
As at 31 December 2022 20226128318 (43,732) (3,681) (13,830) (61,243)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carry-forward to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefits through the future taxable profits is probable.
As at 31 December 2023, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the unused tax losses amounting to
HK$107,114,000 (31 December 2022: HK$70,428,000) as its
realisation is uncertain. Such tax losses were mainly incurred
from certain subsidiaries which are incorporated in Hong Kong
and may be carried forward indefinitely.

BB HREEARBHREEETSE
AR R FE R B m A FIR M A SR B IR E
R - P2023F12A318  #HER
KRERFIBEEE107,114,0007 70(2022
128318 : 70,428,000 7T ) FERIE
EFHIBEEE  DEREERGFETETE
Mo R EBEDETEARE M
B AR E T B A R E A ook 2 4R 1
i o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BT RN (E)

31 DIVIDENDS

31 RE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Interim dividend paid of HK2.8 cents FRHARG BOaR B I SRR
(2022 Interim: HK2.8 cents) 2.8l (2022 8 :
per ordinary share 2. .87l IR A 23,331 23,331
Proposed final dividend of HK7.5 cents e N =i
(2022 Final: HK8.6 cents)
per ordinary share (20224 K : 8.6/81l) 62,495 71,660
Proposed special dividend of HK10.0 cents & 45 B E I E A
(2022: Nil) per ordinary share 10.0781(20224F : #) 83,326 -
169,152 94,991

The dividends paid in 2023 and 2022 were HK$94,991,000
(HK11.4 cents per share) and HK$94,991,000 (HK11.4 cents
per share) respectively. A final dividend and a special dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023 of HK7.5
cents and HK10.0 cents per share, respectively, amounting to
a total of approximately HK$62,495,000 and HK$83,326,000,
respectively, is to be approved at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

32 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash generated

from operations:

32 B R ERERME

B HPBRERME(E)

(a) BRATSH AN FI R EMSRSEEK

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Profit before income tax & FT1S84 AT % 7 236,994 258,758
Adjustments for: -
Depreciation of property, plant and WE - BB NREITE
equipment 133,121 137,183
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEETE 74,548 81,655
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) for FERE(BERE)
inventories (Note 7) (K1aE7) 12,187 (2,753)
Share of results of associates eI A RIRE 8,032 2,347
Amortisation of intangible assets B A 7,564 8,012
Share award scheme (Note 8) f& 10 S @ AT &I (HYaE8) 3,087 2,068
Lease modification HEEBNH (66) (101)
Reversal of impairment loss on eHMEERERERLD
financial assets (2,978) (3,316)
Gain on disposals of property, plant and HEMZE - BE K&
equipment (Note 6) MUz (M iE6) (3,513) (2,053)
Finance income - net (Note 9) B A — SFE(HTaE9) (10,311) (13,355)
Impairment loss of goodwill HEREEE - 6,652
Derecognition of contingent BUBRER S ARE
consideration - (2,373)
Gain on termination of lease contracts BIEH AR S - (61)
Changes in working capital: BEEGH
Contract liabilities aHaE 27,900 (62,563)
Inventories FE 19,593 106,535
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b FEYRIE (6,098) 79,565
Trade and other payables g5 M E MR FRIE (44,391) (178,949)
Restricted cash ZREE e - 1,231
Cash generated from operations REATRIRE 455,669 418,482
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BT RN (E)

32 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

32 SR ERERME @)

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from

disposals of property, plant and equipment comprise:

(b) REHRERERA - HEWE  BFE

P&

BRERLE

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Net book amount disposed of EHEREFE 6,256 3,230
Gain on disposals (Note 6) HE W (fEe6) 3,513 2,053
Proceeds from disposals HERNERIE 9,769 5,283
(c) The movements in liabilities from financing activities: (c) RERBEZBMNBEES :
Leases  Borrowings Total
HE Ey-i wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHET
As at 1 January 2023 R2023F181H 116,218 347,015 463,233
Cash flows Reng
Principal amounts & (73,597) (322,677) (396,274)
Interest payments B (4,071) (8,414) (12,485)
Other changes Hfth 2
New leases HHE 61,531 - 61,531
Lease modification HEBH (5,334) - (5,334)
Foreign exchange adjustments b 5% (2,235) 1,370 (865)
Interest expense B 4,071 8,414 12,485
As at 31 December 2023 M2023%12831H 96,583 25,708 122,291
As at 1 January 2022 R2022%F181H 104,467 339,169 443,636
Cash flows Rene
Principal amounts PN (76,906) 15,131 (61,775)
Interest payments SRR (4,619) (4,791) (9,410)
Other changes Hfth
New leases g 105,256 - 105,256
Termination of lease contracts and BIFEHREEER
lease modification (7,871) - (7,871)
Foreign exchange adjustments b 3 AR (8,728) (7,913) (16,641)
Interest expense MBS 4,619 5,419 10,038
As at 31 December 2022 7%2022%F12831H 116,218 347,015 463,233
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

32 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(d) Non-cash investing and financing activities represented the
acquisition of right of use asset (Note 14).

33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities (31 December 2022: Nil).

34 COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments

The Group had the following capital commitments:

B HPBRERME(E)

32 EHEERERM T @)

(d) B L BERBETHIEEESEARE
E(MizE14) -

33 HZAREE

M2023F12A31H » REEWEL(E
KA BB (2022128318 « #) -

34 &iE
(a) EAEHE
REFEE T EAFRIE

As at 31 December

M12A318
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Additions of plant and equipment: RNEBEWE RS
— Contracted but not provided for — DEIAVEREE 13,695 22,489

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases premises under non-cancellable operating
lease agreements. The Group had future aggregate minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as

(b) MEHEAEIE

AEEREMNIHESCEHEHEEE
WE - AEERBETIAIHMECEEE
NEVRRRIEEEFRBARNT

follows:
As at 31 December
MW12H318
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FET
Not later than one year —F R

- to related companies — TR A A 2,286 1,743
— to third parties — FE=F 143 352
2,429 2,095
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BT BHRRME ()
35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Names and relationship

The following companies and individuals were related parties
of the Group that have transactions or balances with the Group

35 BELXRS
(a) BIERBAE

AT RARIRERALABEZE2023F &
2022F12A3MBIFEHAERER S

for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022: AR AR EBREER
Name of the related party Relationship with the Group
BELSER BEAREENER
TK Technology Holdings Limited Entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
RIMKEEARAA RSIRRIZEHIN B 88
TK Technology (Shenzhen) Limited Entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
ROIRB ORI BR AR RIERRIEH O E S
Shenzhen Sunmerry Associate
IRYIFT ik /N

(b) Transactions with related parties during the year

The following transactions with entities controlled by Ultimate
Shareholders were undertaken by the Group during the year.

(b) FREBETNRS

FRARNEEESRREIEFI N TRET
MRZBUWT °

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Payment of lease liabilities YREERE 61,418 69,744
Interest expense paid on lease liabilities HEaENmERF B 1,836 2,095
Operating lease expenses paid B EHERY 1,631 5,418
Total HEt 64,885 77,257

The amounts mainly represented rental payments for land and
buildings used for factory, office and other facilities purposes.
The related additions of right-of-use assets for the year ended
31 December 2023 were approximately HK$61,531,000 (2022:
HK$68,725,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BTSRRI TE ()

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 35 BEAIRS (@)
(c) Key management personnel compensation (c) TEEEE ASFH

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLLEE

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Wages, salaries and bonuses TE - FHekitsd 27,621 24,079
Share award scheme f& (7 12 By AT B 1,148 988
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIK& AR — REHFE 2 163 163
28,932 25,230

(d) Loan to an associate (d) @ —REEE N RIREER

2023 2022

HK$°000 HK$'000

FERT FHEIT

Beginning of the year F4) 2,297 -
Loan advanced TERTER = 2,240
Interest charged I ER FI] 2, 45 57
Allowance for impairment BB (2,306) -
Currency translation differences INEERRITE E R (36) -
Balance at end of year FRERS - 2,297
An allowance of HK$2,306,000 (2022: Nil) was recognised AR ENRMEBRNE  EELABITEN
in relation to the loan to related party during the year as B MAFARMBESRENER
the associate had financial difficulty to fulfill repayment R #2,306,00078 70 (20224F - £E) -

obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BRI ERERME(E)

36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 36 A AREEEBRRFEED
OF THE COMPANY
(a) Balance sheet of the Company (a) K RRIBEEEEBER
As at 31 December
®12A31H
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHxT FHET
Assets EE
Non-current assets FEREEE
Investments in subsidiaries RITB AT IRE 231,471 228,384
Deferred income tax assets BEFTSIREE 37 42
231,508 228,426
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG 413,786 323,269
Cash and cash equivalents RERBLEED 113 20,311
413,899 343,580
Total assets EELE 645,407 572,006
Equity and liabilities ERRERE
Equity fE=
Share capital A% A 83,326 83,326
Share premium f& 0% 8 425,815 425,815
Shares held for employee share BIEEBRMETEIRA
scheme )i (17,679) (14,401)
Other reserves H bt 10,416 7,329
Retained earnings IR & 143,022 69,470
Total equity RS 644,900 571,539
Liabilities aE
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H h FE < 5K I8 507 467
Total liabilities EEHAE 507 467
Total equity and liabilities ERRBEEHAE 645,407 572,006
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board ARG EEBBREEETN20244F3
of Directors on 22 March 2024 and was signed on its behalf: RA22B8#t# - WAHTIHESRERES -
Li Pui Leung Yung Kin Cheung Michael
MR SEA
Director Director
EE E2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BTSRRI TE ()

36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Other reserves of the Company

Other reserves represent share-based payments reserve.

36 A RREEEBRERBRESZE @

(b) ADQBHAbFE

HAbfE e AR R ERE R RS -

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FAT

At 1 January M1A1H 7,329 5,261
Employee share schemes — BB 1n&T &l

value of employee services — EERGEE 3,087 2,068

At 31 December M12H318 10,416 7,329

(c) Retained earnings of the Company (c) RATMREBI&EF

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

At 1 January »1A1H 69,470 69,636

Profit for the year F N F 168,543 94,825

Dividends f% 2 (94,991) (94,991)

At 31 December ®W12HA31H 143,022 69,470
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BB HRRIEE(E)

37 SUBSIDIARIES 37 KB AT

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

AR AR2023F12 A31ENEZEHEA

December 2023, all of which are limited liability companies: AI(HEER AR )YIE :
Place of Principal activities and Particulars of
Company name incorporation place of operation issued share capital Interest held
Pk EMRIHE FEEERLCEHE BRITRAEFE HEER
TK Group International BVI Trading of plastic products 50,000 ordinary shares of 100%
(Hong Kong) Limited* and molds/Hong Kong USD 1 each
RISERER(FE)AERAR® RBRAHE YBERRERES/EE  50,000RFREMEIETHERER 100%
TK Plastics (Suzhou) PRC Manufacture of plastic Paid-in capital of HK$10,000,000 100%
Limited* products/PRC
RIEBHR(FMN)BRA R i HEEBHE,/TH E & 710,000,000/ 7T 100%
TK Mold (Shenzhen) Limited* PRC Fabrication of mold/PRC Paid-in capital of HK$132,000,000 100%
RIBE(RIDBRRA i BESME /hE EIR& 4132,000,0003 T 100%
TK Precision Plastics PRC Manufacture of plastic Paid-in capital of HK$166,000,000 100%
(Shenzhen) Limited? products/PRC
RIBeTZ (RN AR R AN h HEERHR,/ TR B & 7%166,000,00075 7T 100%
TK Precision Plastics PRC Manufacture of plastic Paid-in capital of HK$10,000,000 100%
(Huizhou) Limited* products/PRC
RIBeNTZ (BN AR AN h HEERHR,/ TR E & 7£10,000,0007% T 100%
TK Mold Germany GmbH Germany Fabrication of mold/Germany  Paid-in capital of EUR25,600 100%
TK Mold Germany GmbH edei] BEEUE BE BUE A 25,6008 7T 100%
*  Shares held directly by the Company *  ARREERERG
*  Registered as wholly owned foreign enterprises under PRC laws t o REBEPEEEIMAIEEERE

Significant restrictions BAIRE
RETENER(2ERE)BENRE
MARTTH BB T & 1 IMNE B HI0EH -
ZEERHBZFEREE AR N
PR (EERERIN) o 5 AE P
RNERAZERHNRE RIBITEBRD
8K ™ {8 4 927,869,000 Jt (2022 £
920,786,000/ 7T) °

Cash and bank balances held in certain Asian countries
(including PRC) are subject to local exchange control
regulations. These regulations provide for restrictions on
exporting capital from those countries, other than through
normal dividends. The carrying amount of the cash and bank
balances included within the consolidated financial statements
to which these restrictions apply is HK$927,869,000 (2022:
HK$920,786,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BTSRRI TE ()

38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is

set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2023:

38 EEEARER

(a) EBERESITTHRAEME

BEENESTBRABNZTMESIAT

HZE2023F12831ALEE :

Employer's
contribution
to retirement

Discretionary benefit
Name Fees Salary bonus scheme Total
BHREHGHE
#e ik e BiEA WEEHT H
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$"000
THER TER THER THER THR
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Li Pui Leung THRAE 500 2,580 2,327 18 5,425
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael (i) SEALEN 500 2,172 2,078 18 4,768
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TRBRE 500 1,414 1,188 18 3,120
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa RRERE 250 1,923 1,288 18 3,479
Independent non-executive Directors B FHTES
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy BLYEL 340 - - - 340
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong LENEE 340 - - - 340
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung 2EUTt 340 - - - 340
2,770 8,089 6,881 72 17,812
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BRI ERERME(E)

38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 38 EETFA R ER @)
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERBESTHAEMS (@)
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022: BZE2022F12A318 LFE :
Employer's
contribution
to retirement
Discretionary benefit
Name Fees Salary bonus scheme Total
RARERETE
#e ik e BEEL  HEFEX &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T ThET TR TiEm TR

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Li Pui Leung EMREE 500 2,734 1,591 18 4,843

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael SEARE 500 2,360 1,420 18 4,298

Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TRIBRE 500 1,554 812 18 2,884

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa REERE 250 2,036 881 18 3,185

Independent non-executive Directors B FHTES

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy EsTET 321 - - - 371

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong okt 321 - - - 321

Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung 2BLL T 321 - - - 321
2,113 8,684 4,704 72 16,173

(i) Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael is also the chief executive officer. (i BDEITENBITHRER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(b) Directors’ other benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any
directors in respect of their other services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking for the year (2022: Nil).

None of the directors of the Company waived any emoluments
for the year (2022: Nil).

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to joint, or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office for the year (2022: Nil).

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of the
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with the directors of the Company for the year (2022:
Nil).

Saved for the transactions disclosed in Note 35, there were no
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

BT RRME(E)

38 EETFFARERS @)

(b) ESHMWER

FAR-EAESHENTEARFNE
B 8 B 55 75 A B B L b AR %5 S AN B
FEWCRIKIRA (20224 « &) -

FR - BEARAESTHRETAHNE
(20224 : &) -

FAN - ANEEBERE SN E M B
- EARSIFEEMALEEKEAR
EMAREERHNRESKIEABBHE
(20224 : &) o

FA-BMEUNES  ZFEFEHR
ANEBLRERARREZTAHENERS
RBmANER  EERREMRZ 5 (2022
FE) -

BRI FESBPT KB BN - MERKF
=S RS I NNTSIE 3] VAR S CIEE RN
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BEARERAEARENEARS &%
HREH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RS R I (4]

39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

39.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
where the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting (see (c) below), after
initially being recognised at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

39.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(Continued)

(c) Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses
of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’'s share of
movements in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable
from associates are recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest
in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-accounted
investees have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested
for impairment in accordance with the policy described in Note
39.7.

39

39.1

(c)

DTSR R P A (4R

Hi e BE AN ST BREE
(%)

ORI R ERE A ()
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RS R I (4]

39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

39.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’'s net assets including
goodwill.

39.3 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion
of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but
not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

39.4 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). RMB and HK$ are the functional
currencies of principal operating subsidiaries of the Group.
These consolidated financial statements are presented in
HK$, which is the presentation and functional currency of the
Company.
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Notestothe(ionsohdatedFﬁnancmlEﬁatenwents(conﬂnued)

39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

39.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances

(c)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income within
‘Other gains — net’.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

e assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

e income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transaction); and

e all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.
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39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

39.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Construction in progress is property, plant and equipment on
which construction work has not been completed and stated
at cost. Cost includes acquisition and construction expenditure
incurred, interest and other direct costs attributable to the
development. Depreciation is not provided on construction in
progress until the related asset is completed for intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’'s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 39.7).

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within ‘Other gains — net’ in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

39.6 Intangible assets

(a) Computer software
Acquired software licenses are capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software.

(b) Customer relationships
Customer relationships acquired as part of a business
combination are recognised at fair value and carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

39.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets. Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BB HRRIEE(E)

39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

39.8 Financial assets

(a)

(b

~—

(c)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income or through profit or
loss); and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’'s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.
For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are
expensed in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

39.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group's business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or
loss and presented in other gains — net together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses
are presented as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

e FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains — net. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method.

e FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within ‘other
gains — net’ in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BRI ERERME(E)

39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

39.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)

(d

L)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at
fair value. Where the Group’'s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments
in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss
following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group's right to receive payments is
established.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

39.9 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with bank, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and bank overdrafts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

39.10Share capital and shares held for employee share

scheme

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity
instruments, for example as the result of a share buy-back or
a share-based payment plan, the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income
taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to the owners of
the Company as treasury shares until the shares are cancelled
or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are subsequently
reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the related
income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
owners of the Company.

39.11Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

39.12Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount
is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BB HRRIEE(E)

39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

39.13Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets
are capitalised during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

39.14Current and deferred income tax

(a)

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and considers whether it
is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either based
on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on
which method provides a better prediction of the resolution of
the uncertainty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BTSRRI ()

39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 39 Hitt AT B E KM 5T BRI E
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) (4&)
39.14Current and deferred income tax (Continued) 39.14 BN EA & IR SE P15 %t (48)

(b) Deferred income tax

(b) JEFEFTEH

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in foreign operations where the company
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

39.15Employee benefits

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
benefits and accumulating sick leave that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service are recognised
in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the
reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations within
“trade and other payables” in the consolidated balance sheet.

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate fund. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has
no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing based on a formula that takes
into consideration the profit attributable to the Company's
shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BTSRRI ()

39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 39 Hitt AT B E KM 5T BRI E
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) ()

39.16Share-based payments 016 AR 10 B EB T =X

The Group operates equity-settled, share-based compensation
plans, under which the Group receives services from
employees as consideration for equity instruments (award
shares) of the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the award shares is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the award shares
granted.

The grant by the Company over its equity instruments to
the employees of subsidiaries in the Group is treated as
a capital contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date fair value,
is recognised over the vesting period as an increase to
investments in subsidiaries, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity accounts.

39.17Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to operating costs are deferred
and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment
are included in deferred income and are credited to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the expected useful lives of the related
assets.
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39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

39.18Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the following lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of the
liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-
of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar
terms, security and conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
B HIAERRMTE (L)

39 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 39 HftAlgt B E AN T BEME

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) (&)

39.18Leases (Continued) 3918 HE (@)
Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance HENZRAS RPBEERAZEELD
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease Be o B ISP AR EA R BRI - A
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on 2NN B ESENEE R —5 -

the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the FRESEEKATE BEATRIEA
following:
e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability s HEBEBENVIFIESH
e any lease payments made at or before the commencement o HERHBBHSZAIZNNIMEAE
date less any lease incentives received MRREEAEWAEESR
e any initial direct costs, and o EAVIBEEKER - K
e restoration costs. o BIEER-
Entity-specific details about the Group's leasing policy are BAAEEHERRENEEEEFEN
provided in Note 14. BosE14424 -
39.19Interest income 3919 R 2 U A
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basic using T B U AE F B R F R SE IR S ) 7
the effective interest method. R o
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FIVEYEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFEMBBRE
Year ended 31 December

BE12A31ALEE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FET FEx
Revenue WA 2,310,842 2,033,419 2,404,398 2,279,321 1,945,721
Profit for the year FREF 301,803 209,687 282,383 226,909 204,191

As at 31 December

M12831H

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET FEx
Total assets BELRE 2,324,543 2,572,311 2,851,160 2,697,523 2,451,591
Total liabilities BERE 1,133,078 1,177,756 1,229,241 1,091,928 766,414
Total equity AR 1,191,465 1,394,555 1,621,919 1,605,595 1,685,177
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